

Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interactions in spoken and written discourses



CONFERENCE PROGRAMME & BOOK OF ABSTRACTS

http://www.metadiscourseacrossgenres.com/

METU NORTHERN CYPRUS CAMPUS, CYPRUS
30 March-01 April 2017

MAG 2017 LOCAL ORGANIZING COMMITTEE AND CONFERENCE CHAIRS

AKBAS, ERDEM, ERCIYES UNIVERSITY, TURKEY
BAYYURT, YASEMIN, BOGAZICI UNIVERSITY, TURKEY
HATIPOGLU, CILER, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY

INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZING AND ADVISORY COMMITTEE

ABDI, REZA, UNIVERSITY OF MOHAGHEGH ARDABILI, IRAN ÄDEL, ANNELINE, UNIVERSITY OF DALARNA, SWEDEN HYLAND, KEN, UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG, HONG KONG MAURANEN, ANNA, UNIVERSITY OF HELSINKI, FINLAND SANCHO-GUINDA, CARMEN, TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MADRID, SPAIN SUAU-JIMÉNEZ, FRANCISCA, UNIVERSITY OF VALENCIA, SPAIN UZUN, LEYLA, ANKARA UNIVERSITY, TURKEY ZEYREK, DENIZ, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY

Scientific Committee

- Abdi, Reza, University of Mohaghegh Ardabili, Iran
- Abdollahzadeh, Ismail, Iran University of Science and Technology Tehrān, Iran
- Ädel, Annelie, University of Dalarna, Sweden
- Akbas, Erdem, Erciyes University, Turkey
- Allami, Hamid, Yazd University, Iran
- Basal, Ahmet, Yildiz Technical University, Turkey
- Bayyurt, Yasemin, Bogazici University, Turkey.
- Bennett, Karen, New University of Lisbon, Portugal
- Blagojevic, Savka, University of Niš, Serbia
- Bogdanović, Vesna, University of Novi Sad, Serbia
- Bondi, Marina, University of Modena & Reggio Emilia, Italy
- Burgess, Sally, University of La Laguna, Spain
- Candarli, Duygu, University of Manchester, UK
- Carciu, Oana Maria, University of Zaragoza, Spain
- Chau, Meng Huat, University of Malaya, Malaysia
- Cortes, Viviana, Georgia State University, USA
- Dontcheva-Navrátilová, Olga, Masaryk University, Czech Republic
- Fidan, Ozden, Mugla University, Turkey
- Flowerdew, John, City University, Hong Kong
- Fløttum, Kjersti, University of Bergen, Norway
- Gardner, Sheena, Coventry University, UK
- Gillaerts, Paul, University of Leuven, Belgium
- Gil-Salom, María Luz, Polytechnic University of Valencia, Spain
- Gimenez, Julio, University of Westminster, UK
- Giner-Alonso, Diana, University of Zaragoza, Spain
- Hatipoglu, Ciler, Middle East Technical University, Turkey
- Herrando, Isabel, University of Zaragoza, Spain
- **Hu**, Guangwei, National Institute of Education, Singapore
- Hyland, Ken, University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong
- Ifantidou, Elly, National & Kapodistrian University of Athens, Greece
- Jalilifar, Alireza, Shahid Chamran University of Ahvaz,
 Iran.
- Kuhi, Davud, Islamic Azad University, Iran

- Kuteeva, Maria, Stockholm University, Sweden
 Lafuente-Millan, Enrique, University of Zaragoza, Spain
- Lores-Sanz, Rosa, University of Zaragoza, Spain
- Luzón, María José, University of Zaragoza, Spain
- Łyda, Andrzej, University of Silesia, Poland
- Marandi, Susan, Alzahra University, Iran
- Martín-Martín, Pedro A., University of La Laguna, Spain
- Mauranen, Anna, University of Helsinki, Finland
- Muresan, Laura, The Bucharest University of Economic Studies, Romania
- Mur-Dueñas, Pilar, University of Zaragoza, Spain
- Onder-Ozdemir, Neslihan, Uludag University, Turkey
- Paqout, Magali, Université catholique de Louvain (UCL), Belgium
- Perez-Llantada, Carmen, University of Zaragoza, Spain
- Pérez-Paredes, Pascual, University of Cambridge, UK
- Petric, Bojana, Birkbeck, University of London, UK
- Sadick Ngula, Richmond, University of Cape Coast, Ghana
- Salager-Meyer, Françoise, University of the Andes, Venezuela
- Sancho-Guinda, Carmen, Technical University of Madrid, Spain
- Shaw, Philip, Stockholm University, Sweden
- Soler-Monreal, Carmen, Polytechnic University of Valencia, Spain
- Suau-Jiménez, Francisca, University of Valencia, Spain
- Thompson, Paul, University of Birmingham UK
- Turan, Umit Deniz, Anadolu University, Turkey
- **Uysal**, Hacer Hande, Gazi University, Turkey
- Uzun, Leyla, Ankara University, Turkey
- Vassileva, Irena, Freelancer, Bulgaria.
- Vladimirou, Dimitra, Goldsmiths, University of London, UK
- Warchał, Krystyna, University of Silesia, Poland
- Yagiz, Oktay, Ataturk University, Turkey
- Zeyrek, Deniz, Middle East Technical University, Turkey

FOREWORD

Welcome to the Metadiscourse Across Genres Conference (MAG 2017) organized by individual researchers from the field and held at METU NCC, Cyprus between 30 March-01 April 2017.

The initial idea for this book of abstracts to appear is strongly linked to our attempt to organize a first-of-its-kind conference for the researchers who are into Metadiscourse and related concepts from different contexts. The conference of *Metadiscourse Across Genres: Mapping out interaction in spoken and written discourses* (MAG 2017) was first announced in February 2016 to take place in Cyprus in late March 2017 with the participation of Prof. Ken Hyland, Prof. Anna Mauranen and Prof. Annelie Ädel. While contacting well-known researchers from the field to ask them to join our scientific committee, we were given various compliments on coming forward to arrange such an initiative academic platform for scholars to focus on and delve into purely the notion of Metadiscourse.

Before continuing with the conference programme and the abstracts to be presented at MAG 2017, we would like to take the opportunity to our sincere appreciation and thanks to each one of the contributors sending their proposals and the anonymous reviewers who spent their invaluable time to help us and authors with their comments and knowledge in relation to abstracts. Without their support and experiences, it would have been impossible to bring this conference to completion.

Erdem Akbaş Yasemin Bayyurt Çiler Hatipoğlu

February 2017, Turkey





Day 1- Thursday-30 March 2017

09:00-10:00	Conference Registration			
10:00-10:30	Welcome and Opening			
CONFERENCE	 Prof. Nazife Baykal, Rector, METU NCC 			
HALL	Prof. Yasemin Bayyurt			
10:30-11:30	Plenary Session by Prof. Ken Hyla	and, University of Hong Kong, Ho	ng Kong	
Room A	Metadiscourse: What's new?			
11:30-13:00	LUNCH			
SESSION 1	ROOM A Chair: Jane Hodson	ROOM B Chair: Betul Bal Gezegin	ROOM C Chair: Sheena Gardner	ROOM D Chair: Annelie Adel
13:00-13:25	Contextual and Pragmatic Functions of Hedges in Argumentative Paragraphs in Turkish Hatipoglu, C. & Algi S.	Metadiscourse in Research Article Introductions and Conclusions Alotaibi, H.	Interactive and Interactional Metadiscourse in Newspaper Fundraising Appeals: A Consideration of Textual Position and Function McGee, I.	An Exploratory Study on Authorial (in)visibility across Postgraduate Academic Writing: Dilemma of developing a personal or impersonal authorial self Akbas, E. & Hardman, J.
13:25-13:50	Hedging in Turkish Argumentative Discourse Ercan, G.S. & Yozgat, U.	A comparative study of metadiscursive manner markers in Psychology and Biology research articles Abdi, R. & Maraghi, S.	Asides in Turkish Political Newspaper Interviews Esmer, E.	Stance taking: a corpus study of reporting verbs in undergraduate dissertations written in English as a Foreign Language Olmos-Lopez, P.
13:50-14:15	Should I boost or should I hedge: the use of hedges and boosters in the writing of argumentative essays by Japanese university students Macintyre, R.	"It is clear that":The use of evidentials and boosters in British campaign debates on Brexit Albalat-Mascarell,A. & Carrio, M.L.	Investigating the interaction between senders and recipients of workplace request emails – a metadiscursive approach Ho, V.	Authorial presence in academic writing: A contrastive analysis of self-mentions in PhD theses and research articles Isik-Tas, E.E.
14:15-14:30	TEA and COFFEE BREAK			

Day 1- Thursday-30 March 2017

SESSION 2	ROOM A Chair: Melike Bas	ROOM B Chair: Erdem Akbas	ROOM C Chair: Yasemin Bayyurt	ROOM D Chair: Anne Isaac
14:30-14:55	Appraisal in Academic Book Reviews Bal-Gezegin, B. & Isik-Guler, H.	"What I'm speaking is almost English": A corpus-assisted study of metadiscourse in English- medium lectures at an Italian university Molino. A.	A Functional Investigation of Self- mention in Soft and Hard Science Master Theses Kuhi, D. & Afsari, S.	Expression of Epistemic Modality in Argumentative Writing: A Study Based on Learner Corpora Karahan, P. & Durmusoglu-Kose, G.
14:55-15:20	Stylistic differences between closely related disciplines: Metatext in Linguistics and Literary Studies Andresen, M. & Zinsmeister, H.	Citation practices in spoken academic discourse Diani, G.	Cultural or discoursal proclivity: Engagement in academic writing Kafes, H. & Caner, M.	Transition Markers of Contrast in Chinese and English University Student Writing Gardner, S. & Han, C.
15:20-15:45	The Metadiscourse of Physics Coursebooks: a Case Study Across Languages Neumayer, D.	Organizational metadiscourse across lecturing styles: Metadiscourse beyond language Bernad-Mechó, E.&Fortanet- Gómez,I.	Uses of reference chains in L1 and L2 Argumentative writings: A corpus-based study of Cohesion and Different Linguistic Traits Koo, J.	A Metadiscursive Investigation of English and Persian Academic Articles Ariannejad, A. & Vanci Osam, U.
15:45-16:00	TEA and COFFEE BREAK			
	ROOM A	ROOM B	ROOM C	ROOM D
SESSION 3	Chair: Alessandra Molino	Chair: Ciler Hatipoglu	Chair: Huseyin Kafes	Chair: Mike Baynham
SESSION 3 16:00-16:25				
	Chair: Alessandra Molino Hedges and Boosters in Supervisory Discourse: A Case Study	Chair: Ciler Hatipoglu Epistemic modal markers as potential sources of interpretation bias in translated medical abstracts	Chair: Huseyin Kafes 'Folk' metadiscourse and social critique of narrative practices: The case of intersex experience	Chair: Mike Baynham Metadiscourse in English language teacher candidates' writing journals
16:00-16:25	Chair: Alessandra Molino Hedges and Boosters in Supervisory Discourse: A Case Study Gumusok, F. Contrastive genre analysis of academic book reviews of linguistics in English and Arabic	Chair: Ciler Hatipoglu Epistemic modal markers as potential sources of interpretation bias in translated medical abstracts Martikainen, H. Adverbial metadiscourse devices in Modern English History Texts (1700-1900)	Chair: Huseyin Kafes 'Folk' metadiscourse and social critique of narrative practices: The case of intersex experience King, B. A Broad Study Of The Variation Of Knowledge-Rich Contexts Depending On Text Genre And Domain	Chair: Mike Baynham Metadiscourse in English language teacher candidates' writing journals Seloni, L. & Yigitoglu, N. An analysis of metadiscourse features in the reflective writing of students in a counselling course





Day 2- Friday-31 March 2017

09:00-10:00	Conference Registration			Marrier
9:30-10:30 CONFERENCE HALL	Plenary Session by Prof. Anna Mauranen, University of Helsinki, Finland "I see what you mean but" Discourse reflexivity in dialogue			
10:30-10:40	TEA and COFFEE BREAK			
SESSION 4	ROOM A Chair: Nur Yigitoglu	ROOM B Chair: Brian King	ROOM C Chair: Anna Mauranen	ROOM D Chair: Yasemin Bayyurt
10:45-11:10	Metadiscourse in Academic Writing: A Comparison of Research Articles and Book Reviews Bas, M. & Bal-Gezegin, B.	Metadiscourse markers in English and Spanish journalistic texts: a contrastive annotation study Lavid, J. & Moratón, L.	Automatic Classification of Metadiscourse as used in Presentational Settings Correia, R. & Mamede, N.	Writer-Reader Interaction: Writer Positioning in MA TEFL Theses Written by British and Egyptian Students Darwish, H.
11:10-11:35	Evaluative Markers in the Book Reviews Published in the Pakistani English Newspapers Shahnaz, A. & Shehzad, W.	Mapping voice in two academic Business writing genres Isaac, A.	Automatic analysis of meta- discourse on undergraduate student writing across genres Bektik, D.	A study of Interactional Metadiscourse Features in Texts Written by Undergraduate students at the University of Botswana Ramoroka, B.
11:35-12:00	Metadiscourse in British and Saudi Newspaper Column Writing: Native / Non-native Differences in Language Use Alsubhi, A.	Generality and certainty in undergraduate writing over time Aull, L.	MetaPak: An Exclusive Corpus Tool for Metadiscourse Analysis Abbas, A., Shehzad, W. & Ghalib, H.	Revealing Stance through 'inanimate subjects with active verbs' in Turkish and English Research Article Abstracts Cakir, H.
12:00-13:00	LUNCH			

Day 2- Friday-31 March 2017

SESSION 5	ROOM A Chair: Gulsum Songul Ercan	ROOM B Chair: Ling Shi	ROOM C Chair: Larissa D'Angelo	ROOM D Chair: Demet Gul
13:00-13:30	Different audiences, different writing: Improving genre in popular science and academic writing among graduate STEM students Rakedzon, T.&Baram- Tsabari, A.	An Exploration of the Mysteries of Hedging in Academic Writing Hancioglu-Eldridge, N.	Normative and Non-Normative Metadiscourse in the Classroom 1: History of Rhetoric Steadman-Jones, R.	Evidentiality and commitment in modern English history texts (1700-1900) Alonso-Almeida, F.
13:30:14:00	Revisiting the Metadiscursive Aspect of Definitions in Academic Writing Triki, N.	A corpus-based Comparison of Albanian and Italian Student Papers in L1 and L2: the Case of Hedges and Boosters Dheskali, V.	Normative and Non-Normative Metadiscourse in the Classroom 2: Dialect and Literature Hodson, J.	From "ignorant opinions" to "the truest rules": Citation practices in Early Modern English military treatises Tuominen, J.
14:30-15:00	Knowledge and professional identity construction in weblogs by healthcare professionals Małgorzata, S.	Positioning as seen through hedging in academic researchers' spoken discourse Hah, S.	Young researchers writing in ESL and the use of metadiscourse: Learning the ropes Bogdanović, V. & Mirović, I.	Legitimization devices in dialogic structures of male and female voices in 20th century popular romance fiction novels González-De La Rosa, M. P.
15:00-15:15	TEA and COFFEE BREAK			



Day 2- Friday-31 March 2017



SESSION 6	ROOM A Chair: Reza Abdi	ROOM B Chair: Nilgun Hancioglu- Eldridge	ROOM C Chair: Ken Hyland	ROOM D Chair: Robert MacIntyre
15:15-15:45	Transition Markers of Consequence in Chinese and English University Student Writing Han, C. & Gardner, S.	Mapping Metadiscursive Epistemic and Attitudinal Stance in English Research Articles: A Cross-Disciplinary Study over Time Mohammadi, V. & Siami, T.	Stylistic differences between closely related disciplines: Metatext in Linguistics and Literary Studies Andersen, M. Zinsmeister, H.	A Cross Cultural Investigation of the Persuasive Effect of Textual and Interpersonal Metadiscourse Markers in Arabic and English Opinion Pieces Ismail, F.
15:45-16:15	Cause Markers in Turkish Ulucay, C. & Hatipoglu, C	Interactional metadiscourse features of the UK Labour Party Manifestos (2010 and 2015) Sebei, H.	The challenges of visual metadiscourse in scientific abstracts Sancho-Guinda, C.	Comparisons of paraphrasing in Chinese and English academic writing Shi, L. & Dong, Y.
16:15-16:30	Short Break for Tea!			
SESSION 7	ROOM A Chair: Reza Abdi	ROOM B Chair: Nilgun Hancioglu- Eldridge	ROOM C Chair: Ken Hyland	ROOM D Chair: Robert MacIntyre
16:30-17:00	Persuasion in tourist discourse: A model of metadiscourse Persuric Antonic, M.	A model of reflexive metadiscourse in reading comprehension across disciplines (Economy, Chemistry and Linguistics) Wichka, M.S.	The use of Meta discourse Devices by Non-native Speakers in Research Articles Khalili, A	Stance accrual through oral academic discourse Hadizadeh, A. & Vefali, G. M
17:00-17:30	Transforming communication skills by the request for information Reinsalu, R.	Bundle-driven metadiscourse analysis: Sentence initial bundles in Chinese and New Zealand postgraduates' thesis writing Li, L., Franken, M. & Wu, S.	Hedging across genres: an investigation of hedges in the discipline areas of BAWE Vincent, B. & Trklja, A.	Framing in NLP: The significance of Metadiscursive Elements used by Neuro-Linguistic Programming Gul, D. & Gul, F.
19:00-23:30	DINNER at Acapulco Resort H	lotel followed by a Turkish Ni	ght ''Fasil'' at Neyzen Restau	rant



Day 3- Saturday-01 April 2017



09:00-10:00	Conference Registration			Manager 1
9:30-10:30 CONFERENCE HALL	Plenary Session by Prof. Annelie Adel, Dalarna University, Sweden Metadiscursive 'you' across genres			
10:30-10:40	TEA and COFFEE BREAK			
SESSION 8	ROOM A Chair: Leyla Marti	ROOM B Chair: Pamela Olmos-Lopez	ROOM C Chair: Vesna Bogdanović	ROOM D Chair: Carmen Sancho- Guinda
10:45-11:10	Metadiscoursal features of academic feedback: avoiding the fluff Malone, C. & Austen, L.	Metadiscourse in Electronic Advertising: A Comparative Analysis of TV and Radio Commercials Gul, D.	An Exploration of Modality and Hedging in Academic Discourse: Focusing on Kurdish University Context Omer, T.	Mapping cross-disciplinary textual and visual metadiscourse strategies in academic posters D'Angelo, L.
11:10-11:35	Metadiscoursal features of electronic feedback in graduate level academic writing Bayyurt, Y. & Yigitoglu, N	Metadiscourse in Films: The employment of hedges and boosters in the Turkish comedy film Recep Ivedik Hatipoglu, C & Oktay, S.	Constraints on authorial stance in accounting PhD theses in a Nigerian university Uba, S. Y. & Baynham, M.	A Cross-Sectional Comparison of Metadiscourse Features Used in Early and Advanced Engineering Writing Chan, W.S.I.
11:35-12:00	Metadiscoursal awareness in argumentation through written commentary feedback Rodway, C.	Approaching conversational narratives in 'Metadiscourse' terms: An analysis on the introductory parts of 'Culturally Shared Narratives' Kokpinar Kaya, E.	Use and awareness of metadiscoursive routines in student's L1-writing Weder, M.	An investigation into interactive and interactional metadiscourse devices in written in high-and low-rated undergraduate learner language Akbas, E. & Onder-Ozdemir, N.
12:00-13:00	LUNCH			



Day 3- Saturday-01 April 2017



13:00-14:30 CONFERENCE HALL	Round Table (Discussion): "Past, Present and Future of Metadiscourse Studies" Discussants: Prof. Ken Hyland; Prof. Anna Mauranen; Prof. Annelie Adel Moderator: Dr. Erdem Akbas			
14:30-14:45	TEA and COFFEE BREAK			
SESSION 9	ROOM A Chair: Cathy Malone	ROOM B Chair: Erdem Akbas	ROOM C Chair: Hamide Cakir	ROOM D Chair: Ciler Hatipoglu
14:45-15:15	The Metadiscourse of Vietnamese Discourse Markers Di Suvero, A. V.	A cross-cultural investigation of code glosses in academic writing Kafes, H. & Caner, M	To Mention or not to Mention "I": An investigation of Personal Metadiscourse in Pakistani Research Discourses Akhtar, A., Shehzad, W. Zahra, S.T	Towards the development of a socially-informed model of research in metadiscourse Kuhi, D.
15:15-16:00	MAG 2017 Closing Ceremony and Future Plans for MAG			
CONFERENCE	Dr. Erdem Akbas			
HALL	 Assoc. Prof. Ciler Hatipogl 	u		

Table of Contents

Foreword	3
Metadiscourse: What's new?	16
"I see what you mean but…" Discourse reflexivity in dialogue	17
Metadiscursive 'you' across genres	18
Contextual and Pragmatic Functions of Hedges in Argumentative Paragraphs in Turkish	. 20
Hedging in Turkish Argumentative Discourse	21
Should I boost or should I hedge: the use of hedges and boosters in the writing of argumenta essays by Japanese university students	
Metadiscourse in Research Article Introductions and Conclusions	24
A comparative study of metadiscursive manner markers in Psychology and Biology research artic	
"It is clear that…": The use of evidentials and boosters in British campaign debates on Brexit	26
Interactive and Interactional Metadiscourse in Newspaper Fundraising Appeals: A Consideration Textual Position and Function	
Asides in Turkish Political Newspaper Interviews	. 29
Investigating the interaction between senders and recipients of workplace request emails metadiscursive approach	
An Exploratory Study on Authorial (in)visibility across Postgraduate Academic Writing: Dilemma developing a personal or impersonal authorial self	
Stance taking: a corpus study of reporting verbs in undergraduate dissertations written in English a Foreign Language	
Authorial presence in academic writing: A contrastive analysis of self-mentions in PhD theses research articles	
Appraisal in Academic Book Reviews	36
Stylistic differences between closely related disciplines: Metatext in Linguistics and Literary Studies	37
The Metadiscourse of Physics Coursebooks: a Case Study Across Languages	. 38
"What I'm speaking is almost English": A corpus-assisted study of metadiscourse in Engl	
Citation practices in spoken academic discourse	41
Organizational metadiscourse across lecturing styles: Metadiscourse beyond language	. 42
A Functional Investigation of Self-mention in Soft and Hard Science Master Theses	. 44
Cultural or discoursal proclivity: Engagement in academic writing	. 45
Uses of reference chains in L1 and L2 Argumentative writings: A corpus-based study of Cohesion Different Linguistic Traits	
Transition Markers of Contrast in Chinese and English University Student Writing	49
A Metadiscursive Investigation of English and Persian Academic Articles	50
Hedges and Boosters in Supervisory Discourse: A Case Study	52
Contrastive genre analysis of academic book reviews of linguistics in English and Arabic	53

A Comparative Study on Attitude and Engagement Markers in Hotel Reviews in English and Turkish
Epistemic modal markers as potential sources of interpretation bias in translated medical abstracts 56
Adverbial metadiscourse devices in Modern English History Texts (1700-1900)
ANALYSIS OF STANCE IN THE WRITING OF NON-NATIVE SPEAKER UNIVERSITY STUDENTS IN BUSINESS COMMUNICATION
'Folk' metadiscourse and social critique of narrative practices: The case of intersex experience 60
A Broad Study Of The Variation Of Knowledge-Rich Contexts Depending On Text Genre And Domain
The Use of Reporting Verbs in a Corpus of Research Papers in Applied Linguistics
Metadiscourse in English language teacher candidates' writing journals
An analysis of metadiscourse features in the reflective writing of students in a counselling course \dots 65
Incorporating Metadiscourse instruction into EFL Reading Classes: Its effects and Students Perception
Metadiscourse in Academic Writing: A Comparison of Research Articles and Book Reviews 68
Evaluative Markers in the Book Reviews Published in the Pakistani English Newspapers 69
Metadiscourse in British and Saudi Newspaper Column Writing: Native / Non-native Differences in Language Use
Metadiscourse markers in English and Spanish journalistic texts: a contrastive annotation study 72
Mapping voice in two academic Business writing genres
Generality and certainty in undergraduate writing over time
Automatic Classification of Metadiscourse as used in Presentational Settings
Automatic analysis of meta-discourse on undergraduate student writing across genres
MetaPak: An Exclusive Corpus Tool for Metadiscourse Analysis
Writer-Reader Interaction: Writer Positioning in MA TEFL Theses Written by British and Egyptian Students
A study of Interactional Metadiscourse Features in Texts Written by Undergraduate students at the University of Botswana
Revealing Stance through 'inanimate subjects with active verbs' in Turkish and English Research Article Abstracts
Different audiences, different writing: Improving genre in popular science and academic writing among graduate STEM students
Revisiting the Metadiscursive Aspect of Definitions in Academic Writing
Knowledge and professional identity construction in weblogs by healthcare professionals
Małgorzata Sokół, University of Szczecin, Poland
An Exploration of the Mysteries of Hedging in Academic Writing
A corpus-based Comparison of Albanian and Italian Student Papers in L1 and L2: the Case of Hedges and Boosters
Positioning as seen through hedging in academic researchers' spoken discourse90
Normative and Non-Normative Metadiscourse in the Classroom 1: History of Rhetoric
Normative and Non-Normative Metadiscourse in the Classroom 2: Dialect and Literature

Young researchers writing in ESL and the use of metadiscourse: Learning the ropes94
Evidentiality and commitment in modern English history texts (1700-1900)96
From "ignorant opinions" to "the truest rules": Citation practices in Early Modern English military treatises
Legitimization devices in dialogic structures of male and female voices in 20th century popular romance fiction novels
Transition Markers of Consequence in Chinese and English University Student Writing100
Cause Markers in Turkish101
Mapping Metadiscursive Epistemic and Attitudinal Stance in English Research Articles: A Cross- Disciplinary Study over Time103
Interactional metadiscourse features of the UK Labour Party Manifestos (2010 and 2015)104
Stylistic differences between closely related disciplines: Metatext in Linguistics and Literary Studies106
The challenges of visual metadiscourse in scientific abstracts107
Comparisons of paraphrasing in Chinese and English academic writing110
Persuasion in tourist discourse: A model of metadiscourse
Transforming communication skills by the request for information113
A model of reflexive metadiscourse in reading comprehension across disciplines (Economy, Chemistry and Linguistics)115
Bundle-driven metadiscourse analysis: Sentence initial bundles in Chinese and New Zealand postgraduates' thesis writing116
The use of Meta discourse Devices by Non-native Speakers in Research Articles118
Hedging across genres: an investigation of hedges in the discipline areas of BAWE119
Stance accrual through oral academic discourse121
Framing in NLP: The significance of Metadiscursive Elements used by Neuro-Linguistic Programming
Metadiscoursal features of academic feedback: avoiding the fluff124
Metadiscoursal features of electronic feedback in graduate level academic writing125
Metadiscoursal awareness in argumentation through written commentary feedback126
Metadiscourse in Electronic Advertising: A Comparative Analysis of TV and Radio Commercials128
Metadiscourse in Films: The employment of hedges and boosters in the Turkish comedy film Recep Ivedik
Approaching conversational narratives in 'Metadiscourse' terms: An analysis on the introductory parts of 'Culturally Shared Narratives'130
An Exploration of Modality and Hedging in Academic Discourse: Focusing on Kurdish University Context132
Constraints on authorial stance in accounting PhD theses in a Nigerian university133
Use and awareness of metadiscoursive routines in student's L1-writing134
Mapping cross-disciplinary textual and visual metadiscourse strategies in academic posters136
A Cross-Sectional Comparison of Metadiscourse Features Used in Early and Advanced Engineering Writing

An investigation into interactive and interactional metadiscourse devices in written in high-and low rated undergraduate learner language13	
The Metadiscourse of Vietnamese Discourse Markers14	0
To Mention or not to Mention "I": An investigation of Personal Metadiscourse in Pakistani Research Discourses	
Towards the development of a socially-informed model of research in metadiscourse14	6



Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interactions in spoken and written discourses

PLENARY 1

30 MARCH 2017, SATURDAY 10:30:11:30

CONFERENCE HALL

METADISCOURSE: WHAT'S NEW?

PROF. KEN HYLAND THE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG, HONG KONG

Research into the meanings and expression of metadiscourse in writing has become something of a minor industry among those interested in how interaction works in academic persuasion. We have seen a proliferation of studies in recent years using the interactive model to reveal some of the ways that writers monitor their ongoing text to make it coherent, relevant and persuasive to a particular community of imagined readers. Despite this abundance of studies, however, we have little idea how disciplinary preferences for particular features, categories, or even metadiscourse itself has altered over the years. In this presentation I explore how metadiscourse has changed in recent years, asking whether academic texts are becoming more interactional and if so in what ways and in what fields. Based on a corpus of 2.2 million words from the same leading journals in four disciplines from the humanities, social sciences and physical sciences at three periods over the past 50 years, I examine changes in the use of metadiscourse. The results are somewhat unexpected and seem to suggest changes in rhetorical conventions which accommodate more explicit argumentation overall, more interactional intrusion in the sciences and more detached practices in the soft fields.

PLENARY 2 31 MARCH 2017, FRIDAY 09.30-10.30

CONFERENCE HALL

"I SEE WHAT YOU MEAN BUT..." DISCOURSE REFLEXIVITY IN DIALOGUE

PROF. ANNA MAURANEN UNIVERSITY OF HELSINKI, FINLAND

Reflexivity, the capacity of using language to talk about itself, is a distinctively human trait. It brings about a special layer of sophistication to our language, which enables us to indicate explicitly how we intend our speech to be taken and how it relates to our interlocutors' contributions. It gives us a chance to evaluate what we're saying while we're saying it, or to evaluate each other's talk. Moreover, it allows us to say we didn't mean what someone else took us to mean or that although we said something we didn't really mean it. In brief, it comes in very handy in everyday encounters. Discourse reflexivity, or metadiscourse, is also a very important part of academic discourse where refined argumentation requires advanced linguistic means to win the day.

Metadiscourse has been studied widely in linguistic research, but although it is essentially an interpersonal, dialogic feature of language, it has nevertheless been almost exclusively studied in the written text. In this talk, I address discourse reflexivity in dialogue. More specifically, I will be looking into spontaneous dialogic speech and the roles that discourse reflexivity assumes for speakers in co-constructing speech, meaning, and knowledge. The data that I draw on is English as a lingua franca, which comes from the ELFA corpus of spoken academic ELF.

PLENARY 3

01 APRIL 2017, SATURDAY 09.30-10.30

CONFERENCE HALL

METADISCURSIVE 'YOU' ACROSS GENRES

PROF. ANNELIE ADEL DALARNA UNIVERSITY, SWEDEN

This talk takes the conference theme—metadiscourse across genres—as a point of departure. To illustrate variation in the use of metadiscourse, reflexive uses of second person 'you' are examined in different genres, all of which represent academic discourse. The material includes university lectures, research articles, advanced university student essays and teacher feedback on student writing. The data is analysed both quantitatively, taking frequency into consideration, and qualitatively, taking discourse function into consideration. The extended units in which 'you' occurs are compared across genres to highlight the considerable variability of metadiscursive uses.

One of the implications of the variation found—which was brought to the fore especially by the study of teacher feedback—is that our conceptualisations of metadiscourse are overly influenced by the type of data that have been in focus in research to date: highly visible written genres at the highly monologic end of the continuum. The metadiscourse in teacher feedback was found to be primarily about solving communication problems rather than organising the discourse and telling the reader how to respond to it. Interestingly, the feedback material fits in with Roman Jakobson's original conceptualisation of the metalinguistic function as solving communication problems.

DAY 1 30 March 2017 Session 1

13:00-14:15

Metadiscourse Across Genres
Mapping out interac ROOM Ad written discourses

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM A-1

CONTEXTUAL AND PRAGMATIC FUNCTIONS OF HEDGES IN ARGUMENTATIVE PARAGRAPHS IN TURKISH

CILER HATIPOGLU, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY ¹
SEDEF ALGI, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY ²

Writing is usually a consciously learned skill through formal instruction in a school setting. The training in writing is culture specific (Galtung 1981) and it is often done following the expectations and needs of the every society (Uysal 2008). Therefore, each society has unique writing conventions that differentiate it from the others (Hirose 2003; Kadar-Fulop 1988). Writing also means assimilation of subtle but at the same time pervasive cultural norms about ways of arguing, ways of addressing an audience, ways of expressing authority (Wu & Rubin 2000) as well as ways of toning down uncertainty or potentially risky claims (Hyland 2000). Using these statements as a starting point and taking metadiscourse as an analytical framework, this paper looks at one specific language/culture (i.e., Turkish) and one specific genre of academic writing (i.e., the argumentative paragraph) and tries to uncover where, how and why (i.e., in which contexts with what pragmatic functions) native speakers of Turkish utilise the discourse modulation devices known as hedges. Participants in this study were 52 university students (34 female and 18 males) with age range 18-20. All of the informants were monolingual native speakers of Turkish coming from different geographical regions in the country. None of the participants had lived in a foreign country for more than six months. The data for this study were collected in two stages. First, the students were asked to fill in a detailed background questionnaire and choose an argumentative essay topic they felt most comfortable with. The majority of the students chose Cocuklar okula başlar başlamaz yabancı dil öğrenmeye başlamalı mı? [Should children start learning a foreign language as soon as they start school?]. Then, the students were asked to write 180-200 word long argumentative essays on this topic in class and they were instructed to use specific reasons and examples to support their positions. The 52 essays written by the students had 7.861 words in total. All paragraphs were coded and formatted for analysis in CLAN CHILDES after which the hedges in the paragraphs and their contextual and pragmatic functions were determined and classified. Later, the analysis of the quantitative data was done in PASW. The findings of the study showed that hedging devices in the Turkish language are a rich, multifaceted and multifunctional group of metadiscoursal tools which can assume various and sometimes contrasting roles in the different sections of the argumentative text.

¹ ciler@metu.edu.tr

² sedefalgi@gmail.com

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM A-2

HEDGING IN TURKISH ARGUMENTATIVE DISCOURSE

G. SONGUL ERCAN, DOKUZ EYLÜL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY³
UMUT YOZGAT, DOKUZ EYLÜL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY ⁴

Metadiscourse is a term broadly used for the linguistic resources which are internal to the text and contributing to the interactional meaning of it, therefore enabling writers/speakers to express their viewpoints and engage with readers/listeners as members of a particular community (Hyland, 2005: 37-38). Hedges are one of the devices of the interactional aspect of metadiscourse used by writers/speakers when presenting a proposition as an opinion rather than a fact (Hyland, 1998: 5). Thus, they withhold their commitment to the proposition and avoid confrontation. In her study on the usage of hedges in Turkish op-ed articles (Ercan, 2003) found that hedges are used by writers with different strategies. In our study, hedges are investigated in argumentative discourse, which is similar to the discourse of oped articles in that it involves persuasive and argumentative moves (Walton, 2006). Our objective is of two folds: with what function(s) hedges are used and on which stage(s) argumentation (i.e. confrontation, opening, argumentation and concluding, following van Eemeren and Grootendorst, 2004) the use of hedges is more frequent in Turkish argumentative discourse. To this end, three TV debate programs broadcast on three different channels have been chosen as the database. A total length of 312 minutes of recordings was transcribed and hedges were investigated in accordance with our objectives. Then, they were classified according to their functions, and the relationship between the functions of hedges and the part of the argumentative discourse was set forth. Our findings reveal that in line with Ercan's findings (2003) hedges are used with six different functions: (i) to blur the source of information; (ii) to avoid to assume the full responsibility of the proposition made; (iii) to pretend not to inform the reader and remind them indirectly; (iv) to reduce the risk of confrontation, (v) to imply that the proposition is made tentatively to test the water; (vi) to allude to the limited nature of propositional content. Relating the second objective, hedges are found to be most frequently used on the opening stage in Turkish argumentative discourse.

³ gsongulercan@gmail.com

⁴ yozgatumut@outlook.com

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM A-3

SHOULD I BOOST OR SHOULD I HEDGE: THE USE OF HEDGES AND BOOSTERS IN THE WRITING OF ARGUMENTATIVE ESSAYS BY JAPANESE UNIVERSITY STUDENTS

ROBERT MACINTYRE, SOPHIA UNIVERSITY, JAPAN⁵

This chapter examines how non-native student writers use hedges and boosters in the writing of argumentative essays. Over the course of a fourteen-week writing course, a learner corpus of 3 argumentative essays written by seventeen participants in a Japanese university was collected and coded for hedges and boosters. The final corpus consisted of 44764 words and was coded according to the definitions of hedges and boosters from Hyland (2005). The data was then independently coded by another researcher familiar with metadiscourse and, after discussion, agreement was reached on the examples of hedges and boosters. To discover more about how and why these features were used, think-aloud protocols and stimulated-recall interviews were also conducted. The results indicate that non-native student writers use far more boosters and fewer hedges when compared to corpora of native expert writing. Previous research has suggested factors such as the transfer from L1, L2 pedagogical materials, and the influence of spoken discourse which help to cause this difference. However, while acknowledging these as potential factors, the participants in this study have used hedges and boosters in a variety of different ways, for a variety of different reasons. Factors such as the way an argument is constructed, the participants' knowledge of academic writing, and their English proficiency have also contributed to their use in this corpus. It is suggested that as educators we need to be aware of the variety of factors which shape our students' use of this important feature of academic writing.

_

⁵ robert.macintyre@gmail.com

DAY 1 30 March 2017 Session 1 13:00-14:15

Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM B written discourses

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM B-1

METADISCOURSE IN RESEARCH ARTICLE INTRODUCTIONS AND CONCLUSIONS

HMOUD ALOTAIBI, SHAQRA UNIVERSITY, SAUDI ARABIA6

Little is known about metadiscourse in Arabic and English research articles written by Arabic-speaking writers. Therefore, this paper uses Ädel's (2006) framework to investigate metadiscourse markers in the introduction and conclusion sections of research articles written in Arabic and in English by native speakers of Arabic. The findings indicated that the text-oriented metadiscourse was more preferable across corpora and particularly was more prominent in introductions compared to conclusions. The findings also revealed cross-linguistic variations as English texts used a higher number of metadiscourse markers than their Arabic counterparts. The study closes with several recommendations for future studies and addresses pedagogical implications.

-

⁶ halrwais@su.edu.sa

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM B-2

A COMPARATIVE STUDY OF METADISCURSIVE MANNER MARKERS IN PSYCHOLOGY AND BIOLOGY RESEARCH ARTICLES

REZA ABDI, UNIVERSITY OF MOHAGHEGH ARDABII, IRAN⁷
SOUDABE MARAGHI, UNIVERSITY OF MOHAGHEGH ARDABII, IRAN⁸

Academic writing, particularly writing research articles, is considered of great importance among the academic discourse community. According to Hyland (2004), an analysis of metadiscursive features and the related conventions of different discourse communities is among the important characteristics in investigating and comparing academic writings. This study examined the employment of manner metadiscourse markers, as introduced in Abdi, et al (2010) in research articles across the two disciplines of Psychology and Biology. To this end, 200 research articles (100 from Psychology, 100 from Biology) were selected from twenty internationally accredited journals. Ten journals from each discipline and ten articles from each journal were randomly selected in order to build the corpus. Following the model introduced by Abdi, et al (2010), we analyzed transitions, frame markers, and code glosses as manner marking strategies in the corpus. A Chi-square test was used to compare the data extracted from the corpus. The results showed that there are significant differences between the two sciences in the use of manner metadiscourse markers. Besides revealing the differential perspective of the authors in terms of manner, the findings of this study suggest some pedagogical implications in teaching the related ESP courses, especially writing research papers.

⁷ reabdi@yahoo.com

⁸ soodabe maraghi@yahoo.com

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM B-3

"IT IS CLEAR THAT...": THE USE OF EVIDENTIALS AND BOOSTERS IN BRITISH CAMPAIGN DEBATES ON BREXIT

ANA ALBALAT-MASCARELL, UNIVERSIDAD POLITECNICA DE VALENCIA, SPAIN ⁹

MARIA LUISA CARRIO, UNIVERSIDAD POLITECNICA DE VALENCIA, SPAIN 10

Evidentials and boosters are common rhetorical strategies that lend credibility to arguments either by drawing on external sources of information or by emphasising one's own certainty about a proposition. Both strategies are part of a strong interpersonal view of metadiscourse comprising the ways speakers can organize a discourse and adopt a stance towards what is being discussed and their audience (Hyland, 2004, 2005, 2010; Hyland and Tse, 2004; Dafouz-Milne, 2008; Mur-Dueñas, 2011). But while a useful tool in explaining the interactional features of language in different domains and genres, metadiscourse has mostly been examined in relation to academic writing (Hyland, 2015), and little attention has been given to the role of metadiscourse markers in non-academic discourses with an overtly persuasive component such as political discourse. We address this gap by analyzing the presence and function of evidentials and boosters in the 2016 campaign debates on the United Kingdom European Union membership referendum (also known as the 'Brexit' referendum). In this vein, our objectives are, first, to extract the frequencies of the words and phrases performing these particular metadiscourse functions in broadcast debates featuring different politicians from both sides of the campaign before polling day on 23 June; second, to compare the most frequently used expressions in these debates and relate them to the speakers' purpose; third, to contrast the use of these evidentials and boosters with the surprising results of the referendum. In the methodology set for this study, the quantitative use of evidentials and boosters was analyzed with the tool 'Metool' developed specifically to detect metadiscourse strategies. The results show how the strategies identified tend to work in combination towards the representation of a credible self with something plausible to say that challenges opposing views on the same issue. Furthermore, differences in the use of these metadiscourse devices between the political actors involved and the mixed positions they publicly adopt are also examined so as to conclude the study with a possible correlation with the speaker's communicative characteristics and the referendum result.

⁹ anamasquenadie@gmail.com

¹⁰ Icarrio@idm.upv.es

DAY 1 30 March 2017 **Session 1**

13:00-14:15 **Metadiscourse Across Genres**

Mapping out interac ROOM Cd written discourses

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM C-1

INTERACTIVE AND INTERACTIONAL METADISCOURSE IN NEWSPAPER FUNDRAISING APPEALS: A CONSIDERATION OF TEXTUAL POSITION AND FUNCTION

IAIN MCGEE, MAJAN COLLEGE, OMAN¹¹

Metadiscourse is only one of a number of discourse managing and interpreting tools available for use by writers. Other tools which help orient readers through text include paragraph indentation, discourse markers, and prediction pairs. Goutsos (1997) provided taxonomy of 7 discourse managing tools, and argued that in expository text a hierarchy of topic shifting and continuation operated. According to his research findings metadiscourse was ranked higher than prediction pairs but lower than paragraphing in terms of its topic framing and topic introduction strength. At the same time he noticed in his corpora that multisignalling was the norm, i.e. two or more discourse managing signals often co-occurred. However, more recent research (e.g. Charolles, 2005) has proposed a dynamic (rather than hierarchical) understanding of the relationship between discourse managing tools; for example, the decision to use a particular cohesive device (e.g. under-, or over-referencing) in paragraph-initial position may be seen to affect the discourse-managing role of the paragraph break in such an instance. Surprisingly little research has investigated metadiscourse and textual position (though note Ädel, 2006). Accordingly, in this presentation I report on research investigating the relationship between indentation and metadiscourse (both interactive and interactional, Hyland and Tse, 2004) in newspaper fundraising appeals, from a corpus collected from the Daily Telegraph newspaper between September 2015 and June 2016. While a number of researchers have considered moves within this or similar genres (e.g. Bhatia, 1998), I am not aware of any research which has considered the relationship that exists between moves and paragraphs, or moves, paragraphs and metadiscourse usage. The questions I seek to address in the presentation are: What are the types of metadiscourse present in this genre? Is there a discernible relationship between metadiscourse function and paragraph position? How, if at all, are moves, paragraphs and metadiscourse working in concert with one another? In discussing the findings I consider the patterns of usage that emerge, and what these findings mean for our understanding of discourse management in this genre, and how writers of such texts use the discourse managing tools available to them to persuade readers to make donations.

¹¹ iain.mcgee@majancollege.edu.om

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM C-2

ASIDES IN TURKISH POLITICAL NEWSPAPER INTERVIEWS

ELCIN ESMER, MERSIN UNIVERSITY, TURKEY12

Metadiscourse is broadly defined as the discourse about discourse. There are two levels of metadiscourse: the textual and interpersonal metadiscourse. Interpersonal metadiscourse is recognised as an important means of facilitating communication between the text, producer and receiver. Asides are one of the interpersonal metadiscourse markers. Markociv (2013) defines them as short "dialogues" between the writer and his potential reader. They are generally presented in the brackets or parantheses in the written text. Writers use them to insert their comments on the subject. This way they emphasize their point of views and shape their readers' opinion. Newspaper genre is generally accepted as one of the most important samples of persuasive text genre. Interpersonal metadiscourse plays a vital role for journalist in persuading his readers and interact with them. Interviews are the characteristic feature of newspaper discourse. They consist of three participants and they involve four directional communications (interviewer-interviewee, interviewee-interviewer, interviewer-reader, and interviewee-reader). Temmerman (2013) stated in her study of newspaper interviews, "asides are used as a way of corroborating the competence of the interviewer and they have five different functions in text:

- 1. adding factual information the reader is not presupposed to have,
- 2. describing the setting in which the interview takes place
- 3. describing non-verbal behaviour of the interviewee,
- 4. describing emotions shown by the interviewee,
- 5. assessing the conversational behaviour of the interviewee (p.371)"

The study aims to analyze the usage of asides in the political interviews conducted with the prominent politicians in Turkey. The data consists of eight political interviews published in four elite newspapers which have different ideology. In the study quantitative and qualitative methods will be applied using the methodologies both Corpus Linguistics and Critical Discourse Analysis. The asides in the interviews will be identified based on Temmerman (2013)'s classification of asides. Also, the corpus will be analyzed by using the NooJ linguistic engine module. It is expected that there will be some variations in the use and distribution of asides in the data according to the politicians' and the newspapers' ideologies.

-

¹² elciny@yahoo.com

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM C-3

INVESTIGATING THE INTERACTION BETWEEN SENDERS AND RECIPIENTS OF WORKPLACE REQUEST EMAILS – A METADISCURSIVE APPROACH

VICTOR HO, THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY, HONG KONG 13

The paper aims to investigate the interaction between the senders and recipients of workplace request emails. Drawing upon Hyland's (2005) interpersonal metadiscourse model as the analytical tool, a small corpus of 659 workplace request emails containing almost 90,000 words was analyzed to reveal how professionals interact with the recipients of their workplace request emails. The analysis was conducted first electronically by using Wordsmith which generated all the concordance lines containing potential metadiscourse markers, and second manually by the author and a second rater who read each concordance line in its context to determine if the markers were actually performing a metadiscourse function. The findings suggested that in the construction of the workplace request email discourse, professionals used metadiscourse for three purposes: (1) to make the logic of their justification for requests clear to the email recipients; (2) to construct for themselves desirable personal identities – that of an accountable professional and a credible professional (Simon, 2004; Spencer-Oatey, 2007); and (3) enhance rapport with the email recipients (Spencer-Oatey, 2008). The common and strategic use of metadiscourse in workplace emails should have implications for both professionals and ESP practitioners

_

¹³ victor.ho@polyu.edu.hk

DAY 1 30 March 2017 **Session 1**

13:00-14:15

Metadisc@OMrps Genres



DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM D-1

AN EXPLORATORY STUDY ON AUTHORIAL (IN)VISIBILITY ACROSS POSTGRADUATE ACADEMIC WRITING: DILEMMA OF DEVELOPING A PERSONAL OR IMPERSONAL AUTHORIAL SELF

ERDEM AKBAS, ERCIYES UNIVERSITY, TURKEY14

JAN HARDMAN, UNIVERSITY OF YORK, UNITED KINGDOM¹⁵

The writers of any scientific community are inherently expected to fulfil some agreed-upon discourse conventions of the academic discourse community (Molino, 2010) in the sense of creating a successful dialogic interaction through their texts. In line with this, Akbas (2014b) raised the question of "how and to what to extent writers foreground their explicit manifestations or hide their personal projections with impersonal forms" (p. 56). Considering the fact that academic writing is closely linked to the representation of authorial self (Hyland, 2002) and the voice of the postgraduates has received relatively less attention, in this paper, we explored the notion of explicit (via I and we-based instances) and implicit (via passive and impersonal instances) representation of postgraduates as the novice writers in the Social Sciences; namely, Turkish native speakers, Turkish speakers of English and English native speakers. Therefore, the focus of the paper shall be on the variations of personal (first person pronouns) or impersonal (agentless passives and inanimate subjects) uses of authorial references as well as their discourse functions in the postgraduate writing. In total, 90 successfully-completed dissertations of three postgraduate groups were randomly selected to compile the corpus of the study, and a corpus-informed discourse analysis approach was applied in the identification of choices of authorial representation in this genre. Following an extensive manual analysis of the texts from the corpus for each group, a list of explicit and implicit authorial references was extracted from sample texts to be explored in the analysis of the whole corpus. As was applied by Fløttum (2012), during the identification of authorial references, all verbs collocating with the explicit or implicit authorial references were examined carefully to see if the references performed author visibility in the texts. The quantitative analysis clearly showed that Turkish L1 and Turkish writers of English preferred to build mainly an impersonal impression over what they were presenting to the reader by employing a greater number of implicit authorial references whereas English L1 writers chose to create a more self-prominent academic prose. The qualitative analysis provided some evidence to argue that three groups employed explicit or implicit authorial references to accomplish particular discourse acts (i.e. guiding readers through the texts, elaborating an argument & making a claim, restating data collection, analysis and other methodological issues) strongly associated with the nature of discussion section.

¹⁴ erdemakbas@erciyes.edu.tr

¹⁵ jan.hardman@york.ac.uk

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM D-2

STANCE TAKING: A CORPUS STUDY OF REPORTING VERBS IN UNDERGRADUATE DISSERTATIONS WRITTEN IN ENGLISH AS A FOREIGN LANGUAGE

PAMELA OLMOS-LOPEZ, BENEMERITA UNIVERSIDAD AUTONOMA DE PUEBLA, MEXICO ¹⁶

The undergraduate dissertation in Mexico is often a key step in developing an academic identity. Hence, the idea of portraying an authorial identity at this level might cause some struggles for undergraduates and some researchers as well (see Helms-Park & Stapleton, 2003; Stapleton, 2002). In dissertation writing, writers are expected to show knowledge of the domain of academic discourse as well as of the genre they are writing, the content of their topic and research skills (Read, et al. 2001; Bartholomae, 1985). It is also expected that in this genre writers show their position towards their topic, i.e. take a stance. The integration of these elements makes dissertation writing a challenging endeavour, especially when facing it for first time, as the case for undergraduates. In addition, writing academically becomes more challenging when the writing is in a foreign language (FL). In this paper I analyse how undergraduates show their stance-taking in their EFL undergraduate dissertation. I focus on the analysis of stance-taking through reporting verbs (i.e. writer reporting other author's ideas) and first person pronouns (i.e. writer claiming new knowledge or presenting his/her ideas) (Thomas & Hawes, 1994; Thompson & Ye, 1991; Hyland, 2001). The corpus consists of 30 dissertations written by Non-native speakers of English in the area of English Language Teaching. I follow a discourse analysis approach using corpus linguistics tools such as concordances (using WordSmith) for the analysis of stance-taking which makes the expressions observable into their context. The findings show that in both cases, i.e. first person pronouns and reporting verbs, undergraduates use a variety of ways to reveal stance-taking, and this stance-taking varies along the chapters of their dissertations. My study contributes to research on a category of verbs that are commonly used in EFL academic writing and suggests some educational implications which reinforce the need to make students and instructors aware that the choice of reporting verbs is not just a matter of stylistics choice, but it can be an expression of authorial identity.

_

¹⁶ paol28@yahoo.com.mx

DAY 1- SESSION 1- ROOM D-3

AUTHORIAL PRESENCE IN ACADEMIC WRITING: A CONTRASTIVE ANALYSIS OF SELF-MENTIONS IN PHD THESES AND RESEARCH ARTICLES

ELVAN EDA ISIK-TAS, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY NCC, CYPRUS¹⁷

This study is a corpus-based textual analysis of self-mentions in the introduction parts of research articles (RAs) and PhD theses written in the field of English Language Teaching. The analysis aimed to compare how first person pronouns were used to establish authorial presence in PhD theses and in RAs within a single academic discipline. Two sub-corpora were compiled, a 85226 word corpus of 25 PhD thesis introductions written in English by Turkish graduate students in six Turkish universities, and a 23006-word corpus of 25 RAs published in five mainstream international journals. First person pronouns and determiners in the two sub-corpora were identified using AntConc 3.4.3 (Anthony, 2014), a concordance software program. Discourse functions of the self-mentions were identified in their context using Hyland's (2002) framework for discourse functions of first person pronouns. Findings indicated extensive variations in the frequency and functions of the self-mentions used across the two sub-corpora. There were significantly less self-mentions in PhD theses compared to RAs. In addition, the authors of PhD theses markedly employed more inclusive first person pronouns in their texts in comparison to RA authors who tended to prefer using exclusive first person pronouns in most cases. Analysis of the discourse functions of selfmentions indicated that the authors of RAs utilized first person pronouns to express their opinions with authority. The authors of PhD theses, on the other hand, tended to use first person pronouns in non-risk functions such as explaining research procedures. Findings in previous studies indicate that use of self-mentions help writers display a powerful and credible authorial presence in their texts (e.g. Hyland, 2002). In this respect, adoption of authorial voices prevalent in research articles would empower the novice authors in their access to international disciplinary communities. This study has implications for novice writers who would like to publish their research in international academic journals and more specifically, who would like to recontextualize their PhD theses as RAs.

¹⁷ edaisiktas@gmail.com

DAY 1 30 March 2017 **Session 2**

14:30-15:15

Metadiscoroomass Genres

1月日の下生

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM A-1

APPRAISAL IN ACADEMIC BOOK REVIEWS

BETUL BAL-GEZEGIN, AMASYA UNIVERSITY, TURKEY ¹⁸
HALE ISIK-GULER, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY ¹⁹

This cross-disciplinary and cross-linguistic/cross-cultural study intends to explore how interpersonal meaning is constructed in published Turkish and English academic book reviews (BR). To identify interpersonal meaning in the target BRs, it draws on the analytical and theoretical framework of Appraisal (Martin & White, 2005) within Systemic Functional Linguistics (SFL). This tripartite system includes attitude, engagement and graduation as main levels of evaluative resources and this study aims to answer how academic book reviewers employ appraisal resources of attitude in Turkish and English BRs. In addition, how appraisal resources of attitude (with its sub-resources of affect, judgment, and appreciation) are distributed in the target disciplines in these BRs. The specialized BR corpora collected for this study were comprised of 191 Turkish (283,208 words) and 194 English (280,224 words) book reviews from each of 10 disciplines: Educational Sciences (ES), History (HS), Law (LAW), Language (LN), Literature (LIT), Medical Sciences (MED), Philosophy (PH), Political Sciences (POL), Sociology (SOC), and Theology (THEO). The identification and annotation of appraisal resources in TBRs and EBRs was performed by an intensive annotation of each text individually UAM (Universidad Autonoma de Madrid) Corpus Tool. The findings reveal that overall English BRs had more appraisal resources (57% in English and 42% for Turkish) for attitude resources. The detailed analysis of each resource type revealed that in English book reviews it was more common to find expressions revealing reviewers' own opinions of how they felt about the book, and the value they gave to the book. In addition English BRs provided more information on how the book can/cannot contribute to the field, society, and potential readers, which was one of the most vital purposes of book reviewing. In regards to disciplinary differences, it was found that Law was observed to have the most appraisal resources among all of the disciplines in both languages, which shows that field is heavily evaluative when compared to other fields such as Educational Sciences and Literature which had the least appraisal resources in both of the languages. The study can contribute to cross-linguistic studies in academic genre by showing how interpersonal meaning and authorial voice is constructed in a particular subgenre of academic book reviews in two different languages. It can also provide bases for further investigation of appraisal resources in different genres and languages since it provides an elaborate list of all resources found both in Turkish and English BRs.

¹⁸ betulbal@gmail.com

¹⁹ hisik@metu.edu.tr

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM A-2

STYLISTIC DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CLOSELY RELATED DISCIPLINES: METATEXT IN LINGUISTICS AND LITERARY STUDIES

MELANIE ANDRESEN, UNIVERSITY OF HAMBURG, GERMANY²⁰ HEIKE ZINSMEISTER, UNIVERSITY OF HAMBURG, GERMANY²¹

The objective of this talk is to compare the use of metadiscourse (e.g. Ädel 2006, Hyland 2005) in academic German in the disciplines of Linguistics and Literary Studies. Though often considered closely related, the two disciplines are associated with different methods. academic cultures and, consequently, writing styles. The description of these differences is of special practical importance for students who study both disciplines jointly in study programs like "German Studies" and accordingly have to acquire the two writing styles simultaneously. In a purely data-driven analysis of German PhD theses from Linguistics and Literary Studies, we compared the frequencies of all word trigrams (=combinations of three adjacent words) and evaluated them for their potential of distinguishing the disciplines (using the measures log-likelihood (Dunning 1993) and Craig's Zeta (Craig/Kinney 2009)). Among the most distinctive trigrams for Linguistics, we found the combinations "in dieser Arbeit" (in this text), "an dieser Stelle" (at this point) and "im Folgenden werden" (in the following). These expressions belong to the group of metatext (Ädel 2006:20) that give the reader information on text organization. These findings suggest that expressions of metadiscourse make up a substantial part of the disciplinary differences between Linguistics and Literary Studies. This is in agreement with Hyland's (2005:57) finding for English that "the more discursive 'soft' fields employed more metadiscourse overall". This observation was taken as a starting point for a more comprehensive investigation of metatext in the two disciplines. For this purpose, the texts were searched for the three patterns mentioned above and additional text comment patterns (see Fandrych/Graefen 2002). The results were classified as metadiscoursive or intertextual (Ädel 2006:28) and analyzed for differences in frequency and in their combination with other aspects of metadiscourse, namely reporting verbs and selfmentions. First analyses on a pretest corpus of 23 texts confirm that metatext is more common in Linguistics. Additionally, instances used in Literary Studies are often intertextual or introduce an abbreviation or source text instead of commenting on text structure. These findings will be used as hypotheses for an in-depth study using a larger corpus.

²⁰ Melanie.Andresen@uni-hamburg.de

²¹ Heike.Zinsmeister@uni-hamburg.de

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM A-3

THE METADISCOURSE OF PHYSICS COURSEBOOKS: A CASE STUDY ACROSS LANGUAGES

DÉNES NEUMAYER, EÖTVÖS LORÁND UNIVERSITY, HUNGARY²²

Academic language is traditionally regarded as impersonal and strictly objective and these characteristics are also expected from university coursebooks, the indispensible components of higher education. However, the assumption that academic language avoids interaction with the readers and expressing personal stance has long been recognised as false by linguists (see e.g. Hyland, 2005). Nevertheless, focusing on textbooks, scholars may find quite limited resources to rely upon, particularly if their endeavour also includes the study of translated texts. Hopefully somewhat remedying this situation, this presentation would like to reflect on how metadiscourse markers, especially those signalling stance and engagement, behave during the translation of textbooks and how the resulting text compares to the source text and an independent target language text. The texts used for this purpose are samples of the original (English) and the translated (Hungarian) editions of Richard Feynman's Lectures on Physics and a Hungarian physics textbook. The framework of the study is supported by the system of transformation operations by Klaudy (1991) and Biber's typology of lexicogrammatical features (2006). Feynman's style is widely regarded as particular not the least because the readers of his famous textbook can feel as if they were participants of his lectures, listening to him live. This is in great contrast to the tradition of Hungarian textbook authors, who tend to itemise knowledge in numbered paragraphs. Therefore, it can be hypothesised that the moderately colloquial language of the original text is somewhat formalised in translation in order to fit the target language culture's expectations.

²² ndf.ggl@gmail.com

DAY 1 30 March 2017 **Session 2**

14:30-15:15

Metadisc@OMrBss Genres

13.70万世

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM B-1

"WHAT I'M SPEAKING IS ALMOST ENGLISH...": A CORPUS-ASSISTED STUDY OF METADISCOURSE IN ENGLISH-MEDIUM LECTURES AT AN ITALIAN UNIVERSITY

ALESSANDRA MOLINO, UNIVERSITY OF TORINO, ITALY 23

This study deals with the use of metadiscourse by Italian university lecturers who teach through the medium of English (EMI, English-Medium Instruction). The main objective is to verify whether lecturers demonstrate sensitivity to the situational demands of the EMI classroom, paying attention to the needs of the audience irrespective of possible shortcomings in their mastery of the language. Metadiscourse will be investigated following Ädel's (2006; 2010) reflexive model and using corpus-assisted methods for the identification, classification and quantification of relevant markers. A small, specialised corpus of university lectures in the fields of Physical Sciences and Technology will be analysed. In particular, I will concentrate on references to the discourse, the code, the lecturer as speaker and the students as listeners, considering both metatextual uses and instances of interaction with the audience. I will investigate what discourse functions metadiscourse markers may perform; what form-function associations can be identified; and whether any manifestations of "shaky entrenchment" (Mauranen 2012: 217) of language structures can be noticed. In addition, I will carry out a quantitative analysis to assess for what function (e.g. to announce goals, to comment on terminology, to introduce topics, to anticipate the audience's reactions) metadiscourse tends to be used by the Italian lecturers in the sample. While this study is intended as a contribution to the expanding field of English-medium instruction (see Doiz et al. 2013 and Dimova et al. 2015), it also aims to discuss how metadiscourse can be analysed in spoken academic monologue. Hence, another goal is to verify to what extent Ädel's (2010) "lumping approach" to metadiscourse (i.e. using the same framework for spoken and written language) and Ädel's (2006) taxonomy for impersonal metadiscourse can capture the uses found in EMI lectures.

²³ alessandra.molino@unito.it

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM B-2

CITATION PRACTICES IN SPOKEN ACADEMIC DISCOURSE

GIULIANA DIANI, UNIVERSITY OF MODENA AND REGGIO EMILIA, ITALY 24

Over the last two decades an increasing number of academic discourse studies have placed great emphasis on citation practices in research and on the tools of reporting (e.g. Swales 1986; Thompson and Ye 1991; Tadros 1993; Thompson 1996; Hyland 1999; Borg 2000; Groom 2000; Thompson and Tribble 2001; Hunston 2004; Bondi 2005). It is recognised that many of the activities within academic communities see scholars who often report and comment on other scholars' discourse. This leads to the complex interplay between 'averral' and 'attribution' (Sinclair 1987). In Sinclair's terms, a text is made up of propositions which may be put forward by the writer (averrals) or attributed by the writer to some other person or entity (attributions). Citation practices have become a popular area of research in written academic discourse (e.g. Thomas and Hawes 1994; Thompson 2000, 2005; Hyland 2002; Fløttum 2003; Bondi and Silver 2004; Charles 2006; Pecorari 2006; Diani 2009; Hewings, Lillis, Vladimirou 2010; Samraj 2013; Swales 2014; Luzón 2015). Little attention, however, has been paid to citation in spoken academic discourse (Anderson and Piazza 2005; Bamford 2009). Using a corpus of student presentations by native English speaking students taken from the MICASE corpus (The Michigan Corpus of Academic Spoken English), the present paper investigates the citation practices that are most typically used by students in managing intertextuality. Attention will be paid to those instances of talk in which students signal explicitly or implicitly the existence of a relationship between their own ongoing string of talk and the written discourse of "absent others". Findings suggest that citation favours argumentative interaction in the world of discourse and disciplinary debates among students.

-

²⁴ giuliana.diani@unimore.it

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM B-3

ORGANIZATIONAL METADISCOURSE ACROSS LECTURING STYLES: METADISCOURSE BEYOND LANGUAGE

EDGAR BERNAD-MECHÓ, JAUME I UNIVERSITY, SPAIN²⁵ INMACULADA FORTANET-GÓMEZ, JAUME I UNIVERSITY, SPAIN²⁶

This paper investigates the use of metadiscourse to organize and structure lectures across three different lecturing styles: reading style, conversational style and rhetorical style (Dudley-Evans, 1994). Metadiscourse in spoken lectures has received increasing interest by researchers in the last decade (Ädel, 2010; Crawford-Camiciottoli, 2004; Dafouz Milne & Núñez Perucha, 2010; Lee & Subtirelu, 2015). Nevertheless, to our knowledge, there is no study comparing the use of metadiscourse throughout different lecturing styles. Dudley-Evans's (1994) classification is based on how much lecturers rely on notes; different levels of spontaneity in the lecturer's commenting might vary the amount and types of metadiscourse produced. A second aim of this paper is to explore the use of metadiscourse from the perspective of the lecturer by means of a multimodal analysis. In order to obtain a comparison of the use of metadiscourse in these lecturing styles we set out to investigate organizational metadiscourse instances following Adel's (2010) taxonomy of metadiscourse in academic English. The data comes from a larger project in which we examine 152 lectures from six distinct courses in Social Sciences extracted from Yale University's OpenCourseWare. These courses consist of face-to-face sessions that include two readingstyle lecturers, two conversational-style and two rhetorical-style. These lectures have been meticulously examined one by one in order to identify and classify all instances of organizational metadiscourse. For the multimodal analysis, we follow Norris' (2004, 2011) Multimodal (Inter)action Analysis methodology, which allows us to explore communication from a holistic perspective, thus providing valuable insights on the actual role of metadiscourse from the speaker's perspective. A series of representative video clips and transcriptions are shown to demonstrate the multimodal use of metadiscourse in lectures of different styles: reading style, conversational style and rhetorical style. The final aim of this paper is to shed new light on the differences in the use of metadiscourse that occur in spoken academic lectures through a multimodal analysis. Different approaches towards lecturing might imply distinct uses of organizational metadiscourse, and we intend to account for these variations.

²⁵ ebernad@uji.es

²⁶ fortanet@uii.es

DAY 1 30 March 2017 Session 2

14:30-15:15

Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM C written discourses

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM C-1

A FUNCTIONAL INVESTIGATION OF SELF-MENTION IN SOFT AND HARD SCIENCE MASTER THESES

DAVUD KUHI, ISLAMIC AZAD UNIVERSITY OF MARAGHEH, IRAN²⁷ SOMAYE AFSARI, ISLAMIC AZAD UNIVERSITY OF TABRIZ, IRAN²⁸

This study is a quantitative and functional corpus-based study of self-mention in soft and hard science master theses. One important purpose of this study was to find out the functions of self-mention in soft and hard science master theses. For this purpose, 40 soft and hard science master theses in eight disciplines were randomly selected out of the library of four top universities. Five master theses were selected in each discipline, in a period of seven years (2007-2014). This study analyzed only the discussion section of master theses. The quantitative analysis of the corpus showed that the frequency of the various forms of self –mention in soft science is higher than hard science master theses. Based on Tang and John's (1999) taxonomy of the discourse roles of personal pronouns, self- mentions were also functionally analyzed. The finding of the functional dimension of the present study showed that the most frequent discoursal role of self-mentions in the corpus was the recounter of research process, whereas the least frequent role was originator.

²⁷ davudkuhi@yahoo.com

²⁸ somaye_af@yahoo.com

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM C-2

CULTURAL OR DISCOURSAL PROCLIVITY: ENGAGEMENT IN ACADEMIC WRITING

HUSEYIN KAFES, AKDENIZ UNIVERSITY, TURKEY²⁹
MUSTAFA CANER, AKDENIZ UNIVERSITY, TURKEY³⁰

Engagement, one of the key rhetorical features of academic wiring, is the way academic writers explicitly acknowledge the presence of their prospective readers in their texts, through 'reader-mention, personal asides, appeals to shared knowledge, questions and directives'. Despite its importance in enhancing reader involvement in and contribution to the interactional dimension of the reading process, little has been done to probe into the discoursal and/or cultural aspect of it, especially on Turkish academic writers' deployment of engagement. Driven by this apparent need, we, in this qualitative study, aim to investigate, using a specific taxonomy developed by other scholars, the relationship between cultural background and academic engagement in academic writing, drawing on a corpus of 50 English research articles by Turkish and American academic writers. The results draw attention to some interesting differences between the two groups as well as some similarities, few though they are. Discussions and suggestions are made with regard to academic writing

²⁹ hkafes@akdeniz.edu.tr

³⁰ mcaner@akdeniz.edu.tr

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM C-3

USES OF REFERENCE CHAINS IN L1 AND L2 ARGUMENTATIVE WRITINGS: A CORPUS-BASED STUDY OF COHESION AND DIFFERENT LINGUISTIC TRAITS

JUNGYEON KOO, SEOUL NATIONAL UNIVERSITY, KOREA31

Referene Chains (RC) are created largely by the use of personal and demonstrative pronouns, determiners and comparatives, linking elements within a text through anaphoric, and to a lesser extent cataphoric relations (Halliday & Hasan, 1976). In particular, RCs have a great importance because it is related to cohesiveness and coherence, which lead to a good quality of writing (Yang, 1989). I chose thirteen grammatical and lexical items (pronouns, demonstratives, and determiners) of creating cohesion which Halliday refers to as 'cohesive devices'. Nineteen highly advanced college students joined this study. The participants were asked to write an English essay on the first day then Korean one on the fourth day after choosing one of three argumentative topics. The corpora were analyzed by two corpus tools: For Korean writings, I used KLT2000 corpus analysis tool, and for English one, I employed Antconc 3.4.4. The findings are as follows: 1) L1 writings showed small portion of pronouns other than I and we but L2 writings demonstrated large portion of ones, 2) L1 writings demonstrated more use of demonstratives compared to L2 ones, 3) relatively rare use of determiners (definite and indefinite articles) were observed in L1 writings, and 4) overall scores between L1 and L2 writings showed little difference. Based on the results, RC does not play a crucial role in determining the writing quality of Korean compositions. However, RC has a great importance in deciding the overall quality of English writings(Yang, 1989). The difference might be caused by the fact that Korean is one of languages that have neither subject nor object agreements, which regularly allow argument omission like Chinese(Huang, 1984). In addition, Korean is "discourse oriented language", in which empty arguments can be identified through discourse topics, with less reliance on sentence-internal cues than is the case for "sentence oriented" languages like English(Kwon & Stuart, 2013). This research has pedagogical implications in teaching college students translations/L2 writings (Yuk, 2005). The study also implies that L2 advanced EFL learners reflect their L1 cultural/linguistic features (Uysal, 2012) in their L2 composition and that they might be aware of the differences between two languages.

³¹ christy9@daum.net

DAY 1 30 March 2017 Session 2

14:30-15:15

Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM D written discourses

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM D-1

A CORPUS- BASED STUDY ON EXPRESSION OF EPISTEMIC MODALITY THROUGH THE USE OF LEXICAL VERBS IN ARGUMENTATIVE WRITING

PINAR KARAHAN, ANADOLU UNIVERSITY, TURKEY ³²
GUL DURMUSOGLU-KOSE, ANADOLU UNIVERSITY, TURKEY ³³

This study investigates how Turkish student writers (the first year English Language Teaching Department students) employ lexical verbs as epistemic devices in order to make argumentation in their writing. The research aims to understand the ways in which the use of lexical verbs as epistemic devices by Turkish student writers is compared with the use of these same rhetorical features by American student writers. Two sets of databases (one for the American students and the other for the Turkish students) were analyzed by the researcher in order to compare epistemic lexical verbs between the two groups of students in terms of frequency of use, diversity of use and co-occurrence patterns of some specific lexical verbs. The quantitative aspects of the study were mainly based on frequency counts of lexical verbs and Log-likelihood tests to determine significant differences of use between the two groups of students. The qualitative aspects relied mainly on a close examination of concordance lines. Findings of the study revealed that the Turkish student writers exhibit a more personal and straightforward writing style and they seem to rely more frequently on spoken discourse features compared to their American counterparts. They were also observed to use certain lexical verbs- particularly 'think' and 'believe'- more frequently than the American students.

³² pinarkarahan@anadolu.edu.tr

³³ gdurmuso@anadolu.edu.tr

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM D-2

TRANSITION MARKERS OF CONTRAST IN CHINESE AND ENGLISH UNIVERSITY STUDENT WRITING

SHEENA GARDNER, COVENTRY UNIVERSITY, UK³⁴
CHAO HAN, COVERNTRY UNIVERSITY, UK³⁵

Following research on the transition marker however in the writing of Chinese and English university students (Han and Gardner 2016), this paper will examine the group of ten transition markers (TMs) in the Han CH-EN corpus that belong to Hyland's category of Comparison and that 'mark arguments as different' (Hyland 2005: 50). We call this subset of Comparison markers 'Contrast'. In addition to however, this includes but, while, on the other hand, whereas, in contrast, on the contrary, rather, conversely, and by contrast. The Han CH-EN corpus was created as a subset of the BAWE corpus to investigate the characteristics of L1 Chinese students' academic writing. It includes 78 pairs of texts by L1 Chinese students and L1 English students that are highly matched in terms of discipline, genre and level. In total, 44 transition markers were identified, of which ten belong to the Contrast group. However is the most frequent TM in the Comparison group as a whole, for both Chinese and English writers. It was found to be significantly more frequent in English writing in the discipline of Engineering, and more frequent in English in the Case Study, Methodology Recount and Essay Genre Families. As very few of the Engineering assignments are from the Essay Genre Family (most in Engineering are Methodology Recounts and Design Specifications), distinct rhetorical functions of TM however were identified. In order to investigate whether the significant Chinese-English differences in the use of TM however are balanced by differences in the use of other TMs which have similar function and sense, this research is designed to consider the use of the other TMs in the Contrast group. It emerged that four of the remaining nine TMs in the Contrast group (while, on the other hand, whereas, in contrast) are used significantly more by Chinese writers. This paper provides details of their distribution and use. Anecdotal evidence, and our extensive experience as teachers of EFL, both suggest that as these TMs have similar functions and sense, L1 Chinese students can be slightly confused about their accurate use. This research thus also aims to clarify where exactly the source of such confusion might lie.

³⁴ ab1248@coventry.ac.uk

³⁵ hanc4@uni.coventry.ac.uk

DAY 1- SESSION 2- ROOM D-3

A METADISCURSIVE INVESTIGATION OF ENGLISH AND PERSIAN ACADEMIC ARTICLES

AIDA ARIANNEJAD, EASTERN MEDITERRANEAN UNIVERSITY, CYPRUS³⁶ ÜLKER VANCI OSAM, EASTERN MEDITERRANEAN UNIVERSITY, CYPRUS³⁷

Recently many academic genre analysts have focused on exploring the differences between the discursive patterns, reader-writer relationships, and argumentation methods used by native speakers of different languages in different disciplines (Basturkmen, 2012; Gillaerts, & Van de Velde, 2010; Kim, & Lim, 2013; Salar, & Ghonsooly, 2016). However, due to the diversity of disciplines, there are still many overlooked academic fields whose rhetorical patterns need to be explored. One of the fields which is widely ignored in genre analysis studies is architecture, and there is a clear need to explore the rhetorical features of architecture articles written in both English and other languages. Thus the researchers of the present study intend to explore the rhetorical features as well as the differences between English and Persian academic articles in the field of architecture by drawing on Hyland's (2005) 'interpersonal model' of metadiscourse markers in academic texts. To this end, the use of interactional metadiscourse markers by the two groups of English and Persian academic writers is investigated through analyzing the "post method" sections of 100 articles (50 Persian articles written by Iranian writers and 50 English articles written by English writers). The compiled corpora is analyzed through Wordsmith (6th version) concordance program. In the next phase, the results are followed by discussions on culture-specific characteristics of English and Persian articles. Finally, the research concludes with some pedagogical implications for English for Academic Purposes (EAP) teachers and material developers in this field.

³⁶ ida.ariannejad@gmail.com

³⁷ ulker.osam@emu.edu.tr

DAY 1 30 March 2017 Session 3 16:00-17:15 Metadiscourse Across Genres Mapping out interact ROOM At written discourses

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM A-1

HEDGES AND BOOSTERS IN SUPERVISORY DISCOURSE: A CASE STUDY

FATMA GUMUSOK, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY 38

Post-teaching conferences in teacher education programs draw particular attention as institutional talk. The hierarchical positioning of student teachers and supervisors in the supervision system has driven researchers to focus on supervisors' speech and investigate their discourse since supervisors are considered to be the source of power. Although supervisors are considered as superior to student teachers, which may lead to uncensored supervisor talk, it is seen that supervisors try to mitigate their speech as much as possible in order create a positive atmosphere (Vasquez, 2004; Wajnryb, 1994, as cited in Bailey, 2006). In addition, in most of the contexts, student teachers attend these conferences as a pair/group, this platform becomes public and more dynamic, which may drive supervisors to filter their speech. In that sense, this study examines the discourse of a supervisor in postteaching conferences. More specifically, this case study tries to demonstrate qualitative and quantitative analyses of the functions of hedges and boosters in supervisor talk as a politeness marker. The naturally occurring data for this study come from 145 minutes-long post-teaching conference sessions. These conferences occurred within the context of an English medium university's foreign language teacher education program in Turkey. The supervisor held four conferences with ten student teachers in Turkish, their native language. The transcription of video recordings will be analyzed quantitatively to count the frequency of hedges and boosters, and qualitative analysis will be conducted regarding their functions. The results will demonstrate a supervisor's utilization of hedges and boosters in postteaching conferences, which may drive other teacher educators to examine and reflect on their own practices.

³⁸ fatmagumusok@gmail.com

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM A-2

CONTRASTIVE GENRE ANALYSIS OF ACADEMIC BOOK REVIEWS OF LINGUISTICS IN ENGLISH AND ARABIC

YOUCEF BENCHEIKH, KASDI MERBAH UNIVERSITY OUARGLA, ALGERIA 39

The present paper is a contrastive genre study which investigates the rhetorical structure together with the act of praise and criticism in academic book reviews (henceforth, BRs) of linguistics written by L1 experts of English and Arabic. The corpus consists of 20 BRs, 10 each language, elicited from two reputable journals: Journal of Linguistics and الرجامعة حول يات (Annales de l'Université Tunisienne). The study adopts two models as analytic الْـ تُودَ سدية frameworks: Motta-Roth's (1998) rhetorical model of academic BRs moves and Hyland's (2000) model of praise and criticism, respectively. The overall aim is to test whether, in view of cultural differences reflected in the Anglo-Saxon and Arab intellectual style and the disciplinary culture of linguistics, the rhetorical organization hand in hand with the act of praise and criticism in the academic BRs would vary between the aforementioned languages. The results show that, though the Motta-Roth's (1998) model captures the macro structure of academic BRs, it fails to account for additional constituents that were employed by the reviewers. Move 1: Introducing the book and move 4: Providing closing evaluation was present in all the BRs. Nevertheless, they were realized differently. The Anglo-Saxon reviewers favour the first two sub-functions of move 1. On the contrary, the Tunisian reviewers have tendency to employ the last sub-function of this move. With respect to move 4, the Anglo-Saxon reviewers adopt a recommendatory approach while the Tunisians have less and/or no tendency to recommend the reviewed book. The common feature is found in the treatment of move 2: Outlining the book and move 3: Highlighting parts of the book. The two languages reviewers tend to keep separate these two moves and not to fuse them as reported in previous studies. Further, outlining the book was the only move deleted in the selected BRs. The linguistic analysis of the acts of praise and criticism shows that the two languages employ number of strategies to realise these acts. Regarding the use positive adjectives as a strategy to communicate praise, the analysis reveals that both the English and Arab reviewers utilize positive adjectives in the opening and closing sections of their reviews: useful, valuable, excellent, interesting, and important were frequent in the English BRs. مهر ، څ ري (ة)طري ف , and مه were recurrent adjectives in the Arabic ones. Concerning criticism, the epistemic verb seem and the modal verb might were frequently used in the English BRs to mitigate criticism. On the other hand, The Arab reviewers opt for ي بدو and in addition to praise-criticism pair in order to tone down their criticism. The findings of the present study show the efficacy of multi-level analysis in arriving at a thorough description of a given genre. They also fill in the gap in the rhetorical studies of the Arabic academic discourse. Further, these findings may be of use for EAP teachers to include this genre in their academic writing courses to develop their students' critical and effective writing and

³⁹ Linguisticsgate@gmail.com

reading competencies. Would-be-researchers who are to write BRs for local and/or international academic journals might benefit from the present findings.

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM A-3

A COMPARATIVE STUDY ON ATTITUDE AND ENGAGEMENT MARKERS IN HOTEL REVIEWS IN ENGLISH AND TURKISH

CIGDEM KARATEPE, ULUDAG UNIVERSITY, TURKEY40

The purpose of this work is to report on some initial findings of the usage of 'attitude markers and engagement markers' (Hyland 2005) in negative reviews of hotels on the website, TripAdvisor in Turkish and English. The data consists of two sets of 100 reviews in both languages. The entries in Turkish corpus are much shorter than the ones in the English corpus. Not much information about authors exists. The analysis shows that a significant proportion of negative reviews in both groups co-occurs with some positive comments such as praising the location of the property. Many of the non-Turkish reviewers appear to have been careful about the image of both the country and the Turkish tourism industry. That is, they show positive attitudes towards Turkey and Turkish people in general. Besides, some reviewers in both groups did their best to make sure that this particular hotel was not a good representative of the industry. A small number of reviewers preferred making some sarcastic comments on the quality of features and the services offered. Some Turkish reviewers claimed that members of staff at hotels somewhat favoured foreigner customers. Some just reported that the place was suitable for tourists. A small number of Turkish authors also made negative remarks openly about fellow tourists coming from particular countries. Both groups of authors expressed their evaluation as a speech act 'recommendation and suggestion'. Majority of authors in both groups attempted to engage with their readers by not recommending the hotel and suggested that the readers should stay somewhere else. They tended to compare the accommodation with other hotels. In face-to-face interaction, complaining is performed delicately. It is avoided when possible to protect the image of the complaining party and the addressee. However, online platforms like TripAdvisor provide a space where authors and addressees are anonymous. This gives them some kind of freedom to express their opinions in quite a blunt way. They blamed the hotel, the circumstances and the travel agency in both directly and indirectly. The data is rich with unmitigated complaints, which can be investigated as a defining characteristic of this type of text.

_

⁴⁰ cigdem.karatepe@gmail.com

DAY 1 30 March 2017 Session 3

16:00-17:15 letadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM B written discourses

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM B-1

EPISTEMIC MODAL MARKERS AS POTENTIAL SOURCES OF INTERPRETATION BIAS IN TRANSLATED MEDICAL ABSTRACTS

HANNA MARTIKAINEN. PARIS 7 UNIVERSITY. FRANCE 41

Epistemic modal markers are frequent in medical discourse (Salager-Meyer, 1992 and Vold, 2006), as they are used to construct the rhetorical strategies of hedging and boosting through which authors position themselves on the continuum of (un)certainty. The choice of these expressions is dictated, among others, by the communicative purpose of the discourse and the level of claim the authors wish to make (Salager-Meyer, 1996). Research article abstracts serve as a basis for medical decision-making (Yavchitz, 2015). communicative function is the accurate transmission of research results into medical practice. In Cochrane medical abstracts, epistemic modal markers such as 'probably' or 'may' are used to convey different levels of proof and confidence in the results (Glenton, Santesso, Rosenbaum, Nilsen, Rader, Ciapponi & Dilkes, 2010) The use of hedging and boosting strategies differs between English- and French-language authors, the latter having a reputation for being less hedged and more affirmative than the former (Salager-Meyer, Ariza & Zambrano, 2003). These differences in modalisation strategies are also reflected in translations from English to French, and crucial in the correct decoding of the target language (Pilegaard, 1997). The modal auxiliary 'may', for instance, is used in medical abstracts as an epistemic as well as evidential marker (Alonso-Almeida & Cruz-García, 2011). In the Cochrane abstracts corpus compiled for our preliminary study (Martikainen, 2017), 'may' is translated mainly (49%) by the indicative mode of the verb 'pouvoir', which is naturally more affirmative than the conditional mode used in 35% of the cases. The first translation solution is therefore likely to positively bias readers' interpretation of results, in regard of the level of certainty conveyed by 'may'. Using a context-specific typology drafted for this purpose (Martikainen, 2017), we will conduct a corpus study on sources of bias in translated Cochrane abstracts that will establish the frequency of modal sources of bias by type (auxiliaries, epistemic verbs, adjectives and adverbs, modal clusters) and comparatively to other sources of bias, namely certain translation errors. We will also encode their impact (positive/negative) on the level of certainty. We hypothesize that the more affirmative writing style of French scientific discourse will also be perceptible in translated abstracts, in which we expect to see a tendency towards positively biased translations of epistemic modal markers of hedging and boosting.

⁴¹ hanna.martikainen@noos.fr

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM B-2

ADVERBIAL METADISCOURSE DEVICES IN MODERN ENGLISH HISTORY TEXTS (1700-1900)

FRANCISCO JOSÉ ÁLVAREZ-GIL, UNIVERSITY OF LAS PALMAS DE GRAN CANARIA, SPAIN ⁴²

This paper seeks to explore the uses and functions of adverbial metadiscourse devices in history scientific texts from the Modern English period (1700-1900), as compiled in The Corpus of English History Texts, a subcorpus within the Coruña Corpus of English Scientific Writing (University of A Coruña, Spain). There are some interesting attempts to study metadiscourse features in texts from this and earlier periods of the English language (cf. Moskowich and Crespo 2014; Alonso-Almeida and Mele-Marrero 2014; Gray, Biber and Hiltunen 2011). Following this tradition, I focus on adverbials as metadiscourse devices in the sense in Hyland (2005). The main reason to select adverbials as the target linguistic devices of our analysis is based on the fact that there seems to be widespread agreement that adverbials stand as one of the grammatical categories that most clearly contribute to the expression of interpersonal meanings (Biber and Finegan 1988). Their use by eighteenth and nineteenth century writers of history texts will be described so as to characterise them in terms of authorial presence, and to check how authors use those devices to negotiate interactional meanings with their potential readers, mostly colleagues. It will be shown that, depending on the context, they can fulfil several pragmatic functions, such as the indication of different degrees of authorial commitment or detachment towards the information presented, persuasion, and politeness, among others.

⁴² franalvarezgil @gmail.com

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM B-3

ANALYSIS OF STANCE IN THE WRITING OF NON-NATIVE SPEAKER UNIVERSITY STUDENTS IN BUSINESS COMMUNICATION

NEDA AKBARI, UNIVERSITY OF CANBERRA, AUSTRALIA 43

This study draws on the Appraisal framework and on the concept of text orientation to investigate the linguistic resources Russian/Ukrainian-speaking undergraduate students use to project their stance when writing business letters in their foreign language (English). It also investigates whether there is a difference between high-grade (HG) and low-grade (LG) students with respect to the type and frequency of linguistic resources they use to project stance. The findings reveal that, in general, to express their stance, these students make a more frequent use of impersonal subjects, you and we pronouns, Judgement+, Appreciation+, [T-Affect]+, [T-Affect]-, and [T-Judgement]+ than of any other resources. The resources they use assist them in building good will in their interpersonal communication with the audience. The study also reveals that in Letter 1 (a letter containing negative information), HG students use I and [T-Judgement]- less frequently but rely on Appreciation+ more frequently than the LG group. In Letter 2 (a persuasive letter), HG students use impersonal subjects, you pronouns, [T-Affect]+, Judgement+, [T-Judgement]+, and Appreciation+ more frequently but [T-Affect]- less frequently than LG students. These findings suggest that in writing business letters, LG students take an unnecessarily direct and subjective stance that portrays a negative image of the writer and the situation, while HG students appraise the situation more objectively and more positively. The findings are further discussed in light of the students' level of English language proficiency and their understanding of writing in particular disciplines and genres.

-

⁴³ ned.akba@gmail.com

DAY 1 30 March 2017 Session 3

16:00-17:15

Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM: Gd written discourses

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM C-1

'FOLK' METADISCOURSE AND SOCIAL CRITIQUE OF NARRATIVE PRACTICES: THE CASE OF INTERSEX EXPERIENCE

BRIAN KING, CITY UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG, HONG KONG⁴⁴

Intersex people, (i.e. people born with bodies that are not classifiable under a binary male/female construct) are increasingly embracing intersex identities, but intelligibility in society can be difficult to realize because cultural models, language, and discourses serve to render their bodies unintelligible. In response to this quandary, the present study focuses on the metadiscourse of intersex research collaborators in the USA concerning narrative practices and how these practices intersect (or do not) with the intelligibility of intersex experience. Data for discourse analysis is taken from Google Hangout discussions of the Intersex and Language Research Group and supplemented by face-to-face ethnographic interactions. Analysis focuses on the participants' metadiscursive awareness rather than their performance, providing valuable insight into how narrative practices function in their social lives as they work to render their stories 'tellable' in diverse communities of practice for diverse purposes; political, pedagogical and personal. Awareness of communicative practices gives insight into how language use functions as part of their "social economies" (Brown 2006). Participants' assessments of their varied uses of narrative practices suggest a negotiation between the situational 'tellability' of intersex experience and the assertion of various identities, leading to recontextualizations of their stories. Attitudes of the participants towards narrative, which have emerged from their socialization into certain ways of narrating, are revealing and demonstrate that their 'folk' metadiscourse about narrative practices is both ideological and useful (Cameron 2004). In this case it opens up further vistas for the empirical study of narrative.

_

⁴⁴ bwking@cityu.edu.hk

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM C-2

A BROAD STUDY OF THE VARIATION OF KNOWLEDGE-RICH CONTEXTS DEPENDING ON TEXT GENRE AND DOMAIN

LUCE LEFEUVRE, UNIVERSITÉ TOULOUSE - JEAN JAURÈS, FRANCE⁴⁵
ANNE CONDAMINES, UNIVERSITÉ TOULOUSE - JEAN JAURÈS, FRANCE⁴⁶

When building terminological or ontological resources, terminologists or knowledge engineers must be able to understand the important concepts of the domain in question and the semantic or conceptual relations which link them. For that purpose they may rely on specialized corpora and retrieve Knowledge-Rich Contexts. A Knowledge-Rich Context (KRC) is described by Ingrid Meyer (Meyer, 2001) as "a context indicating at least one item of domain knowledge that could be useful for conceptual analysis". It may embed one term and a conceptual relation about this one or two terms linked by a relation (hyperonymy or meronymy for example). The notion of KRC is often linked to the notion of markers of conceptual relations. These markers correspond to lexico-syntactic patterns, typographic or dispositional elements (Auger & Barrière, 2008), that is, metadiscursive elements used more or less consciously by the writer in order to highlight a relation between terms. For example, the marker [X, y compris (DET) Y] can be used to identify a hyperonymic relation, as in: "des douleurs (...) sont traitées par des antalgiques, y compris la morphine et / ou les antiinflammatoires". In this context, "antalgiques" is the hyperonym of the hyponyms "morphine" and "anti-inflammatoires". In the CRISTAL project framework, we identified the French "candidate-markers" (which we have intuitively considered as capable to indicate a relation) for three relations (hyperonymy, meronymy, causality) and systematically analyzed their linguistic functioning within corpora varying according to the domain (breast cancer vs. volcanology) and the text genre (popular science texts vs. specialized texts). More than 10 000 contexts containing a candidate-marker have then been analyzed. For each of them, the capacity of the candidate-marker to really indicate the required relation was evaluated. This broad study confirms our hypothesis that KRCs vary depending on these parameters (Aussenac-Gilles & Condamines, 2012; Condamines, 2008; Flowerdew, 1992; Pearson, 1998). We identified the stable KRCs, that is, not depending of the genre or domain, and that can systematically be used in order to spot conceptual relations, versus the KRCs that vary. These observations allow us to correlate the extra-linguistic features characteristic of the text genre and the domain with the observed variation phenomena and to study the "portability" (Marshman, L'Homme, & Surtees, 2008) or "reuse" (Agbago & Barrière, 2005) of these markers, that means the use of markers through different domains or text genres.

⁴⁵ luce.lefeuvre@univ-tlse2.fr

⁴⁶ anne.condamines@univ-tlse2.fr

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM C-3

THE USE OF REPORTING VERBS IN A CORPUS OF RESEARCH PAPERS IN APPLIED LINGUISTICS

SELAHATTIN YILMAZ, YILDIZ TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY⁴⁷
LEYLA MARTI, BOGAZICI UNIVERSITY, TURKEY⁴⁸
YASEMIN BAYYURT, BOGAZICI UNIVERSITY, TURKEY⁴⁹

The choice of a reporting verb is not only a lexical but also a rhetoric one in academic discourse (Bloch, 2010; Rowley-Jolivet & Carter-Thomas, 2014). These verbs can have various functions that show how writers position themselves within their research context or disciplines. The writer can neutrally report previous research or take an evaluative stance towards the cited work or the author (Hyland, 1999, Swales, 1990, Thompson & Yiyun, 1991). There have been numerous studies that addressed reporting verbs in order to explore disciplinary differences in citation practices (Ädel & Garretson, 2006, Charles, 2006, Hyland, 1999) or learner writing in the form of dissertations (Lang, 2004, Zhang, 2008). However, the use of reporting verbs in non-native expert and novice student writing remain unexplored. Therefore, this study aims to compare the use of reporting verbs in 4 different corpora of research papers on foreign language education and/or applied linguistics (1) 30 research articles that were written by native writers of English and published SSCI-indexed journals in native English contexts, (2) 30 articles that were written by Turkish writers of English and published in SSCI-indexed journals in Turkey, (3) 30 research papers written by graduate student, Turkish writers of English, and (4) 40 research papers written by graduate native students. Following Charles (2006) and Friginal (2013), AntConc 3.4.4 was used to extract all reporting that-clauses where reporting verbs were used. The study showed that expertise in writing may play an important role as native and non-native expert writers showed little variation in their reporting practices. Although both native and non-native novice writers were found to differ from expert writers considerably, remarkable differences were found between native expert and non-native novice writers. This finding indicates that being a native speaker becomes less important as the expertise level increases. Furthermore, the findings support the view that non-native writing is discursively hybrid, which is more evident in novice writing. Implications for teaching and researching English for Academic Purposes writing will be discussed.

⁴⁷ selahattin.yilmaz91@gmail.com

⁴⁸ marti@boun.edu.tr

⁴⁹ bayyurty@boun.edu.tr

DAY 1 30 March 2017 Session 3

16:00-17:15

Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM D wri

63

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM D-1

METADISCOURSE IN ENGLISH LANGUAGE TEACHER CANDIDATES' WRITING JOURNALS

LISYA SELONI, ILLINOIS STATE UNIVERSITY, USA 50 NUR YIGITOGLU, BOGAZICI UNIVERSITY, TURKEY⁵¹

Much research in the field of second language (L2) writing studies has been devoted to understanding the needs and experiences of various student writer populations than the current or future teachers of these L2 writers. Hirvela and Belcher's (2007) special issue of the Journal of Second Language Writing (JSLW) "initiate[d] a process of drawing attention to the teacher education realm of the L2 writing field" (p. 126) by highlighting the intersections of teacher education and the writing instruction areas of language, genre, response, and assessment. More recent literature has shed light on how these thematic areas play out in non-U.S. contexts (e.g., Manchón, 2009; Cimasko & Reichelt, 2011) but little is still known about how L2 writing teacher education is shaped and disseminated in global contexts. Aiming to broaden the scope of L2 writing teacher education research, the presenters share preliminary results from a collaborative study on writing teacher education in Turkey where the presenters explore how Turkish EFL teacher candidates develop bilingual genre knowledge and expertise in a first year composition course. The guiding research question of the broader study is: How do Turkish EFL teacher candidates acquire genre knowledge and eventually develop some genre expertise in academic writing in the initial years of their teacher education program? Adopting Hyland's 2004 model of metadiscourse analysis, this presentation focuses on the textual and interpersonal elements (specifically attitude markers and self-mentions) within the reflective writing journals that the teacher candidates were asked to keep at a first year composition course. Some of the guiding questions for these iournals are: What was your assumption about this writing skill/genre? What have you learned about this particular skill/genre this week? How has your previous knowledge helped you to make sense of this skill/genre? Through analyzing the textual elements in these entries, the presenters discuss student writers' attempts to understand the rhetorical expectations of academic writing across genres and their search for a disciplinary identity. The presentation ends with a discussion on how teacher candidates' tacit knowledge about genre-based writing could translate to pedagogical knowledge relevant to their local teaching context.

⁵⁰ Iseloni@ilstu.edu

⁵¹ nur.yigitoglu@boun.edu.tr

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM D-2

AN ANALYSIS OF METADISCOURSE FEATURES IN THE REFLECTIVE WRITING OF STUDENTS IN A COUNSELLING COURSE

BOITUMELO TINYRAMOROKA, UNIVERSITY OF BOTSWANA, BOTSWANA⁵²
BEAUTY BOIKANYO NTEREKE, UNIVERSITY OF BOTSWANA, BOTSWANA⁵³

Reflective writing in higher education has increasingly become an important component of teaching and assessing students. It is used to encourage students to take ownership of their learning and make connections between what they learn in the classroom (theory) and practice. Students are required to examine their beliefs, values, experiences and assumptions about their learning and evaluate their performance. Research suggests that Reflective writing aids deep learning, life-long learning, self- empowerment, critical thinking and metacognition (Sen, 2010; Carlile & Jordan, 2007; Rogers 2001; Moon, 1999) and leads to proficient writing. This study seeks to explore students' use of metadiscourse features in their reflective essays and their apparent intentions in using such features. The data for this study were a text analysis of students' assessed reflective essays they produced in a counselling course. The aim of the study is to better understand how reflective writing as a genre influences the choices students make in the use of metadiscourse features , which features occur frequently and how the features are used. The implications for teaching this genre will be discussed. The findings will inform the teaching of the genre and help develop students' awareness of metadiscourse features to make their writing more effective.

⁵² ramorokab@mopipi.ub.bw

⁵³ beauty.ntereke@mopipi.ub.bw

DAY 1- SESSION 3- ROOM D-3

INCORPORATING METADISCOURSE INSTRUCTION INTO EFL READING CLASSES: ITS EFFECTS AND STUDENTS' PERCEPTION

ZAHRA ZARRATI, UNIVERSITY OF APPLIED SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY, IRAN⁵⁴ RADHA NAMBIAR, NATIONAL UNIVERSITY OF MALAYSIA, MALAYSIA⁵⁵ TENGKU NOR RIZAN TENGKU MOHAMAD MAASUM, NATIONAL UNIVERSITY OF MALAYSIA, MALAYSIA⁵⁶

Iranian EFL students entering university face many difficulties reading and comprehending their academic materials. They tend to rely mostly on lower level text processing strategies like word for word translation and syntactic decoding which are not sufficient and effective strategies required to read and comprehend academic texts at tertiary level. One way to help these students cope with their academic reading materials is to teach them higher level text processing strategies that help them in getting the overall meaning of a text. The present study investigated the effect of teaching metadiscourse strategies on students' reading comprehension performance and explored this effect from the students' point of view. Using a quasi-experimental research design, 57 undergraduates received metadiscourse instruction in their reading classes. The analysis of data indicated that students in the experimental group outperformed their counterparts on a post reading comprehension test. The analysis of a questionnaire revealed that most students with different levels of language proficiency believed that the intervention was beneficial to them in many ways. The findings of this study suggest that in order to help students become better text processors, EFL reading instructors incorporate metadiscourse instruction into their reading classes.

⁵⁴ zaratizz@yahoo.com

⁵⁵ radha.ukm@gmail.com

⁵⁶ tntm@ukm.mv

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 4 10:45-12:00 Metadiscourse Across Genres ping out interact ROOM Ad written discourses

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM A-1

METADISCOURSE IN ACADEMIC WRITING: A COMPARISON OF RESEARCH ARTICLES AND BOOK REVIEWS

MELIKE BAS, AMASYA UNIVERSITY, TURKEY⁵⁷
BETUL BAL-GEZEGIN, AMASYA UNIVERSITY, TURKEY⁵⁸

Interpersonal metadiscourse markers are employed to create an interaction between text users. In writing, these markers help the writers to enhance the readers' involvement with the text, to claim solidarity with the reader, and to control the level of personality in the text. The significance of interactive metadiscourse features in written discourse has been underscored in many recent studies, which show how writers interact with the readers. The purpose of this comparative study is to investigate the deployment of interactional metadiscourse features in two different genres. For this purpose, 24 research articles and 24 book reviews written by Turkish academic writers of English from various disciplines were randomly selected to investigate how the conclusion sections of these two text types are constructed in regards to metadiscourse features. Drawing on Hyland's (2005) metadiscourse framework, hedges, boosters, attitude markers, self-mentions and engagement markers were identified in both of the sub-corpora with the help of a corpus tool. Based on the contrastive analysis, attitude markers and boosters were observed to differ between two genres. Close examination reveals that these variations derive from genre-specific features. Since book reviews are expected to provide critical evaluation of the book, they were found to include a rich variety of particularly attitudinal markers. Similarly, since the conclusion sections of the book reviews include a high number of positive evaluations of the book, boosters describing the book were observed to occur more frequently than research articles. This study not only offers a detailed account of interactional metadiscourse in these two genres, but also illustrates how interpersonal connections are accomplished for particular purposes in different academic texts. The findings of this study may render some pedagogical implications for ESP courses and especially writing research papers.

⁵⁷ melikebas07@gmail.com

⁵⁸ betulbal@gmail.com

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM A-2

EVALUATIVE MARKERS IN THE BOOK REVIEWS PUBLISHED IN THE PAKISTANI ENGLISH NEWSPAPERS

ATTEYA SHAHNAZ, NATIONAL UNIVERSITY OF MODERN LANGUAGES, PAKISTAN⁵⁹

WASIMA SHEHZAD, AIR UNIVERSITY, PAKISTAN60

Review genres (movie reviews, drama reviews, restaurant reviews, ceremony reviews, talk show reviews and book reviews) comprise a significant body of knowledge as they are the simpler, easily accessible and less time-consuming mean of getting preliminary and useful information about the things being reviewed. Book reviews published in academic journals have been widely studied for the patterns of their moves and evaluative markers. However not much attention has been given to the study of book reviews published in newspapers which carry much significance because of the role they play in the promotion of a newly published book and in shaping their readers' opinion about whether to buy the book for detailed reading or no. Hence, this article focuses on the study of evaluative markers as found in the book reviews published in the Pakistani English newspapers. Naturally occurring corpus of 162 book reviews from seven different Pakistani English newspapers (The Nation, Pakistan Observer, Daily Times, Pakistan Today, The News International and Dawn) is taken for this research. These are the daily national newspapers accredited by All Pakistan Newspapers Society (APNS). Detailed manual analysis of the third and the fourth moves (the two evaluative moves) of Motta-Roth's model (1995a) as found in the Pakistani English newspaper book reviews has been done and all the evaluative markers have been noted down. The analysis of these evaluative markers has been done both qualitatively as well as quantitatively. The qualitative analysis has dealt with finding out all the positive and negative evaluative markers (including adjectives, adverbs, nouns, verbs, noun phrases, prepositional phrases and clauses) as found in the 162 Pakistani English newspaper book reviews. In the quantitative analysis, each book review has been tagged as having positive, negative, neutral evaluation or a combination of any of the three types of evaluation. The results have shown that the evaluation of the books in the Pakistani English newspaper book reviews is mostly positive, one principal reason of which is the inherent promotional character of these book reviews in comparison to the book reviews published in the academic iournals.

⁵⁹ atteya.numl@gmail.com

⁶⁰ wasima@mail.au.edu.pk

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM A-3

METADISCOURSE IN BRITISH AND SAUDI NEWSPAPER COLUMN WRITING: NATIVE / NON-NATIVE DIFFERENCES IN LANGUAGE USE

AESHAH ALSUBHI, UNIVERSITY COLLEGE CORK, IRELAND⁶¹

Metadiscourse is a relatively new concept, which has received a growing interest in linguistic/discourse research. This paper seeks to examine the use of metadiscourse markers in newspaper opinion columns written by British and Saudi columnists. Metadiscourse was explored in a corpus of 320 opinion columns totaling 206,461 words, 160 columns written by British writers and 160 columns by Saudi writers. The corpus was selected from four elite newspapers, the British The Times and The Guardian, and the Saudi ones The Saudi Gazette and The Arab News. Drawing on Hyland's (2005) model of metadiscourse, the study has identified which metadiscourse categories predominate in this type of newspaper discourse and how they are distributed according to cross-linguistic preferences. Results confirmed that there were 33,754 metadiscourse tokens in the corpus, an average of 105.49 occurrences per opinion column or 3 elements of metadiscourse in every 25 words in each of the two corpora: British and Saudi. Results also revealed that both groups of writers used high frequencies of metadiscourse elements in their opinion articles, with British writers tending to use more interactional metadiscourse markers than Saudi writers, while the reverse is true for Saudi writers. In addition, results showed that transitions stand out as the most frequently used sub-category of metadiscourse in both corpora, as they comprise 80% of all the interactive resources. Statistically significant differences were also found between the two groups with British columnists using more frame markers, boosters, and engagement markers, and Saudi columnists using more transitions, attitude markers, and code glosses. English writers were more cautious (using more hedges), more certain (using more boosters), and more personal and visible (using more self-mentions) compared to Saudi writers. In contrast, Saudi writers employed far more interactive metadiscourse markers, with much higher use of transitions and code-glosses. In most of the cases, results were consistent with previous research of metadiscourse. The study reported that metadiscourse is a useful concept in the journalistic discourse of opinion columns because, through its devices, it helps to expose the presence of a writer, organize the text, facilitate communication, aid comprehension, and allow the writer to build a relationship with readers.

⁶¹ Aeshahcork2012@gmail.com

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 4 10:45-12:00 Metadiscourse Across Genres Mapping out interact ROOM B written discourses

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM B-1

METADISCOURSE MARKERS IN ENGLISH AND SPANISH JOURNALISTIC TEXTS: A CONTRASTIVE ANNOTATION STUDY

JULIA LAVID, UNIVERSIDAD COMPLUTENSE DE MADRID, SPAIN⁶²
LARA MORATÓN, UNIVERSIDAD COMPLUTENSE DE MADRID, SPAIN⁶³

As part of a larger research effort on the multidimensional annotation of different genres of the contrastive English-Spanish MULTINOT corpus (Lavid et. al. 2015), and as an extension of previous work on the analysis of metadiscourse markers in the journalistic genre of Letters to the editor in English and Spanish (Lavid and Moratón 2015), in this paper we report on the contrastive annotation of metadiscourse markers in a subpart of this corpus, consisting of sixty-two journalistic texts -sixteen news reports, sixteen editorials and twenty letters to the editor- evenly divided into English and Spanish texts, all of them collected from British and Spanish high-circulation newspapers between 2009 and 2013 and preprocessed with the GATE platform (Cunningham et al. 2002). Using Hyland's distinction into interactive and interactional markers as the basis for our annotation scheme, our analysis reveals interesting generic and language-specific variation in the distribution of interactive and interactional metadiscourse markers in the three journalistic genres and provides some possible explanations for the results obtained. Thus, it was found that interactional markers (both Stance and Engagement) are mainly used in Editorials and Letters to the Editor, but with a very low frequency in News Reports, probably due to the fact that in this genre, writers must be 'impartial' and 'objective' and avoid - or at least minimize - showing their interpersonal involvement in the text's construction. It was also found that evidentials are used more frequently in News reports and Editorials in comparison with Letters to the Editor, probably due to the tendency to rely on other sources for attribution of information; transition markers are used differently depending on the text's communicative purpose: higher frequency of temporal markers in News Reports in English and Spanish in comparison with Editorials and Letters; high frequency of adversative markers in English Editorials vs Additive in Spanish, and similar frequency of cause, concession, adversative markers in Letters to the editor. As to interactional features, the annotation revealed that Editorials and Letters to the editor present a higher proportion of interactional markers in both languages, although the Spanish letters present a higher degree of engagement in comparison with the English ones. These results reveal that the interactive and the interactional metadiscourse markers are valid categories which can be fruitfully used for characterising and distinguishing different journalistic genres in English and Spanish.

⁶² lavid@filol.ucm.es

⁶³ laramoraton@ucm.es

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM B-2

MAPPING VOICE IN TWO ACADEMIC BUSINESS WRITING GENRES

ANNE ISAAC, UNIVERSITY OF NEW SOUTH WALES, CANBERRA, AUSTRALIA⁶⁴

Documented and anecdotal evidence suggests that students find discipline specific uses of genres and register difficult to recognise and negotiate (Bhatia & Bremner, 2012), adding to their struggle to express a credible disciplinary voice or identity in their writing (Hyland, 2012). The proposed paper is set in the context of postgraduate Business studies and of a research project designed to investigate interdisciplinary differences and similarities in knowledge-making and academic writing practices, particularly in the disciplines of Human Resource Management, Management/Leadership, Marketing, Organizational Behaviour, and Strategic Management. Data collection is ongoing: the corpus currently comprises 35 texts, spanning eight disciplines and ten assessment genres. This paper reports the findings of an in-depth analysis of a sub-set of the Marketing data, namely, three native English speaking students' argumentative essays and a total of nine of their online forum contributions, at three grade levels. The key analytical tool is a model of voice I have developed (Isaac, 2012), with voice defined as the writer's self-portrayal and construction of a relationship with the projected reader. The model draws on Systemic Functional Linguistic theories of genre (Martin, 1984) and register (Halliday & Matthiessen, 2005) and the interpersonal Appraisal and Involvement systems (Martin & White, 2005); and, from a Pragmatic perspective, on self- and reader-references and other metadiscoursal resources (Hyland, 2005, 2007). Appraisal maps evaluative resources that more or less authoritatively or persuasively express the writer's stance towards the subject matter and projected reader, aligning and/or disaligning the latter in relation to the writer's argument. Involvement includes specialised and technical terms, that assist academic writers to negotiate disciplinary affiliation. The analysis results highlight how configurations of interpersonal and metadiscoursal resources differ across and within genres, shaping the voices and impression of authority projected by the student writers, their relationship with readers and the effectiveness of their writing. The study contributes to existing research on voice and stance across disciplines and genres (e.g. Chattergee, 2007; Delahunty, 2012; Fløttum, 2007; Hood, 2010; Hyland & Sancho-Guinda, 2012; Sanderson, 2008; Swain, 2007), extending the Appraisal framework and providing insights for teaching Business Communication skills.

73

⁶⁴ Anne.lsaac@uni.canberra.edu.au

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM B-3

GENERALITY AND CERTAINTY IN UNDERGRADUATE WRITING OVER TIME

LAURA AULL, WAKE FOREST UNIVERSITY, USA

Although there is increasing attention to undergraduate writing in corpus-based research, there are still few studies that examine stance in undergraduate writing by both L1 and L2 students. Instead, corpus-based research on academic stance tends to focus on advanced and developing L2 writers. It also tends to treat epistemic stance markers as related to certainty--how true a statement is--without separately examining generality--the extent to which a statement can be generalized. Based on a corpus linguistic analysis of writing by 168 undergraduate students over four years of university writing instruction in different disciplines, this study examines certainty and generality as overlapping but distinct aspects of academic stance and considers to what extent these aspects of stance change over the course of four years of students' undergraduate learning.

DAY 2

31 March 2017 Session 4

10:45-12:00

MetadiscROOM Con written discourses

1月日の下水

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM C-1

AUTOMATIC CLASSIFICATION OF METADISCOURSE AS USED IN PRESENTATIONAL SETTINGS

RUI CORREIA, LANGUAGE TECHNOLOGIES INSTITUTE - CARNEGIE MELLON UNIVERSITY, PORTUGAL⁶⁵

NUNO MAMEDE, IST/INESC-ID LISBOA, PORTUGAL⁶⁶

This paper addresses issues related to the function of metadiscourse in English spoken language, more specifically in a presentational setting, where it is used "to help the listener [...] organize, interpret and evaluate the information given" (Crismore et al., 1993). The objective of the current work is twofold: to collect a corpus of metadiscourse and to provide machine learning solutions to automatically classify the phenomenon. On the first front, we describe the collection of a freely available corpus of metadiscursive acts in spoken language. 180 randomly chosen English TED talks were annotated via crowdsourcing using 16 categories of metadiscourse. These categories were adapted from Ädel (2010), accounting for which metadiscursive functions are used in TED talks. We describe the crowdsourcing setup, including training and quality control considerations. The collected data is evaluated in terms of quantity of occurrences, inter-annotator agreement, and annotation related measures (such as average time on task and self-reported confidence). To further assess the collected material, a subset of the annotations was submitted to expert appreciation, who validated which of the marked occurrences truly correspond to instances of the metadiscursive act at hand. The second part of this work relates to using the aforementioned annotations in order to train classifiers that detect and assign a function to occurrences of metadiscourse in presentation transcripts. This task was strategically divided in two steps: the training of Support Vector Machines to generate a list of candidate sentences that can contain metadiscourse; and applying Conditional Random Fields to those candidates to detect the exact terms used by the speaker for the corresponding act. The performance analysis of this classification chain is discussed with respect to two possible applications: as an aid to common Natural Language Processing tasks (such as summarization and topic detection), and as part of a presentational skills curriculum. In the former, the tradeoff between precision and recall can be explored and, ultimately, be a tuning parameter of the classifiers. On the other hand, in a learning setting precision is valued over recall, since it is imperative not to present incorrect material to students.

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM C-2

⁶⁵ rcorreia@andrew.cmu.edu

⁶⁶ nuno.mamede@inesc-id.pt

AUTOMATIC ANALYSIS OF META-DISCOURSE ON UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT WRITING ACROSS GENRES

DUYGU BEKTIK, THE OPEN UNIVERSITY, UK67

Argumentation is a key requirement of successful writing, which is the most common genre that undergraduates have to write. Students need to present and pursue well-reasoned and strong arguments through scholarly argumentation, which is articulated by meta-discourse. Today, there are some natural language processing systems which automatically detect authors' rhetorical moves in scholarly texts. Therefore, students and educators could benefit from the available automated textual analysis that can detect rhetorical meta-discourse. However, there is a need to validate such technologies in higher education contexts, since they were originally developed in non-educational applications. The studies presented in this paper investigates to what extent can the automated rhetorical parsing technology be used to identify indicators of good academic writing in undergraduate student essays from different disciplines. This paper describes an evaluation study of a particular language analysis tool, the Xerox Incremental Parser (XIP) as an exemplar of this type of automated technology, on undergraduate student essays across genres. The XIP detects and labels rhetorically salient sentences in scholarly writing based on the identification of metadiscourse conveying the author's rhetorical strategy. The labels are: SUMMARY, EMPHASIS. BACKGROUND, CONTRAST. NOVELTY, TENDENCY, and OPEN QUESTIONS. The dataset used in this study us The British Academic Written English (BAWE) corpus, a collection of good quality student writing which were marked as either gaining merit or distinction, collected from three universities in England. 1114 texts were collected from 35 disciplines in four broad disciplinary groupings (arts and humanities, life sciences, physical sciences, social sciences), and from students in each of three undergraduate years. These texts were run through the XIP and binary logistic linear regression analysis was carried out with the BAWE dataset; that was processed with the XIP. The results demonstrated that XIP did not perform well on BAWE essays drawn from the pure Physical Sciences but work well with social sciences. Different XIP labels were identified across genres for each student level. The results also demonstrated that the use of meta-discourse devices increases the essay grade; undergraduates use more metadiscourse cues when they get experienced in following years of their studies.

67 duygu.bektik@open.ac.uk

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM C-3

METAPAK: AN EXCLUSIVE CORPUS TOOL FOR METADISCOURSE ANALYSIS

AKHTAR ABBAS, AIR UNIVERSITY, PAKISTAN⁶⁸ WASIMA SHEHZAD, AIR UNIVERSITY, PAKISTAN⁶⁹ HASSAN GHALIB, AIR UNIVERSITY, PAKISTAN⁷⁰

Dependence of Corpus based analyses on computational tools of language is unquestionable these days. Though the analysis of natural language demands involvement of human intuition, the importance of corpus analysis tools cannot be overlooked as they are meant to explore material structure of language with optimum precision and accuracy. Several corpus tools including AntConc and Wordsmith have been developed as an intellectual and skilled nexus of corpus linguistics and computational linguistics in the realm of language studies. However, these generic tools do not fulfill the demand of corpus analysts in some situations demanding cost effectiveness of time and labour. AntConc, for example, produces total hits of concordance of list of searched items through application of advance search option; however, the frequency of individual items are not produced in the same search action. Similarly, Wordsmith tool does not fill this gap also. The software we have developed which we named MetaPak fulfills this gap and explore all the selected items along with their frequencies, concordances and customized normalized values. The tool has been developed to do metadiscourse analysis only based on the interactive and interactional categories proposed by Hyland (2005). The search is made both at the level of category and at an individual-item level. Customized Normalization of value (1000-10,000) has also been added here owing to considering size of corpus. Comparative values of metadiscursive and non-metadiscursive items can also be produced through MetaPak. Though the version is on trial basis but it is being used by us in different projects of metadiscourse with maximum satisfaction. The values generated at one click of self-mention category of Hyland (2005) in one of the tested files are as follows:

me426.2180768376637797024206080000the authors00
the researcher101.4804944851580427862906210000
the writer00
my558.142719668369235324598416000
the writers0.1480494485158042786290620000
us578.438818565400843881856540000
i17826.352801835813161595973055000
the researchers0.8882966910948256717743730000
mine0.2960988970316085572581240000
the author40.5921977940632171145162480000
our314.5895329039899326375009250000
we7.8466207713376267673402920000

⁶⁸ asharabbas83@gmail.com

⁶⁹ wasima.shehzad@yahoo.com

⁷⁰ akhtar.abbas@mail.au.edu.pk

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 4 10:45-12:00 Metadiscourse Across Genres Mapping out interact ROOM D written discourses

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM D-1

WRITER-READER INTERACTION: WRITER POSITIONING IN MA TEFL THESES WRITTEN BY BRITISH AND EGYPTIAN STUDENTS

HOSAM DARWISH, UNIVERSITY OF BEDFORDSHIRE, UK71

Metadiscourse embodies interaction between writers, text and readers. This interaction involves positioning. Boosters, hedges and self-mentions are three main features of Hyland's (2005) model of intersubjective positioning that writers use to express their judgments and presence in the text in a balanced way taking into account their readers' objections, beliefs and rhetoric expectations. Writers' lingua-cultural variations may affect writers' employment of these metadiscoursal markers. The paper aims to compare tokens and types of boosters, hedges and self-mentions written by MA postgraduate Egyptian students with (Arabic L1) at Egyptian universities with their English native writer counterparts in British universities. Thirty theses (discussion chapter) were searched electronically using Text Inspector tool (Bax, 2011) to identify patterns of boosters, hedges and self-mentions. Furthermore, discoursebased interviews were conducted with ten postgraduate Egyptian students of the text writers to investigate Egyptian writers' awareness of the functions of certain boosters, hedges and self-mentions and the factors that could affect their understanding and use. The findings indicate that there are statistical significant differences in terms of hedges and self-mentions between the two groups. The Egyptian writers employed fewer hedges (tokens and types) and self-mentions (tokens) than their English counterparts. The conducted interviews show that Egyptian postgraduate writers have a fuzzy perception of certain metadiscoursal items. Lack of EAP courses, individual knowledge of the genre and institutional practices are found to be the main factors that could affect Egyptian students' use of metadiscourse. The paper concludes with some pedagogical implications for EFL Egyptian and Arab students' academic writing instruction that may contribute to raise EFL Arab students' awareness of these norms of metadiscourse so as to adjust their writing practices and meet disciplinary readers' expectations.

_

⁷¹ hos_dar@yahoo.com

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM D-2

A STUDY OF INTERACTIONAL METADISCOURSE FEATURES IN TEXTS WRITTEN BY UNDERGRADUATE STUDENTS AT THE UNIVERSITY OF BOTSWANA

BOITUMELO TINY RAMOROKA, UNIVERSITY OF BOTSWANA, BOTSWANA⁷²

In recent years there has been an increased emphasis on the interpersonal function of metadiscourse features in academic texts. This means that research on writing in academic contexts began to focus on the rhetorical features, such as interactional metadiscourse, that writers use to present their voice in writing. These developments in academic writing have also considered the socio-cultural context in which specific genres are produced. Using a multiple-methods approach to genre analysis, this article compares students' use of interactional metadiscourse features to present voice in two undergraduate courses, Media Studies and Primary Education at the University of Botswana. A total of 40 student essays (70 397 words corpus) were analysed using a computerised text analysis program, (Wordsmith Tools version 5). Interviews with students and lecturers in the two departments were also done to understand the socio-cultural context in which the essays were produced. The comparison of interactional metadiscourse features in the two corpora indicated that interactional metadiscourse markers were present, but that there were variations in the use and distribution of these features by the learners. Contextual information shows that such variations reflect the different values and beliefs about academic writing of the discourse communities that students belong to. These values and beliefs can be problematic for EAP tutors who have to prepare students for writing in the various disciplines in L2 contexts.

-

⁷² ramorokab@mopipi.ub.bw

DAY 2- SESSION 4- ROOM D-3

REVEALING STANCE THROUGH 'INANIMATE SUBJECTS WITH ACTIVE VERBS' IN TURKISH AND ENGLISH RESEARCH ARTICLE ABSTRACTS

HAMIDE CAKIR, NIGDE UNIVERSITY, TURKEY73

Scientific discourse bears some unique linguistic features. The use of inanimate subjects with active verbs is one of the linguistic devices in academic writing (Baker, 1996; Hunston 1989, 1993, 1994; Hyland, 1996; Johns, 2001; Low, 1999; Master, 1991, 2001; Mauranen, 2001; Šeškauskiené, 2009) frequently applied to achieve impersonality and objectivity. The present study attempts to analyze lexico-grammatical features in research article abstracts focusing specifically on active verbs with inanimate subjects (e.g., The present study attempts to) to examine how Turkish and English academic writers construct writer's stance. The corpus consists of 720 randomly selected abstracts from the disciplines of economics, sociology, psychology, linguistics, engineering, physics, chemistry and biology. Considering variations in scientific languages across cultures and disciplines, this study presents an analysis of journal article abstracts written in Turkish (n=240) and their corresponding translations into English (n=240) as well as abstracts originally written in English (n=240). Thus, this study sets out to explore the extent to which Turkish and English academic writers in the social and natural sciences use inanimate subjects with active verbs to construct writer's stance in the abstracts of their papers. The findings indicate cross-linguistic and cross-disciplinary similarities and differences. The results revealed that an objective stance was established in Turkish as well as in English parallel abstracts by frequently referring to inanimate subjects. English original abstracts, however, highlighted the authoritative stance and competition for space in the scientific discourse community with a more frequent use of personal pronouns matched by a high use of active voice. In addition, disciplinary comparisons revealed that abstracts in the soft sciences frequently referred to inanimate subjects, whereas hard sciences more frequently prefered the passive voice. Consequently, it could be concluded that lexico-grammatical choices constructing writer's stance are determined by cultural and disciplinary writing expectations.

-

⁷³ hamide.cakir@nigde.edu.tr

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 5

13:00-15:00 Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM A written discourses

83

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM A-1

DIFFERENT AUDIENCES, DIFFERENT WRITING: IMPROVING GENRE IN POPULAR SCIENCE AND ACADEMIC WRITING AMONG GRADUATE STEM STUDENTS

TZIPORA RAKEDZON, TECHNION- ISRAEL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, ISRAEL 74 AYELET BARAM-TSABARI, TECHNION- ISRAEL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY, ISRAEL 75

The role of genre is well documented to properly function at work and in academia (Swales, 1990; Hyland, 2007). Specifically, in the field of science, genres such as the scientific research article are imperative in communicating research and promoting one's career. However, to fulfill one's duty of public engagement with science, scientists should share their research with other audiences, including scientists from other fields and industry, policymakers and the public. Research has shown that the public is highly interested in science, and needs science to make informed decisions. Moreover, writing for the public has been correlated with higher academic publishing and citation rates. To measure graduate STEM students' acquisition of genre in an Academic Writing course, we have conducted three projects: The first project (Rakedzon & Baram-Tsabari, 2016) analyzed 177 students' progress in writing academic abstracts and popular science press releases based on their pre- and post-performance tasks rated using a newly developed rubric. The rubric included aspects of text structure, organization and English proficiency, and was based on course material, previous research, and a pilot study. Findings indicated significant improvement in academic and popular science writing, with higher rates of improvement on genre structure compared to English language proficiency. The second project, concentrating on jargon and audience, was designed to aid graduate students and scientists in adapting and writing science for the public by identifying technical jargon. To this end, we have designed a userfriendly program based on a corpus of the BBC online news site that identifies which word may be inappropriate and problematic in a text for specific audience. This program has been validated in previous work and subsequently tested on 888 writing samples from 222 students' work in a science communication intervention in an academic writing course. Results show that while there is an improvement, i.e. use of less jargon in texts for lay public, it is not nearly clearly enough. The third stage of this work will deal with identifying the use of authorial stance and hedging in students STEM pre and posttest writing in popular science and academic writing, comparing their usage between genres and before and after the course.

⁷⁴ hutzipi@gmail.com

⁷⁵ ayelet@technion.ac.il

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM A-2

REVISITING THE METADISCURSIVE ASPECT OF DEFINITIONS IN ACADEMIC WRITING

NESRINE TRIKI, UNIVERSITY OF SFAX, TUNISIA76

In metadiscourse studies, the discourse function of definitions has often been considered as a type of code glossing (Vande Kopple, 1985; Adel, 2006; Hyland, 2007). In Hyland's (2007) model of code glossing, definitions are considered as cases of explanations and are accordingly regarded as reformulations that have expanding power "These are situated clarifications which elaborate the meaning of a preceding unit to make a concept more accessible by providing a gloss or a definition" (Hyland, 2007: 274). As such, definitional segments are thought to be part of the non-propositional side of discourse. Yet, it has been argued that deciding for the metadiscursive aspect of some stretches of language based on the propositional versus non-propositional meaning is not convenient (e.g., Adel 2006; Ifantidou, 2005). Adel (2006), for example, opts for a definition of metadiscursive categories based on their functional characteristics rather than their propositional aspect "The basic discourse functions of metadiscourse are to guide the reader through the text and to comment on the use of language in the text" (Adel, 2006: 20). Definitions in her model could be realized in the two forms of personal and impersonal metadiscourse. These two models for the study and classification of definitional elements however, do not account for definitional units of the type (x = y) where the equal sign generally conflates with the copular verb be and where y stands as a form of gloss or a defining unit to a specific term or concept present in x, generating as such types of classical or formal definitions. These structures seem to be discarded from Hyland's and Adel's respective models because the verb be is not categorized as an explicit metadiscourse marker and does not appear in their lists of search items used with their corpora. Based on their functional similarity with other forms of code glosses signaled by items like define, mean, name etc. these classical definitions make part of the investigation to be carried in this paper. For this, a corpus of 40 research article introductions is compiled from leading journals in two research fields: Applied Linguistics and Computer Science. The corpus yields a total number of 33000 words. The texts are manually annotated using UAM corpus tool software (O'Donnell, 2008). The coding process involves a lexico-grammatical and a functional identification of all definitional segments relying on overt markers of definition like verbs: define, name, call, refer to etc., punctuation signals like brackets and colons and syntactic realizations within relational identifying clauses of the form (x = y) (Harvey, 1999) and embedded relative clauses. Instances of definition are categorized in terms of their structural description, with defined units, defining signals and defining units being described separately. A second classification considers the functional aspect of defining units (Triki, 2014) which yields five broad definitional types that could be in the form of naming, classifying, composition, function or explanation. The overall purpose of such a syntactic and functional classification is to account for the choices made

⁷⁶ nersinetriki@yahoo.com

by academic writers in the soft-hard disciplines and to study the ideational, interpersonal and textual implications those choices could have in research article introductions. Accordingly, the study relies on quantitative and qualitative approaches and draws mainly from the frameworks offered by Systemic Functional Linguistics (Halliday and Matthiessen, 2014), Metadiscourse studies (Hyland, 2005 and 2007; Adel 2006) and Discourse Markers studies (Blakemore, 2002; Fraser, 1999).

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM A-3

KNOWLEDGE AND PROFESSIONAL IDENTITY CONSTRUCTION IN WEBLOGS BY HEALTHCARE PROFESSIONALS

MAŁGORZATA SOKÓŁ, UNIVERSITY OF SZCZECIN, POLAND 77

The ecologies of social media environments have created challenging spaces for the construction and exchange of medical knowledge, and for negotiation of medical professionals' identity. Similarly to other specialist weblogs, the medical weblog genre serves to realize the objectives of educating the non-specialist audience, of the popularization of medical knowledge, and also of self-expression. Following the discoursebased, interactional approaches to modality (e.g. Kärkkäinen 2003; Marín-Arrese et al 2013; Thompson and Alba-Juez 2014) and identity (e.g. de Fina et al 2006; Benwell and Stokoe 2006), and recognising that knowledge is social, relative and contextual (van Dijk 2014), this paper aims to explore epistemic modality expressions in a corpus of Polish academic weblogs run by healthcare professionals. The focus is put on how the employment of epistemic predicates contributes to the negotiation of the medical bloggers' professional identity. For the study of the use of epistemic predicates I draw on Danielewiczowa's (2002) classification of Polish epistemic verbs. More specifically, a qualitative exploration of the use of epistemic predicates allows us to study how medical bloggers construct their professional identity, authority and responsibility in the hybrid institutional context of the digital medium, and how they negotiate their relations with patients. A pilot study has revealed that the variety of epistemic predicates in use reflects medical bloggers' discursive choices in how they disseminate knowledge both within a given epistemic community, across disciplines and to the non-specialist audience. Medical professionals position themselves as expert advice givers who are willing to share knowledge with their non-specialist audience and educate their patients. They authenticate their expertise through references to their own experience and medical practice. In this way, they also aim to minimise the distance between the patients through solidarity and empathy. In general, the study proves that medical bloggers treat their online identity, regardless of whether it is anonymous or not, as an extension of their offline professional self, crafted carefully in order to maintain their good reputation in the potentially threatening and malleable communicative context.

-

⁷⁷ malgorzata.sokol@usz.edu.pl

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 5

13:00-15:00

Metadiscourse Across Genres
Mapping out interactio ROOMarBwritten discourses

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM B-1

AN EXPLORATION OF THE MYSTERIES OF HEDGING IN ACADEMIC WRITING

NILGUN HANCIOGLU-ELDRIDGE, EASTERN MEDITERRANEAN UNIVERSITY, CYPRUS⁷⁸

Scientific research is normally expected to be presented through a precise, factual, impersonal and objective style. In publishing our research, we generally give credit to those who have explored the field before us, formally acknowledge the limits of our own contributions, and lay out directions for future study. Stylistically, skilled academic writers thus defer to the judgement of the wider research community, and mitigate the conclusiveness of their own findings in a language rich in modalities. For researchers whose native language is not English, mastering conventions that are not merely linguistic but also profoundly cultural, is no easy task (Englander, 2013; Hyland, 1995; Jordan, 1997). In avoiding being definitive, and constantly hedging claims, the research findings and conclusions themselves can be undermined. However, in being over-definitive, the research can be highly vulnerable to attack. In other words, 'writers need to invest a convincing degree of assurance in their propositions, yet must avoid overstating their case and risk inviting the rejection of their arguments' (Hyland, 2004, p. 87). There are hence legitimate scientific reasons for hedging, and cultural and linguistic conventions of academic politeness that need to be absorbed and positioning considerations that may come into play. All this represents a complex and ambiguous challenge for any writer, let alone a non-native trying to establish a reputation for high level, original research. In this corpus-informed study, a comparison is conducted between approaches to hedging that emerge in thesis abstracts composed respectively by native speakers of English (post-graduate students in Englishspeaking countries) and non-native speakers of English (post-graduate students at a university in North Cyprus). The outcomes of the study provide some insight as to why, when and how writers from each group may opt to either hedge or be definitive in their claims, and consider the effects of their choices. The presentation concludes with some samples and discussion of how to develop hedging skills in academic writing courses.

⁷⁸ hancioglu.nilgun@gmail.com

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM B-2

A CORPUS-BASED COMPARISON OF ALBANIAN AND ITALIAN STUDENT PAPERS IN L1 AND L2: THE CASE OF HEDGES AND BOOSTERS

VINCENZO DHESKALI, UNIVERSITY OF CHEMNITZ, GERMANY⁷⁹

The conveyance of certainty and uncertainty is crucial to the interactive and rhetorical nature of academic writing. It is relevant because scholars achieve approval by finding the right balance between the investment of statements with the confidence of reliable knowledge and the tentativeness to convey doubt and adequate social interrelations (cf. Hyland 1998: 1). Holmes (1983, 1984, 1990), and Hyland (1998: 1) referred to this as hedges and boosters. The major aim of this comparative study is to investigate the differences and similarities in the usage of hedges and boosters between Albanian and Italian students expressed in their academic writings. Firstly, a separate analysis L1-L2 within the two samples will show the impact of their L1 on their L2. Secondly, a comparison between the two nationalities will reflect the differences and similarities between them. I have compiled two corpora of Italian student writings, respectively in Italian and English, with 3 million words each. Additionally, I have created two corpora of Albanian student writings in Albanian (2.2 million words) and in English (550.000 words). A similar amount of males and females, academic level (for Master and PhD theses) and number of words for each discipline is presented in all corpora with disciplines from soft and hard sciences (Social Sciences, Languages and Literature, Medicine, Chemistry, Physics, Mathematics and Informatics). My mixed-method study will be grounded in the field of epistemic modality. As Toska (2015: 164) stated, very little research (e.g. Toska, Panajoti, Edusei 2015) has been conducted on academic writing by Albanian scholarly circles. That is why it is essential to initiate research in this field and to analyze (culture-) specific features of these two language groups more deeply. First results indicate that Italian students show a higher use of hedges and boosters in their L2 writings compared to the Albanian students.

_

⁷⁹ enzodheskali@hotmail.com

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM B-3

POSITIONING AS SEEN THROUGH HEDGING IN ACADEMIC RESEARCHERS' SPOKEN DISCOURSE

SIXIAN HAH, UNIVERSITY OF WARWICK, UK80

Hedging in academic discourse has been much studied especially in academic writing. The need for researchers to be precise and to word their claims carefully is understandably deeply entrenched in our discursive practices. Greg Myers goes as far as to assert "a sentence (in scientific writing) that looks like a claim but has no hedging is probably not a statement of new knowledge" (1989: 13). Hyland et al have studied disciplinary differences in which hedging and other metadiscourse are mobilised in different academic communities and how researchers' identities are intricately linked with academic writing (Hyland 2012). Whilst most existing studies pertain to hedging in academic writing. I propose to share new insights of how hedging in academic researchers' spoken discourse can shed light on their identities as researchers. This paper examines hedging and ways of mitigation in academic researchers' spoken discourse. This is done through an analysis of interviews with around 20 researchers in the fields of social sciences and humanities in UK institutions. These interviews were carried out with the aim of studying how researchers perceive their research environments. It can be seen that researchers position themselves in various ways in the interviews as they construct their multiple identities as researchers in relation to the fields or disciplines that they want to be seen as working in. This construction of identities or positioning occurs on both utterance and performative levels of their discourse. I found that hedging and mitigation often belie a performative level of the researchers enacting their identities. I argue that certain attempts to mitigate or hedge reveal a dialogue within a dialogue, where the speaker addresses not just his/her immediate interlocutor but some other voices representing larger discourses outside the interview. They sometimes do so by resisting or addressing certain tacit expectations about what it means to be a researcher, or to belong to an academic community. This ongoing need to position oneself or to shift one's position constantly seems to be something that all researchers need to deal with. I would attempt to show how this dialogue within a dialogue could be examined by applying conversation analytic tools (Heritage and Clayman 2010) and polyphonic analysis (Angermuller 2014), inspired by Bakhtinian notions of heteroglossia.

⁸⁰ s.hah@warwick.ac.uk

DAY 2 31 March 2017 **Session 5**

13:00-15:00

Metadisc@COMress Genres

13.70万世

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM C-1

NORMATIVE AND NON-NORMATIVE METADISCOURSE IN THE CLASSROOM 1: HISTORY OF RHETORIC

RICHARD STEADMAN-JONES, UNIVERSITY OF SHEFFIELD, UK 81

This paper discusses the experience of teaching the History of Rhetoric to undergraduate students of English Language and Literature, focusing particularly on the layering of normative and nonnormative metadiscourses within classroom discussions of the field. Students of the History of Rhetoric engage with two types of primary material: historical texts that employ traditional rhetorical techniques (Philip Sidney's poetry, for example) and critical, i.e. metadiscursive, texts which were produced in the same period and which both influenced and responded to the first type of material (texts such as The Arte of English Poesie by George Puttenham). These metadiscursive primary texts have a strongly normative character. Puttenham does not simply describe Sidney's rhetorical practice but evaluates it with reference to concepts such as the 'virtues' and 'vices' of style. In classroom settings, students are required to produce metadisursive talk of their own in response to both kinds of primary text. Since they work within disciplines that are avowedly non-normative in orientation - Stylistics, Narratology, Semiotics - they face the challenge of developing a response to an earlier metadiscourse which was fundamentally different from the one within which they themselves operate. This is conceptually difficult and students take time to develop confidence in negotiating the contrast between historical and contemporary metadiscourses in a way that 'fits' the expectations of the disciplines within which they work. The conceptual difficulty of the task produces further complexity since it requires that teachers themselves engage in metadiscursive commentary on their students' talk and this teacher-produced talk is characterised by its normativity in that its function is to bring students' discourse into line with contemporary disciplinary understandings of how scholars 'should' talk about texts. After outlining these issues, the paper will offer frame-analytic readings of recorded classroom talk and thus explore the process by which students negotiate and develop their understanding of the complex discursive structure of contemporary rhetorical scholarship.

Note: This is submitted as one of a pair of papers. The other is: 'Normative and Non-Normative Metadiscourse in the Classroom 2: Dialect and Literature'. We discussed this with the conference team before submitting.

-

⁸¹ r.d.steadman-jones@sheffield.ac.uk

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM C-2

NORMATIVE AND NON-NORMATIVE METADISCOURSE IN THE CLASSROOM 2: DIALECT AND LITERATURE

JANE HODSON, UNIVERSITY OF SHEFFIELD, UK82

Within the academic field of literary dialect study there has been a move in recent years from discussing dialect representation in terms of linguistic authenticity and towards discussing dialect representation as a form of metadiscourse which "links accent to social persona" (Agha 2003, 247). From a teaching point of view, this shift presents a challenge. In my own institution, students attending seminars on 'Dialect in Literature' are in the third year of a program which aims to equip them with a properly descriptive account of language variation. When the focus is on authenticity in dialect representation, there is a good fit between their linguistic training and the types of analysis they undertake in class. When the focus is on literary dialect as a form of metadiscourse, however, students are required to negotiate several competing layers of metadiscourse. The texts themselves emerge from (and are typically read within) a strongly normative linguistic culture, which privileges Standard English, and interprets nonstandard varieties as 'incorrect' or 'uneducated'. Students have been brought up within this normative way of thinking about language, but have been taught at university to consider it as 'incorrect' and 'nonacademic' and to adopt a non-normative set of metadiscourses. Engaging with literary dialect therefore requires them to access both their normative cultural knowledge and their non-normative linguistic training, recognising how the former shapes readings of literary texts while using the latter to subject those readings to critical analysis. In this paper I take recordings data from a seminar of third year 'Dialect in Literature' students to examine how they negotiate this complex layering of normative and non-normative metadiscourses, and I consider whether conceptualising the task in these terms can help us to better support students in developing informed and nuanced responses to literary dialect.

Note: this is submitted as one of a pair of papers. The other is: "Normative and Non-Normative Metadiscourse in the Classroom 1: History of Rhetoric". We discussed this with the conference team before submitting.

_

⁸² j.hodson@sheffield.ac.uk

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM C-3

YOUNG RESEARCHERS WRITING IN ESL AND THE USE OF METADISCOURSE: LEARNING THE ROPES

VESNA BOGDANOVIĆ, UNIVERSITY OF NOVI SAD, SERBIA 83
IVANA MIROVIĆ, UNIVERSITY OF NOVI SAD, SERBIA 84

Entering the world of academic writing can be a troublesome experience for young researchers, especially for those writing in ESL. In addition to mastering the specific language of their disciplinary community, they also have to adopt an array of metadiscourse features which help them organize their writing and position themselves towards their content and their readers. Research on the use of metadiscourse in academic writing has indicated that ESL writers generally do not use metadiscourse elements to the same extent and in the same way as native English speakers (Mauranen, 1993; Ädel, 2006, Mirović & Bogdanović, 2013). The paper will focus on the process of developing the awareness of metadiscourse features with young researchers and will attempt to gain an insight into how they adopt and apply these linguistic elements in their writing. It is based on a case study with three young researchers from the Faculty of Technical Sciences in Novi Sad, Serbia, whose research articles will be analyzed in relation to the correct usage of metadiscourse as well as its potential absence, using Hyland's (Hyland, 2005) framework. In the subsequent analysis, a questionnaire and interviews will be used to determine the degree of young authors' awareness of their use of metadiscourse and their approach to applying it in their writing. The triangulation between the corpus analysis and the questionnaire and interview data will try to address the issues of the reasons for using specific markers, the importance they attach to the use of metadiscourse in relation to the content of the research articles, and the methods of learning them, in order to unfold the correlation of beginnings of academic writing and the use of metadiscourse. It is hoped that the results of the analysis can be applied in teaching academic writing.

⁸³ vesna241@uns.ac.rs

⁸⁴ miriv@uns.ac.rs

DAY 2 31 March 2017 **Session 5**

13:00-15:00

Metadisc@COMrps Genres

13.70万世

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM D-1

EVIDENTIALITY AND COMMITMENT IN MODERN ENGLISH HISTORY TEXTS (1700-1900)

FRANCISCO ALONSO-ALMEIDA, UNIVERSITY OF LAS PALMAS DE GRAN CANARIA, SPAIN 85

The objective of this paper is to identify and categorise evidential devices as used in the Coruña Corpus of English History Texts (1700-1900), compiled at the University of A Coruña (Spain). My intention is to evaluate their use in these texts to be able to assess whether these forms contribute either to mitigate (Caffi 2007), or to strengthen (Brown 2011), a particular claim. In the light of earlier studies (cf. Alonso Almeida 2015), results will show that evidential devices are used to indicate perspectivization of knowledge (Cornillie and Delbecque 2008). This perspectivization may lead to different degrees of authorial commitment with their texts. From a pragmatic standpoint, I want to highlight the potential of evidential devices as negative politeness strategies to avoid the imposition of ideas in the texts analysed (Brown and Levinson 1987). These strategies report on collegiate attitudes to communicate scientific knowledge within the specialised community of historians in the late Modern English period.

-

⁸⁵ francisco.alonso@ulpgc.es

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM D-2

FROM "IGNORANT OPINIONS" TO "THE TRUEST RULES": CITATION PRACTICES IN EARLY MODERN ENGLISH MILITARY TREATISES

JUKKA TUOMINEN, UNIVERSITY OF TAMPERE, FINLAND86

Citations are an integral part of the social process of constructing knowledge within a discipline. As an interactive resource used to guide the projected readers' interpretation of the text, these evidential markers reflect the communicative ends of the writer as well as his or her understanding of the needs of the readership (Hyland 2005). The contextually situated communicative functions of citations are realized in texts in a range of grammatical structures and lexical elements that vary according to genre and discipline as well as the individual (Hyland 1999; Harwood 2009). The citation practices of a specific discourse community are thus part of the conventions that authors need to master and creatively exploit in their writing to establish and project a credible professional identity (Hyland 2015). Although recent research shows cross-cultural and cross-linguistic differences in citation practices, relatively few studies have focused on diachronic comparisons and the development of metadiscourse conventions over time (see, however, e.g. Arendholz et al. 2015). More work is needed to map the metadiscourse practices of earlier periods, which may call into question the applicability of models based exclusively on present-day material (cf. Taavitsainen 2006). The same holds for multilingual writing with switches from one language into one or more other ones: while quotations from and references to other works have been identified as typical uses of multilingual text elements (e.g. Pahta and Nurmi 2006), such passages have not been systematically investigated from a specifically metadiscursive perspective. The paper examines citation practices in a historical discourse domain that has received very little attention from linguists: non-literary texts on warfare from sixteenth- and seventeenth-century England. Using a combination of qualitative and quantitative corpus-based methods to analyse the genre of military treatises, the study addresses the following questions: What are the formal characteristics of citations in the genre, and what functions are associated with them? To what extent do these conform to conventions identified in present-day writing? Answers to these questions will help to elucidate the dynamics of a previously uncharted emerging professional domain and the interplay of genre conventions and authorial positioning in multilingual writing.

⁸⁶ jukka.p.tuominen@uta.fi

DAY 2- SESSION 5- ROOM D-3

LEGITIMIZATION DEVICES IN DIALOGIC STRUCTURES OF MALE AND FEMALE VOICES IN 20TH CENTURY POPULAR ROMANCE FICTION NOVELS

M. PILAR GONZÁLEZ-DE LA ROSA, UNIVERSITY OF LAS PALMAS DE GRAN CANARIA, SPAIN 87

The aim of this paper is to analyze the mitigation devices found in two contemporary romance fiction novels set in the Canary Islands. While being one of the most popular but widespread dismissed literary genres, Popular Romance Fiction is characterized by formal features easily identifiable and focusing on emotion between the main characters: a heroine and a hero. In fact, in Regis' words (2003), "A romance novel is a work of prose fiction that tells the story of the courtship and betrothal of one or more heroines". In our study we provide a list of the strategies used by the female characters in order to mark modality and evidentiality while showing the differences in their frequency of use in relation to the male characters'. Manual analysis is carried out in order to disambiguate pragmatic meaning but also to verify that this genre seems to be ideal to use mitigation for the characterization of the female characters. It also highlights the essential elements of the genre and the recurrent nature of the dialogical patterns of male and female characters and of the female authorial self.

-

⁸⁷ mpilar.gonzalez@ulpgc.es

DAY 2 31 March 2017 **Session 6**

15:15-17:30

Metadiscono Mrass Genres

1月日の下生

DAY 2- SESSION 6- ROOM A-1

TRANSITION MARKERS OF CONSEQUENCE IN CHINESE AND ENGLISH UNIVERSITY STUDENT WRITING

CHAO HAN, COVENTRY UNIVERSITY, UK⁸⁸
SHEENA GARDNER, COVENTRY UNIVERSITY, UK⁸⁹

Following research on the Contrastive transition marker however in the writing of Chinese and English university students (Han and Gardner 2016), this paper will examine the group of 18 transition markers (TMs) in the Han CH-EN corpus that belong to the semantic category of Consequence and that, in Hyland's words, 'tell readers that a conclusion is being drawn or justified (thus, therefore, consequently, in conclusion) or that an argument is being countered (admittedly, nevertheless, anyway, in any case, of course)' (2005: 50). The Han CH-EN corpus was created as a subset of the BAWE corpus to investigate the characteristics of L1 Chinese students' academic writing. It includes 78 pairs of texts by L1 Chinese students and L1 English students that are highly matched in terms of discipline, genre and level. In total, 44 transition markers were identified; of which 18 belong to the Consequence group. Both Chinese and English writers used Consequence transition markers more frequently than those of Addition or Comparison. Interestingly, however, there was no significant difference between Chinese and English writers in overall frequency of use, and this was true also for the Consequence marker used most frequently by Chinese writers, because. This changes when we look at individual transition markers. Among the 18 transition markers identified in the corpus, one, TM therefore, was used considerably more by English writers, and was the most frequent transition marked used by English writers. Three transition markers were used significantly more by Chinese writers: TM since, TM thus and TM nevertheless. This paper explores where exactly there are significant differences of use in terms of these five (because, therefore, since, thus, nevertheless) transition markers (i.e., in which genres and in which disciplines), and through analysis of specific examples in context identifies patterns of use (including sentence initial vs sentence medial) that will prove useful for those teaching academic writing in university contexts.

⁸⁸ hanc4@uni.coventry.ac.uk

⁸⁹ sheena.gardner@coventry.ac.uk

DAY 2- SESSION 6- ROOM A-2

CAUSE MARKERS IN TURKISH

CIGDEM ULUCAY, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY NCC, CYPRUS 90
CILER HATIPOGLU, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY91

Cause paragraphs are 'expository texts' that give information explain or describe why or how things happen. They are also the heart of the causal analysis in the academic world (Meyers 2009). In cause texts, writers frequently employ discourse markers which enable them to communicate causal relationships between the ideas. Lack of or insufficient and inappropriate use of causal markers can lead to significant problems related to the cohesion of the paragraphs (Crossley et al. 2016). Therefore, a detailed analysis related to the patterning of causal markers in the different language is needed. The current study aims to contribute to this field of research and focuses on causal markers used by native speakers of Turkish in their causal paragraphs. The research tries to identify, classify and analyse the frequencies with which and the functions fulfilled by these markers in Turkish since as far as the authors are aware, despite the importance of these markers, no study so far has examined and determined their features. The data for the study were collected from 63 university students (40 males and 23 females) with age range 17-22. All of the participants were monolingual native speakers of Turkish coming from different parts of Turkey. Students were asked to write cause paragraphs of about 150-180 words in Turkish. These were coded; transcribed and analysed using the CLAN CHILDES program and a list of causal markers employed by native speakers of Turkish was compiled for the first time. Later, to gain a more comprehensive insight of the when, why and how of the use of causal markers in Turkish, semi-structured interviews with students were conducted. Students were asked to reflect on the reasons and conventions which regulated their employment or nonemployment of cause markers in their cause paragraphs. The interviews were transcribed, and the common topics in those were identified and examined. The findings of the study show that, similarly to Flowerdew's (1998) categories for English, in Turkish there are six main categories of causal markers whose functions and places of use show multifaceted patterns. What is more, it was seen that the reasons for the employment or lack of employment of cause markers given by the participants in the study were various and sometimes incidental rather than well-established or learned; which, in turn, pointed, to the lack of or incomplete training in writing in Turkish. It is hoped that the findings of this study will provide insights to experts researching and practitioners teaching writing so that a more efficient tailor-made training programs and materials are developed.

⁹⁰ ozyavru@metu.edu.tr

⁹¹ ciler@metu.edu.tr

DAY 2 31 March 2017 **Session 6**

15:15-17:30

Metadisc@OMrBss Genres

13.70万世

DAY 2- SESSION 6- ROOM B-1

MAPPING METADISCURSIVE EPISTEMIC AND ATTITUDINAL STANCE IN ENGLISH RESEARCH ARTICLES: A CROSS-DISCIPLINARY STUDY OVER TIME

VALI MOHAMMADI, UNIVERSITY OF MOHAGHEGH ARDABILI, IRAN⁹²
TOHID SIAMI, UNIVERSITY OF MOHAGHEGH ARDABILI, IRAN⁹³

A great deal of research has been done to capture the intricacies of stance taking in academic writing. One way through which the stance of an author is reflected is the use of epistemic and attitudinal stance markers of certainty or uncertainty of the informational content of propositions or the affective evaluation of other propositions. The present study targeted the distribution of epistemic and attitudinal stance markers across disciplines and over time in the canonical subsections of disciplinary research articles in mechanical engineering, philosophy, physics, and finance. The corpus included 240 English research articles published during two time periods, namely, 1990 and 2010. We included 60 articles for each distinct field, 30 articles from 1990 and 30 from 2010 yielding a total number of 1,494,889 words. The findings suggested that stance taking is a common feature of academic writing through epistemic and attitudinal stance markers in the sampled disciplines regardless of the nature of the discipline. Also, the Introduction and the Discussion sections ranked first in the density of stance terms. Furthermore, there was an increasing pattern in the use of such stance markers. Then, some implications are drawn with plausible applicability in academic writing and EAP syllabus design.

⁹² vm1362@gmail.com

⁹³ tsiami62@gmail.com

DAY 2- SESSION 6- ROOM B-2

INTERACTIONAL METADISCOURSE FEATURES OF THE UK LABOUR PARTY MANIFESTOS (2010 AND 2015)

HATEM SEBEI, FACULTY OF LETTERS ARTS AND HUMANITIES MANOUBA, TUNISIA⁹⁴

During the last two decades there has been a growing interest in the evaluative and interactive features of language. The way writers transmit their personal feelings and assessments was a matter of concern for linguists. Such studies have been conducted under different names as "hedging" (Hyland 1996), "evaluation" (Hunston 1994, 2000), "Appraisal" (Martin and White 2005) and "stance" (Biber& Finegan 1988, 1989). The present work employs both quantitative and qualitative analyses to explore Labour Manifestos (2010 and 2015). Manifestos are primary sources and they have been retrieved from the internet. I selected one Manifesto when the Party was in power and one when it was in opposition to examine change or consistency in engagement. For the methodology, it includes two major descriptive parts: analysis of a questionnaire and text analysis using the UAM Corpus Tool. This study is based on a survey through a questionnaire on 188 respondents in Manchester, Liverpool and Nottingham. The goal of the survey is to explore whether people read Manifesto or not, to test the attitude of respondents to Manifestos, and also to see people attitudes to certain domestic and foreign affairs. The second descriptive tool is the UAM Corpus tool which is employed to count the frequency distribution of the engagement contract and expand in the 2010 and 2015 UK Labour Party Manifestos and to test the hypothesis that the engagement sources and functions are constrained by context (in power/in opposition). The current presentation uses the Martin and White (2005) Appraisal Framework. It employs precisely the Engagement Framework. The engagement system deals with the writer's attitude, presence and commitment in and to the text. The current presentation focuses on the linguistic options used to engage voters. The general findings show that few people are interested in Manifestos, a large number of the respondents were interested in the question of the economy and larger differences are visible in the distribution of the engagement sources across the Manifestos.

⁹⁴ hatemsebei 78@yahoo.fr

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 6

15:15-17:30

Metadisc@OMrcss Genres

13.70万世

Mapping out interactions in spoken and written disco

DAY 2- SESSION 6- ROOM C-1

STYLISTIC DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CLOSELY RELATED DISCIPLINES: METATEXT IN LINGUISTICS AND LITERARY STUDIES

MELANIE ANDRESEN, UNIVERSITY OF HAMBURG, GERMANY⁹⁵
HEIKE ZINSMEISTER, UNIVERSITY OF HAMBURG, GERMANY⁹⁶

The objective of this talk is to compare the use of metadiscourse (e.g. Ädel 2006, Hyland 2005) in academic German in the disciplines of Linguistics and Literary Studies. Though often considered closely related, the two disciplines are associated with different methods, academic cultures and, consequently, writing styles. The description of these differences is of special practical importance for students who study both disciplines jointly in study programs like "German Studies" and accordingly have to acquire the two writing styles simultaneously. In a purely data-driven analysis of German PhD theses from Linguistics and Literary Studies, we compared the frequencies of all word trigrams (=combinations of three adjacent words) and evaluated them for their potential of distinguishing the disciplines (using the measures log-likelihood (Dunning 1993) and Craig's Zeta (Craig/Kinney 2009)). Among the most distinctive trigrams for Linguistics, we found the combinations "in dieser Arbeit" (in this text), "an dieser Stelle" (at this point) and "im Folgenden werden" (in the following). These expressions belong to the group of metatext (Ädel 2006:20) that give the reader information on text organization. These findings suggest that expressions of metadiscourse make up a substantial part of the disciplinary differences between Linguistics and Literary Studies. This is in agreement with Hyland's (2005:57) finding for English that "the more discursive 'soft' fields employed more metadiscourse overall". This observation was taken as a starting point for a more comprehensive investigation of metatext in the two disciplines. For this purpose, the texts were searched for the three patterns mentioned above and additional text comment patterns (see Fandrych/Graefen 2002). The results were classified as metadiscoursive or intertextual (Ädel 2006:28) and analyzed for differences in frequency and in their combination with other aspects of metadiscourse, namely reporting verbs and selfmentions. First analyses on a pretest corpus of 23 texts confirm that metatext is more common in Linguistics. Additionally, instances used in Literary Studies are often intertextual or introduce an abbreviation or source text instead of commenting on text structure. These findings will be used as hypotheses for an in-depth study using a larger corpus.

⁹⁵ Melanie. Andresen@uni-hamburg.de

⁹⁶ Heike.Zinsmeister@uni-hamburg.de

DAY 2- SESSION 6- ROOM C-2

THE CHALLENGES OF VISUAL METADISCOURSE IN SCIENTIFIC ABSTRACTS

CARMEN SANCHO-GUINDA, UNIVERSIDAD POLITECNICA DE MADRID, SPAIN⁹⁷

The extreme encapsulation of contents required today in the dissemination of science and technology has led to the use of communicative modes alternative to the verbal text. Graphical abstracts are currently demanded by many journals in both the hard and soft sciences and assumed to reproduce the rhetorical IMRD structure (Introduction > Method > Results > Discussion) typical of scientific narratives. However, transduction (Kress 2010) that is, the translation of meanings from one communicative mode to another-makes it difficult for scientific authors to convey metadiscoursal meanings. This paper explores the major problems posed by visual metadiscourse regarding the expression of logical relationships and subjectivity, and intends to find out what strategies are predominantly and spontaneously employed by 'digital natives' (Prensky 2011) without any previous training, as well as to examine their efficacy and discern which of them are coincident with the ones proposed by Kress and van Leeuwen in their 'visual grammar' (1996). A corpus of 56 visual abstracts produced by aerospace engineering students in their last year was examined following Kress and van Leeuwen's (1996) and Machin's (2007) frameworks for multimodal analysis. For methodological reasons, the scientific topic chosen was a standard procedure performed by the informants as laboratory practice: the chemical preparation of aluminium surfaces for adhesive bonding in aircraft construction. Due to their strict sequential nature, which does not allow any descriptive or argumentative interference, standard procedures ensure higher rhetorical homogeneity and an easier assessment of variation than a full IMRD narrative, more susceptible of rhetorical fusions and embeddings. Findings reveal a high metadiscourse concern among the informants, whose majority resorted to frames, vectors and typography as main metadiscursive devices, while colour and trope icons were much less frequent. Subjectivity was achieved through the choice of reading paths, compositional arrangements, and the stylization of visual metadiscursive items, although with little awareness of its pragmatic repercussions. These comprise inappropriate register shift and the trivialization and misinterpretation of the message owing to rhetorical ambiguity and wrong emphases. As a conclusion, explicit training in visual literacy (Trumbo 2006) is claimed for in university environments.

⁹⁷ csguinda@telefonica.net

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 6 15:15-17:30

108

DAY 2- SESSION 6- ROOM D-1

A CROSS CULTURAL INVESTIGATION OF THE PERSUASIVE EFFECT OF TEXTUAL AND INTERPERSONAL METADISCOURSE MARKERS IN ARABIC AND ENGLISH OPINION PIECES

FATMA ISMAIL, HELWAN UNIVERSITY, EGYPT98

The aim of this paper was to investigate the persuasive effect of textual and interpersonal metadiscourse markers in a corpus of Arabic and English opinion pieces, by means of triangulation. 20 opinion pieces (10 Arabic and 10 English), covering economic and political affairs, were randomly selected from Arabic and English newspapers. First, based on the quantitative analysis of the corpus, the study seeks to identify which categories of metadiscourse markers are predominant in the genre of opinion pieces, taking into account the respective cross-linguistic and cross-cultural patterns. Second, the study further explores the perceived persuasiveness of the opinion pieces by (potential) readers. To achieve this aim, a group of participants were asked to take a questionnaire to rate extracts from the corpus on a scale of persuasiveness (i.e. from the least to the most persuasive) and provide open comments explaining their ratings. The participants were also asked multiple choice questions about the perceived specific function of metadiscourse markers in context. The preliminary findings suggest that both textual and interpersonal metadisourse markers are frequent in opinion pieces. However, there are cross-linguistic and cross-cultural variations in the patterns of metadiscourse markers in Arabic and English opinion pieces. The study is expected to underscore the correlation between the frequency and distribution of metadiscourse markers and the perceived persuasiveness of Arabic and English opinion pieces.

-

⁹⁸ fatmaismael@hotmail.com

DAY 2- SESSION 6- ROOM D-2

COMPARISONS OF PARAPHRASING IN CHINESE AND ENGLISH ACADEMIC WRITING

LING SHI, UNIVERSITY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA, CANADA 99

YANNING DONG, FOREIGN LANGUAGE TEACHING AND RESEARCH PRESS, CHINA

Paraphrasing is based on one's comprehension and interpretation of the source text (e.g., Yamada, 2003). It is not clear, however, how academic writers paraphrase to project individual views. In other words, we know little about how academics, especially students who might want to disguise their responsibility when giving opinions (Hyland, 2002), sustain and construct knowledge through paraphrasing as they interact with source texts. Also, since many L1 graduate students write in a context (e.g., Chinese) where individual identity seems problematic (Ramanathan & Atkinson, 1999) and textual borrowing is common in sourcebased writing (e.g., Shi, 2006), it is important to compare students' paraphrasing across language contexts. This study compares Chinese-language and English-language paraphrasing involving 17 graduates who spoke Chinese as their first language. Five were from a Chinese university and wrote their research papers in Chinese, and 12 were from a North American university and wrote their research papers in English. The participants were each asked to identify, from a research paper they had recently written, paraphrases with matching source texts, and explain how they paraphrased each example. A total of 117 paraphrases were identified. Of these paraphrases, 66 were Chinese-language paraphrases identified by participants from the Chinese university, and 51 were English-language paraphrases identified by participants from the North American university. Data analyses were conducted to compare the Chinese paraphrases with the English paraphrases in terms of the amount of textual borrowing (words identical in the paraphrase and matching source text), and content re-contextualization (by omitting, interpreting, or adding information). Findings illustrate that the percentage of textual borrowing in Chinese paraphrases (Mdn = 40.5) is significantly higher than that of the English paraphrases (Mdn = 22) (Mann Whitney U test, U = 1191, p = .007). Participants' comments on their paraphrases generated a total of 80 mentions of how the content of the source information were re-contextualized in their paraphrases (55 mentions by Chinese-language writers and 24 mentions by Englishlanguage writers). The English-language writers commented mostly on how they omitted or selected information from the source text in their paraphrases (24, 96%), whereas Chineselanguage writers commented mostly on how they interpreted the source text (17, 31%) or added new ideas (22, 40%) in their paraphrases. In addition, compared to English paraphrases which were all acknowledged, some of the Chinese paraphrases (16, 24%) did not attribute the source information to the original author. Implications of these crosslinguistic findings will be discussed.

⁹⁹ ling.shi@ubc.ca

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 7

15:15-17:30

Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM A written

DAY 3- SESSION 7- ROOM A-3

PERSUASION IN TOURIST DISCOURSE: A MODEL OF METADISCOURSE

MARINA PERSURIC-ANTONIC, UNIVERSITY OF LJUBLJANA, CROATIA¹⁰⁰

The importance of metadiscourse has been proven in various discourses (for instance Mauranen 1993a and 1993b, Cheng and Steffensen, 1996, Hyland 1998, Hyland and Tse 2004, Dafouz-Milne 2008). Not to be neglected is also the role it plays in tourist discourse. In a genre with the communicative purpose of not only informing the reader but also persuading him to visit a certain site or perform an activity, metadiscourse is essential for attaining persuasion. It is defined here as a rhetorical strategy used by the writer (or in the case of translations: the translator) to persuade the reader. Since previous contrastive rhetorical studies have revealed significant differences in the use of rhetorical strategies. persuasive rhetoric and reader-writer responsibility in different languages (for instance Čmejrková 2007, Dafouz-Milne 2008, Hoorickx-Raucq 2005, Pisanski Peterlin 2005 and Limon 2008), certain differences in the use of metadiscourse in the tourist discourse were expected between the Germanic and Slavic languages. In this study, a model of metadiscourse with a persuasive function was developed for the tourist discourse, with an emphasis on Germanic and Slavic languages, exploring the differences and similarities in the use of metadiscourse, as well as challenges in identifying it. Hyland and Tse's (2004) model of metadiscourse in the academic settings was taken as a base and adapted to the tourist discourse. The model was amended following a manual discourse analysis of tourist brochures in English and Croatian and then tested on a corpus of tourist brochures with the help of SketchEngine. In the amended model, categories of metadiscourse were further divided into subcategories including some of the subcategories proposed by Dafouz-Milne (2008), as well as new subcategories and one new category. The model was developed primarily for the English and Croatian language and was also tested on a corpus of German language.

112

¹⁰⁰ mpersuric@gmail.com

DAY 3- SESSION 7- ROOM A4

TRANSFORMING COMMUNICATION SKILLS BY THE REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

RIINA REINSALU, UNIVERSITY OF TARTU, ESTONIA 101

The Public Information Act came into force in Estonia in 2001. Accordingly, a new genre was established in public communication sphere: a request for information. The request for information is an application a citizen presents to a public office (state and local government agency) in order to receive certain information (either in the form of a document or its validated copy), and to which a particular office or agency (holders of information) is obligated to respond within five working days. The type of citizen referral, which aims at asking for an evaluation, or advice, or at highlighting certain shortcomings, or at requesting to perform special tasks on citizen's behalf, is not considered as request for information and the agencies have a right to prolong their response time to such specific undertakings. The request for information reflects upon the traditions of public sphere communication. While the explicit roles of given communication subjects are predetermined by the traditions of the genre (citizen is the one who asks, office is the one who answers), the implicit roles only emerge in the close analysis of texts. For example, a citizen's question to an office can be actuated from his/her dissatisfaction with the practices of the office (the role of the critic), or/and from a desire to give instructions to the office (the role of the teacher). The offices and agencies, in turn, can choose to answer either from the position of authorative know-all or rather neutral middle man. The language use of the questions and answers gives us directions as to what particular role has been chosen. The overall aim of my presentation is to analyse as to how the roles of the parties of the request for information actually emerge on textual level. The research shows that the information requesters are mostly in the role of a neutral inquirer (wishing to obtain information/knowledge) and local governments, the ones who possess the info (in the role of a knowledge holder), are willing to offer it to citizens. However, in certain information requests, citizens express their dissatisfaction with particular actions of local governments (the role of a critic or a teacher) but instead of direct confrontation they limit themselves to hints and insinuations. Local governments react to such hints in a neutral manner, justifying their activities in some cases by references to the existing laws.

¹⁰¹ riinareinsalu@gmail.com

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 7 15:15-17:30 Metadiscourse Across Genres Mapping out interact ROOM B written discourses

DAY 2- SESSION 7- ROOM B-3

A MODEL OF REFLEXIVE METADISCOURSE IN READING COMPREHENSION ACROSS DISCIPLINES (ECONOMY, CHEMISTRY AND LINGUISTICS)

MOHAMMED SAMI WICHKA, UNIVERSITY OF MANOUBA, TUNISIA 102

This paper describes an analytical model of reflexive metadiscourse in reading comprehension. The model draws basically on the works of Adel (2006), Salas (2015) and Toumi (2009) to analyze how Tunisian doctoral students process empirical research articles in their respective domains: Economics, Chemistry and Linguistics. The metadiscourse functions of the model are mainly drawn on Adel (2006) taxonomy of metadiscourse functions while their linguistic representations are mainly adopted from Salas (2015) and Toumi (2009). The model -contrary to other reflexive metadiscourse taxonomies- provides clear-cut distinctions between reflexive metadiscourse functions and their lexical representations and focuses on two major categories: meta-text and writer-reader interaction. A coding scheme would then be developed to represent the elements of these two categories to help the analyst code and analyze the participants' reading protocols. The study employs qualitative methods; a questionnaire, reading test, subject background knowledge quizzes, a post reading interview to first assess participants' reading level. A retrospective think aloud method would then be used to elicit the readers' awareness of metadiscourse instances in their actual reading of the three research articles in their respective domains. This study represents one of the fewest attempts at analyzing reflexive metadiscourse from a reading comprehension perspective and would help for a functional analysis of its instances in the actual reading performances.

¹⁰² mohamedsami.wichka@gmail.com

DAY 3- SESSION 7- ROOM B-4

BUNDLE-DRIVEN METADISCOURSE ANALYSIS: SENTENCE INITIAL BUNDLES IN CHINESE AND NEW ZEALAND POSTGRADUATES' THESIS WRITING

LIANG LI, UNIVERSITY OF WAIKATO, NEW ZEALAND¹⁰³

MARGARET FRANKEN, UNIVERSITY OF WAIKATO, NEW ZEALAND¹⁰⁴

SHAOQUN WU, UNIVERSITY OF WAIKATO, NEW ZEALAND¹⁰⁵

Metadiscourse and lexical bundles are two closely related concepts and both operate as overlapping functional units in texts. Metadiscourse analysis always takes a top-down approach, in which discourse analysts begin from pre-determined metadiscourse items down to the analysed texts. Lexical bundle analysis usually uses a bottom-up approach, in which the analysis begins with bundles, extracted automatically from texts, up to generate metadiscourse items to reach an understanding of the discourse. The bundle-driven bottomup approach is likely to lead to the discovery of longer metadiscourse units and create new categories, while at the same time allowing for the verification of existing researchergenerated metadiscourse lists. While many researchers have focused on examining metadiscourse in academic writing, few studies have used a bottom up approach beginning with lexical bundles in this way to explore the use of metadiscourse. Moreover, research on sentence initial bundles is rare. The present study explores the metadiscourse functions of generated four-word sentence initial bundles from the corpora of Chinese L2 and New Zealand L1 masters and PhD theses, and compares bundle distributions between L1 and L2 thesis writing. Except for a few propositional bundles, all the other bundles were identified as metadiscourse bundles and two new categories (introduction bundles and condition bundles) were created in to supplement those in Hyland's (2005a, 2005c) metadiscourse model. In contrast to New Zealand thesis writing, both the Chinese masters and PhD corpora were characterised by the heavy use of code gloss bundles (e.g. In other words, the), condition bundles (e.g. In the case of) and booster bundles (e.g. It is obvious that), and a relatively low use of endophoric bundles (e.g. The use of the), introduction bundles (e.g. There are a number), attitude bundles (e.g. It is interesting to), hedge bundles (e.g. It is possible that) and self-mention bundles (e.g. In this chapter, I). These findings indicate how productive bundle-driven metadiscourse analysis is in expanding the scope of current metadiscourse studies. It also suggests that L2 students could benefit from having attention drawn to lexical bundles as metadiscourse devices to support their academic writing.

¹⁰³ II160@students.waikato.ac.nz

¹⁰⁴ franken@waikato.ac.nz

¹⁰⁵ shaogun@waikato.ac.nz

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 7 15:15-17:30

Mapping out interact ROOM C written discourses

DAY 2- SESSION 7- ROOM C-3

THE USE OF META DISCOURSE DEVICES BY NON-NATIVE SPEAKERS IN RESEARCH ARTICLES

ASAF KHALILI, TABRIZ UNIVERSITY OF MEDICAL SCIENCES, IRAN¹⁰⁶

As a part of pragmatics of language, Metadiscourse (MD) has been widely recognized as playing a pivotal role in the expression and comprehension of messages in academic writing. In view of its significance in effective communication, there have been a lot of attempts to categorize different MD devices within manageable models, alongside some descriptive works to demonstrate the use of MD devices on the basis of these models. However, despite all the centrality accorded to MD markers in academic writing, few ESP practitioners have tried to explore the use of these devices by non-native speakers (NNS) who are known to be producing dry, incoherent and sometimes confusing papers- the very shortcomings which might easily be managed by judicious use of MD elements. With the absence of systematic works on the use of MD markers by NNS, there is a paucity of information on their use of MD devices in their productions. This is what the present paper seeks to uncover. Drawing on the Hyland & Tse (2004) "Interactive and Interactional" model of MD, and his description of the use of MD devices in research articles produced by native speakers(NS) in Hyland(1998), we set out to document the frequency of MD markers in papers produced by NNS of English and contrast it with that observed in Hyland(1998). For this purpose, we picked 20 RAs written by NNS which had been accepted for publication in the Tabriz Journal of Dentistry after extensive stylistic and linguistic editing, and compared them against Hyland (1998) with respect to the frequency of particular MD elements. The results showed huge discrepancy in the use of all MD devices in general, and some in particular. It is believed that the findings could provide useful insights in materials development for Academic Writing classes where learners could receive explicit instructions on the use of MD elements which have been found to be used least frequently.

¹⁰⁶ khaliliasaf@gmail.com

DAY 3- SESSION 7- ROOM C-4

HEDGING ACROSS GENRES: AN INVESTIGATION OF HEDGES IN THE DISCIPLINE AREAS OF BAWE

BENET VINCENT, COVENTRY UNIVERSITY, UK¹⁰⁷

ALEKSANDAR TRKLJA, UNIVERSITY OF BIRMINGHAM, UK¹⁰⁸

Hedging is an aspect of metadiscourse that has attracted much attention, in particular in academic prose, where writers frequently need to qualify their commitment to a claim, taking into account the expectations and knowledge of their audience. The identification of the resources and functions of hedging is an important task in the area of English for Academic Purposes (EAP), so that EAP learners may be more effectively instructed in how to 'express doubt and certainty appropriately', an area which they typically struggle with (Hyland and Milton 1997: 183). However, despite the availability of corpora of successful student writing such as MICUSP and BAWE, little research has been carried out into hedging in such texts, or investigated variation in terms of exploitation of hedging resources across discipline areas. This study uses Hyland's well-known hedging model (Hyland 1996, 1998) to investigate hedging in the British Academic Written English (BAWE) Corpus, a balanced corpus composed of student assignments in a range of disciplines divided into four discipline areas: Arts & Humanities, Social Sciences, Life Sciences and Physical Sciences, Hyland's functional framework identifies 4 main functions hedges perform: specification, verification, reader-orientation and writer-orientation, which we hypothesise will vary by discipline area in terms of overall frequencies of realisations as well as specific devices used. Having manually annotated a randomly selected sample of 50 texts from the corpus - comparing annotations for reliability purposes - we tentatively identify the principal hedging devices used. These forms identified are then used to compose queries to retrieve hedges from the corpus so that they may be compared across the discipline areas. Our presentation will discuss the main findings of this research and the implications for EAP students and practitioners. We will also discuss the issues faced in conducting the research and how they were addressed: annotation, adaptation of Hyland's framework to a different text type, and the issue of syncretism as it applies to hedging devices.

¹⁰⁷ ab6667@coventry.ac.uk

¹⁰⁸ A.Trklia@bham.ac.uk

DAY 2 31 March 2017 Session 7

15:15-17:30

Metadiscourse Across Genres
Mapping out interacti ROOM a written discourses

DAY 2- SESSION 7- ROOM D-3

STANCE ACCRUAL THROUGH ORAL ACADEMIC DISCOURSE

ABBAS HADIZADEH, EASTERN MEDITERRANEAN UNIVERSITY, NORTHERN CYPRUS¹⁰⁹

GULSEN M. VEFALI, EASTERN MEDITERRANEAN UNIVERSITY, NORTHERN CYPRUS¹¹⁰

The research to date on academia has become increasingly interested in how international students especially at the postgraduate level become apprenticed into their disciplinespecific discourse through expression of various stances. The related studies have mostly investigated the linguistic markers of stance in graduate candidates' academic writing, while stance and its accrual on their part in spoken academic discourse have received scant attention. The current paper reports on an attempt to explore how international graduate candidates express and accrue stance through oral academic discourse in an EFL context in Northern Cyprus. The study involved collecting a corpus of oral academic discourse data over a period of a semester in one of the postgraduate ELT courses. It focused on the lexico-grammatical markers of stance in the transcription of the oral academic discourse in the graduate classroom. By drawing on the concept of community of practice (Lave and Wenger, 1991), the study also examined the accrual of stances by the graduate candidates through their classroom interactions with more experienced members/peers. The analysis of the data revealed the instances of stance variation across the candidates' contributions to the oral academic discourse. Specifically, the results showed the prevalence of grammatical markers of epistemic stance while moderate employment of some lexical markers of stance in the oral academic discourse data suggesting the contextually situated nature of stance. Finally, the paper offers implications for postgraduate contexts to afford various opportunities for international graduate students to develop their linguistic repertoire for adequate stance expression through engagement in oral academic discourse.

¹⁰⁹ hadizadeh60@gmail.com

^{110,} gulsen.musayeva@emu.edu.tr

DAY 3- SESSION 7- ROOM D-4

FRAMING IN NLP: THE SIGNIFICANCE OF METADISCURSIVE ELEMENTS USED BY NEURO-LINGUISTIC PROGRAMMING

DEMET GUL, MERSIN UNIVERSITY, TURKEY¹¹¹
FAHRI GUL, MINISTRY OF NATIONAL EDUCATION, TURKEY¹¹²

NLP, Neurolinguistic Programming, developed by Bandler and Grindler (1973, 1975, 1983) is known to be a system where neurology, linguistics and psychology work together to guide a person in a desired direction. Basically, it can be evaluated as "a form of modeling that offers potential for systematic and detailed understanding of people's subjective experience" (Tosley and Mattison, 2003). Despite controversial studies which claim that NLP is not capable of affecting people the way it offers (i.e. useless in reality), the methods offered by the system are still frequently applied in many environments from psychotherapy to teaching/learning. This study, though, is not concerned with neither all of the stages of the system nor the success rates of the applications. The basic concern of this study is the language patterns used during NLP applications. NLP makes use of Milton-Ericsonian Hypnosis techniques, especially the linguistic patterns that the programming language uses. Through a linguistic point of view, the first thing about these patterns to be noticed is that they are all elements of metadiscourse. The so-called Milton Model patterns include phrases such as "You probably already knew...", "Maybe you'll...", "You might notice how good ... feels when..." etc. What makes NLP relevant to metadiscourse studies is nothing but these patterns. All of these linguistic units belong to some relevant category of metadiscourse. These linguistic structures are not only listed on numerous webpages, but also are used in countless number of public videos where different applications of the system are exemplified. Surprisingly, linguistics did not ask many questions on the linguistic structure of these formulated expressions. This motivated us to search for answers to the following questions:

- i. Which metadiscourse categories do NLP patterns fall into?
- ii. What statistical results will come up in the analysis of internal and interactional metadiscourse of NLP patterns?
- iii. Is one of the different categories of metadiscourse more frequent?

To answer the questions, the Milton Cards published online are going to be analyzed and categorized according to the metadiscourse categories. Furthermore, we are going to analyze 10 different public videos where experts apply NLP techniques on different cases. We hope to define the language of NLP patterns in linguistic terms. Such an analysis may add a lot more to the understanding of NLP theory, more importantly the nature of human-being (Cyna et al., 2009). The huge numbers of video views about NLP applications, tutorials, and examples of practices prove that such an analysis is required. There is no doubt that a neuro-linguistic analysis is vital to complete the whole picture of the analysis. But within the limits of this paper, we exclude such questions.

¹¹¹ demetc@mersin.edu.tr

¹¹² didegul@amail.com

DAY 3

01 April 2017

Session 8

10:45-12:00

Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM A written discourses

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM A-1

METADISCOURSAL FEATURES OF ACADEMIC FEEDBACK: AVOIDING THE FLUFF

CATHY MALONE, SHEFFIELD HALLAM UNIVERSITY, UK¹¹³
LIZ AUSTEN, SHEFFIELD HALLAM UNIVERSITY, UK

In the UK assessment and feedback has consistently been one of the lowest scoring elements of students' experience of Higher Education nationally (HEFCE 2014:25). Feedback that students receive in UK universities is made up of short written texts with relatively limited ideational content (Halliday 1994) which are stylistically closer to conversation than academic written text. A major function of these texts is evaluative, to provide a critical commentary on student performance. The quality of these texts is seen as a key means to engage students and support academic development; "It is impossible to overstate the role of effective comments on students' progress in any discussion of effective teaching and assessment' (Ramsden 2003: 187). This research used a corpus driven approach to clarify features and qualities of text that students value in feedback. Two mini corpora were created from a collection of feedback in one subject area, across three years of an undergraduate social science degree. Student evaluations based on Nichols & McFarlane-Dick (2006) were used to rank texts and distinguish between feedback students rated highly and poorly. A contrastive analysis was conducted examining frequency counts, keyword analyses as well as concordances, collocations and semantic analyses. Contrastive corpus analysis brings the metadiscoursal features strongly into focus. Findings confirmed the highly interpersonal nature of academic feedback with distinct patterns emerging in the use of modals, personal pronouns and the mitigation of criticism. These findings generally confirm much research into qualities of effective feedback (Nichols & McFarlane 2006), however a tension emerged between stated student desire for clarity and the skill of staff in "valuing student performance and enacting tenor: power and solidarity" (Martin 2009:13). This research sheds light on the means by which relationships are signalled through evaluative text. It adds to previous research on evaluation (Hunston 2011, Martin & White 2005, Hyland and Tse 2004) and explores the relationship between the interpersonal and evaluative, in particular student sensitivity to framing of criticism. A deeper understanding of the nature of this relationship and patterns in student readings of these may help inform the way staff communicate feedback.

124

¹¹³ c.malone@shu.ac.uk

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM A-2

METADISCOURSAL FEATURES OF ELECTRONIC FEEDBACK IN GRADUATE LEVEL ACADEMIC WRITING

YASEMIN BAYYURT, BOGAZICI UNIVERSITY, TURKEY¹¹⁴
NUR YIGITOGLU, BOGAZICI UNIVERSITY, TURKEY¹¹⁵

The bulk of research on written corrective feedback has explored the feedback practices for novice second language (L2) writers. As the number of graduate students in English-medium universities has increased in the last 25 years, the focus of written feedback research has shifted from studies on the writings of language learners to studies on the writings of graduate students. In an attempt to address this area in the literature, this study investigates electronic written feedback provided to graduate students during their master's thesis and doctoral dissertation writing stages. The study specifically focuses on the linguistic features of feedback provided on graduate students' writing and how such feedback is constructed throughout the writing process. To investigate this issue, a small corpus of feedback (previously) given to MA and PhD students in an ELT department was created. In addition, a subset of graduate students was asked to complete a brief survey on their expectations/experiences of electronic feedback provided to them during their thesis writing processes. The feedback data were then compared with graduate student surveys in an attempt to highlight possible differences between student expectations and electronic written feedback practices. The results suggest that most of the electronic feedback provided at the graduate level writing were related to content and organization and feedback took the form of statements and imperatives. The analysis of student surveys revealed that graduate students felt more motivated to revise their writing when they received synchronous electronic feedback. Based on the results, implications for research on the interface between second language writing and computer assisted language learning will be discussed. The presentation will conclude with a discussion of what ways, if any, such implications might relate to only feedback practices at the graduate level.

¹¹⁴ bayyurty@boun.edu.tr

¹¹⁵ nur.yigitoglu@boun.edu.tr

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM A-3

METADISCOURSAL AWARENESS IN ARGUMENTATION THROUGH WRITTEN COMMENTARY FEEDBACK

CLAIR RODWAY, GRIFFITH UNIVERSITY, AUSTRALIA¹¹⁶

In any writing pedagogy, an explicit understanding of rules can be undoubtedly useful, but this needs to be supplemented with an understanding of the rhetorical strategies that create a successful text for specific contexts and audiences. An awareness of the role of metadiscourse in developing an argument seems to be a key element, therefore, in improving L2 academic writing, and students need to be encouraged to see writing as interactive, to understand reader expectations, and to engage with their readers appropriately if they are to achieve effective argumentation. As part of an ongoing practitioner inquiry, I propose that the elements of linking to prior experience/pointing forward and increasing prospectiveness from the interactional contingent level of Hammond and Gibbons' (2005) scaffolding model can be realised through dialogic written commentary feedback, and thus potentially scaffold the high challenge task of argumentation. Such scaffolding through dialogic interactional feedback has the potential to raise consciousness of the interpersonal writer-reader relationship that is crucial to the internal development of argument in a written text, especially when it 'bridges' to classroom "rhetorical consciousness raising" (Swales, 1990, p. 213). Academic writing pedagogy "then becomes a process of raising students' awareness of the functions of different metadiscourse forms, the choices that are available to them in given genres, and the consequences of making those choices in particular contexts" (K. Hyland, 2005a, p. 193). More precisely, firstly, I propose that dialogic written commentary feedback can help to bring a sense of a reader's response to the text and of their ability to cohere the writer's intended meaning in the development of the argument; and secondly, that by building on previous rhetorical consciousness raising classroom instruction in metadiscoursal use, written commentary feedback can also provide the bridging necessary to scaffold the changes required to help the student writer create a more interactive and dialogic argumentational text. This will be evidenced in examples from classroom metadiscoursal awareness activities and subsequent written commentary feedback as part of a dialogic feedback cycle.

126

¹¹⁶ c.rodway@griffith.edu.au

DAY 3 01 April 2017 SESSION 8

10:45-12:00 Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM B written discourses

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM B-1

METADISCOURSE IN ELECTRONIC ADVERTISING: A COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF TV AND RADIO COMMERCIALS

DEMET GUL, MERSIN UNIVERSITY, TURKEY 117

Metadiscourse- as defined by Hyland (2005, p.3)- is "a framework for understanding communication as social engagement. It illuminates some aspects of how we project ourselves into our discourses by signaling our attitude towards both the content and the audience of the text.". It is obvious that many of the questions on metadiscourse focus on academic discourse (Mauranen, 1993; Hyland, 2001; Dahl, 2004; Hyland and Tse, 2004; Ädel, 2006; Aguilar, 2008; Cao and Hu, 2014; Andrusenko, 2015 and many others), print media (Bell, 1991; Dafouz-Milne, 2008, Kuhi & Mojood, 2014, Fuertes-Olivera et al. 2001 etc.), language in the classroom environment (Hyland, 1999; Thompson, 2003; Bernad-Mechó, 2015; Lee and Subtirelu, 2015) and language of advertising (Fuertes-Olivera et al. 2001; Wahl, 2014). As one of the means of social communication involving "personalities, attitudes and assumptions of those who are communicating" (Hyland, 2005: 3), advertising makes one of the most interesting subject matters to study metadiscourse. As for the studies of language of advertising (specifically electronic advertising within the limits of this study) TV commercials seem to be a popular topic for metadiscourse studies (Meinhof, 2004, Dastierdi, 2014). It is easy to understand the reasons why: TV commercials are extremely frequent (almost 7/24, almost everywhere), easy to broadcast, easy to reach (for the consumers), easy to understand, use most important available channels: vision, sound, language (i.e. they appeal to both ears and the eyes). Radio commercials and commercial on the web are less frequently studied versions of electronic advertising. Web commercials are relatively recent; therefore, it is easy to foresee that many more studies will follow in the next few years. Radio commercials, on the other hand, are on since 1922. They existed much before TV commercials. However, the studies on the structure of radio commercials, or on any kind of radio shows seem to be embryotic (Wahl, 2014). Moreover, as far as our research shows, none of the studies that compare TV commercials and radio commercials are discussing the metadiscursive structures of the pair. Within the metadiscursive elements, we include the intonation patterns used in the commercials. Thompson (2003: 1) notes that "both metadiscourse and intonation are used by academic speakers to help an audience form a coherent 'mental map' of the overall talk and how its parts are interconnected." Thus, we evaluate the intonation patterns of the commercials as relevant to the metalinguistic structure. Motivated by this fact, what we claim in this study is that TV commercials and radio commercials (focusing on the ones used in cross media advertising) will differ in terms of the metadiscursive structures and strategies. To test the claim, we conduct the data analysis on 30 cross media advertising texts: 30 TV commercials and their radio versions.

¹¹⁷ demetc@mersin.edu.tr

The study will follow mixed approach. The quantitative analysis includes the analysis of interactive and interactional metadiscourse elements in statistical terms. A qualitative analysis will be conducted on the use of paralinguistic elements, on the other hand. ELAN (EUDISTIC Linguistic Annotator) software is going to be used in order to analyze the TV commercial texts. As for the radio versions of the commercials, we are going to use PRAAT to analyze the paralinguistic features of the recordings, such as voice quality or voice qualification, and intonation patterns. Within the limitations of this very study, we exclude web-based commercials, SMS advertising, e-mail marketing and the such, and, hopefully, keep them for another (many other) one(s). Needless to say, those versions of trade language will make any linguist curious.

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM B-2

METADISCOURSE IN FILMS: THE EMPLOYMENT OF HEDGES AND BOOSTERS IN THE TURKISH COMEDY FILM RECEP IVEDIK

CILER HATIPOGLU, MIDDLE EAST TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY, TURKEY¹¹⁸
SUHAN OKTAY, HACETTEPE UNIVERSITY, TURKEY¹¹⁹

It is believed that top rated/popular films represent the culture of the time they are made (Acland 2003). Through their dialogues, they also show the interactional expectations and rules of the societies where they are produced. The way the speakers present their opinions and distinguish them from facts or gossip, the way they argue or express authority, and the manner in which they address their audiences reveal subtle but at the same time pervasive cultural norms that differentiate one nation from the other (Dahl 2004; Millan 2008; Wu & Rubin 2000). The current study looks at one such film (i.e., Recep İvedik 1 directed by Togan Gökbakar) and aims to uncover how the main characters in the film employ hedges and boosters to construct and position speaker identities, and frame texts depending on their own and audiences' needs and expectations. Using the CLAN CHILDES program the data were analyzed quantitatively and qualitatively, and patterns in the employment of the hedges and boosters were uncovered. In addition, contexts in which the use of metapragmatic tools follow cultural norms were identified and contrasted with situations where the uses of hedges and boosters deviate in various degrees from the expected patterns. The findings of the study reveal a number of the cultural preferences related to the employment of hedges and boosters in the Turkish culture but also show how and why patterns in broadcast discourse, in general, and comedy films, in particular, could deviate from the expected cultural norms.

¹¹⁸ ciler@metu.edu.tr

¹¹⁹ suhanoktay@hacettepe.edu.tr

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM B-3

APPROACHING CONVERSATIONAL NARRATIVES IN 'METADISCOURSE' TERMS: AN ANALYSIS ON THE INTRODUCTORY PARTS OF 'CULTURALLY SHARED NARRATIVES'

EMEL KOKPINAR-KAYA, HACETTEPE UNIVERSITY, TURKEY 120

The central aim of this study is to attempt to take a preliminary step towards broadening the scope of 'metadiscourse' and reinforce its explanatory agenda through the evidence from conversational storytelling. Conversational storytelling is a part of everyday conversations and can be performed in conversations as spontaneous and interactional achievements of (the) teller(s) and (the) listener(s) (Ochs and Capps, 2001; Schegloff, 1986). Culturally shared narratives which are the anonymous stories learnt from the social environment and do not belong to any specific person (Schank, 1990, pp. 29-40) are also an object of storytelling in everyday conversations. However, introducing them to the recipients in the flowing talk has some peculiarities in terms of the internal structures of the stories. Here, the present study endeavours to illustrate how culturally shared conversational narratives can be introduced in talk-in-interaction by referring to a specific set of interpersonal options (Hyland, 2004; 2005), the tellers' organisation of discourse and the textual implications of what is being talked (Hyland, 2015). The analysis of the conversational data which comes from the audio recordings of 11 different conversations (with a duration of ten hours and eight minutes in total) has based on the interpersonal model of metadiscourse (Hyland, 2004; 2005; Hyland & Tse, 2004) and it has imported the methodological tools from the General Theory of Verbal Humor (Attardo, 1994; 2001; 2003) and Narrative Analysis of Labov and Waletzky (1967). It is shown by the analysis that the 'punch line' of the stories may be given as the introductory part of the culturally shared narratives and this introduction serves as an 'Abstract' which gives signals about the coming narrative, makes the audience ready for the narration and creates a chance for the recipients to participate to the telling activity. In the course of storytelling, by the tellers, the recipients are predominantly expected to know the prospective story if it is a culturally shared one. Henceforth, culturally shared narratives provide the individuals of a community with a familiarity and it is therefore suggested that this familiarity mostly signalled by the introductory parts is also convenient for a co-narration (collaborative storytelling) by allowing participants to modulate rapport and demonstrate group membership (Norrick 1997, p. 199).

130

¹²⁰ emelkokpinar@hacettepe.edu.tr

DAY 3 01 April 2017 SESSION 8 10:45-12:00 Metadiscourse Across Genres Mapping out interact ROOM C written discourses

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM C-1

AN EXPLORATION OF MODALITY AND HEDGING IN ACADEMIC DISCOURSE: FOCUSING ON KURDISH UNIVERSITY CONTEXT

TALIB OMER, ERBIL POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY, IRAQ121

Over the decades, Hedging and Modality have been discussed by linguists and researchers as a basic concept in English for academic purposes. There have been many studies conducted, of which purpose is to discuss hedging and modality as they are used in foreign contexts. Few of them have been conducted so as to understand their roles, functions and forms as they apply to academic writings in the Kurdish universities' English context. This study investigates the importance of using hedging and modality in academic discourse. It also explores how modality and hedging have been taught, and to what extent students are aware of the appropriate use of hedging and modality in their writing. With regards to data analysis and collection, the qualitative method was used for creating the research paradigm. The results from literature review and data analysis show that Kurdish students are not conscious of the use of hedging and modality as it is significant for L2 learners. The findings also revealed that students were taught modal auxiliary verbs and adverbs explicitly. This paper suggests that teaching hedging and modality by using inductive examples, and by focusing on forms and functions will help Kurdish learners to distinguish themselves by using more boosters and tentative language in their academic discourse.

¹²¹ talib.omerr@gmail.com

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM C-2

CONSTRAINTS ON AUTHORIAL STANCE IN ACCOUNTING PHD THESES IN A NIGERIAN UNIVERSITY

SANI YANTANDU UBA, UNIVERSITY OF LEEDS, UK ¹²²
MIKE BAYNHAM, UNIVERSITY OF LEEDS, UK ¹²³

Scholars have argued that disciplinary discourse, linguistic features and epistemology vary across disciplines, contexts, as well as genres. In this paper, we investigate what stance linguistic features accounting PhD authors use in Bayero University Kano and what factors might constrain their use. Baynham (2001) has argued there are three perspectives on the study of academic writing, a skills-based perspective, a text-based perspective and a practice-based perspective. In this paper we draw primarily on a text-based analysis but complement this with a consideration of institutional and disciplinary factors which might explain why the writers investigated write as they do. The study combines text analysis using a corpus methodology and contextual information on the institutional and disciplinary context within which the students are writing. We employ nine participants: six accounting PhD authors and three accounting PhD supervisors. We compile a corpus of six accounting PhD theses from Bayero University, Kano (BUK corpus), as well as two other accounting sub-corpora written by native speakers of English in the same discipline of accounting for comparative analysis with the BUK corpus: a thesis of accounting PhD thesis (UK corpus); and a corpus of eleven journal articles of accounting (JAA corpus). The corpus analysis shows that all the three corpora frequently use hedges with a higher frequency than the other stance linguistic features categories, followed by boosters, then attitudinal markers, and explicit self-mention features. However, the chi-square results show that the differences among the three corpora use of stance linguistic features are not significant. The contextual data suggests that several factors might have constrained the accounting PhD authors' use of stance linguistic features, such as a lack of teaching of EAP/ESP to the postgraduate students. We finish by advocating more broadly a genre-sensitive, functional approach to the teaching of academic writing which would include explicit teaching of stance linguistic features for example by using concordance software. Learners could in this way explore a wide range of stance linguistic features, and could see and analyse the text looking at the cotext/context. We conclude by emphasizing the value of raising the awareness of both teachers and students regarding the use of stance linguistic features in their academic writing.

¹²² ed10su@leeds.ac.uk

¹²³ M.Baynham@education.leeds.ac.uk

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM C-3

USE AND AWARENESS OF METADISCOURSIVE ROUTINES IN STUDENT'S L1-WRITING

MIRJAM WEDER, UNIVERSITY OF BASEL, SWITZERLAND¹²⁴

The abundant use of metadiscoursive strategies is a typical feature of academic writing for two reasons (Hyland 2005; Feilke 2010): first, the scientific discourse requires that any academic text - probably more so than texts of any other genre - is required to make transparent under what conditions it was generated (Feilke 2010, pp. 6-7), for example, how the writer positions his research in the research field, what methods he used, but also how he is going to present his project and results. Second, academic writing is not about presenting facts but rather about presenting "extra-factual, extra-logical arguments concerned with probabilities rather than facts" and is therefore a "particular form of persuasion" which requires metadiscoursive strategies (Hyland 2005, Metadiscoursive strategies are often realised by routine expressions, i. e. reccurrent lexical patterns, also called academic formulas, such as multi-word units, bundles or collocations (cf. Simpson-Vlach & Ellis 2010; Hyland 2008). For example, routine expressions are used to refer to the text at hand such as in this paper or in the present study. Metadiscoursive routines are an indiciation of a certain register or genre, as has been shown for routines in general by Biber (2006) and Hyland (2008). For students confronted with academic writing for the first time, it can be quite challenging not only to handle content matters appropriately, but also to master form and function of genre specific metadiscoursive strategies. The aim of this paper is to investigate how students are aware of and make use of metadiscoursive routines in german academic writing. The first part of the study investigated how and to what extent freshmen of German Studies use metadiscoursive routines in their first student papers when writing in their native language. To this end, a corpus of 100 papers of freshmen of the University of Basel was compiled and analysed by corpus-linguistic methods (Hyland 2008, Bondi 2010, Römer & Wulff 2010) as well as genre-analytical methods (Swales 1990, Hyland 2005) in regard to two research questions: Which metadiscoursive functions are realised? And which routines are applied to realise these metadiscoursive functions? The second part of the study is dedicated to student's awareness of metadiscoursive strategies in academic writing. 20 students (1st year, L1, German Studies at the University of Basel) were shown various types of introductions to research articles and asked about the meaning and function of certain paragraphs which contained metadiscoursive routines, e.g. evaluative formulas such as zu kritisieren gibt es an X Y (,X must best criticized in regard to Y'), X stellt eine Forschungslücke dar ("X constitutes a research gap'). Preliminary results show that student's academic writing is still shaped by the conception of writing as either the expression of a personal interest or as textbook writing (cf. Hyland 2005, p. 101) rather than by the idea of writing as shaping and generating knowledge or connecting to a research community.

¹²⁴ mirjam.weder@unibas.ch

DAY 3 01 April 2017 SESSION 8 10:45-12:00 Metadiscourse Across Genres Mapping out interact ROOM D written discourses

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM D-1

MAPPING CROSS-DISCIPLINARY TEXTUAL AND VISUAL METADISCOURSE STRATEGIES IN ACADEMIC POSTERS

LARISSA D'ANGELO, UNIVERSITY OF BERGAMO, ITALY125

Numerous studies have, over the years, confirmed that academic discourses have unique features revolving around the concept of 'community' (Hartley 2006; Hyland 1998a, 2001, 2004a; Swales 2004; Thompson 2001), revealing that authors belonging to different disciplinary fields display different writing techniques and are urged early on in their academic career to conform to discipline-specific conventions and genre-specific rules. Continuing a cross-disciplinary research on the academic poster genre (D'Angelo 2016), I seek here to highlight significant differences, in terms of word count, portrait/landscape orientation and layout of posters, as well as discipline-specific patterns for what concerns the use of textual interactive and interactional metadiscourse resources and visual interactive resources. The framework of analysis, drawn in part from Kress (2010) and Kress and van Leeuwen's (2001, 2002, 2006) visual analyses, will be applied to different disciplines such as Applied Linguistics, Medicine, Economics, Engineering, Biology and Geography. The results widen the current knowledge on academic poster presentations by mapping which textual and visual metadiscourse strategies are employed where and why, and as a consequence, which textual and visual metadiscourse strategies should be well known to poster authors, depending on their academic community.

¹²⁵ larissa.dangelo@unibg.it

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM D-2

A CROSS-SECTIONAL COMPARISON OF METADISCOURSE FEATURES USED IN EARLY AND ADVANCED ENGINEERING WRITING

WING-SHAN IVY CHAN, THE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG, HONG KONG¹²⁶

As time goes by, it is believed that novel writers can demonstrate a mastery of using appropriate discipline-specific conventions in their writing to communicate with their target disciplines, making themselves as one of the expert writers for their own fields of study. Such writing journey is the point of the investigation for the current study. This study looked into the development of the undergraduate students' use of metadiscourse features across their studies especially within a particular field, civil engineering in this case. Two corpora of civil engineering writing were created: (1) a corpus of early writing including the assignments (such as laboratory reports and site-visit reports) produced by novice writers, such as first-, second-, and third-year undergraduate students; (2) a corpus of advanced writing including the dissertations and published research articles written by expert writers, such as master and doctoral postgraduates and article writers. Both corpora were produced by Chinese second language (L2) writers, and then analysed through the interpersonal metadiscourse model formulated by Hyland and Tse (2004) and Hyland (2005, 2010) with the help of Wordsmith Tool 6.0. By studying the use of metadiscourse features in the corpus of advanced writing, it was possible to reveal some specificities in civil engineering. One of them was the frequent use of endophoric markers, which is in line with Hyland (2005, 2010)'s studies by suggesting the multi-modal character in engineering writing. Thus, this metadiscourse feature can be classified as one of the disciplinary norms in engineering writing. Such frequent use of endohporic markers was also revealed in the corpus of early writing, whose frequency of use increased the most from the first- to third-year assignments. This can be regarded as a positive development in the use of metadiscourse features. especially if the frequent use of endophoric markers was considered as one of the civil engineering norms by studying the corpus of advanced writing and drawing upon the previous results on the use of metadiscourse in research article writing in civil engineering. To conclude, this study can be considered to make a contribution by identifying some possible metadiscourse features used in civil engineering writing, and may shed new light on the design of English for Civil Engineering courses at undergraduate level.

137

¹²⁶ iyychan610@yahoo.com.hk

DAY 3- SESSION 8- ROOM D-3

AN INVESTIGATION INTO INTERACTIVE AND INTERACTIONAL METADISCOURSE DEVICES IN WRITTEN IN HIGH-AND LOW-RATED UNDERGRADUATE LEARNER LANGUAGE

ERDEM AKBAS, ERCIYES UNIVERSITY, TURKEY¹²⁷

NESLIHAN ONDER-OZDEMIR, UNIVERSITY OF SHEFFIELD, UK¹²⁸

Given the significance of metadiscourse in written communication (Crismore, Markkannen & Steffensen, 1993; Jiang & Hyland, 2016; Zhang, 2016), the aim of the present research is to compare the use of metadiscourse devices in high-and low-rated undergraduate essays written by Turkish EFL university students. Although the students received a formal instruction on writing during the academic year, they have not been provided with any information on the concept of metadiscourse to increase the level of authenticity in relation to such linguistic elements allowing writers to achieve various textual and authorial roles. The motivation behind our study is to see whether there is a difference in the quality and selection of particular interactive and interactional resources in successful and less successful essays as a relatively under-researched genre. The data consisted of 75 highrated and 75 low-rated argumentative essays from TUWE corpus (Turkish Undergraduate Writers of English), totalling approximately 120,000 words and will be analysed based on Hyland's interactive and interactional metadiscourse framework (Hyland, 2005). It is noteworthy that most of the studies on metadiscourse tended to be based on textual analysis. For the validity of our study, we employed both qualitative and quantitative methods. Following the quantitative analyses of the essays, we carried out a semi-structured interview among randomly selected undergraduate students (5 from each group) to explore the awareness of learners related to metadiscourse while writing in the target language. The findings are anticipated to be applied in teaching writing to undergraduate writers in L2 and contribute to the theories of learner language in the mainstream classrooms.

¹²⁷ erdemakbas@erciyes.edu.tr

¹²⁸ nonderozdemir1@sheffield.ac.uk

DAY 3 01 April 2017 SESSION 9

14:45-15:15 Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM Ad written discourses

DAY 3- SESSION 9- ROOM A-1

THE METADISCOURSE OF VIETNAMESE DISCOURSE MARKERS

A. VERI DI SUVERO, DARTMOUTH COLLEGE, USA¹²⁹

The metadiscourse of discourse markers has been extensively studied (Maschler 1994, Torres 2002, Verdonik, Rojc and Stabej 2007), but no major metadiscourse studies of Vietnamese discourse markers have ever been conducted. The present paper fills this gap by presenting a substantial conversation corpus of Vietnamese speakers, by presenting a new, metadiscourse-based methodology of defining discourse markers, and by concluding with further insight into the relationship between the metadiscourse and the selection of discourse markers. The study includes 30 recordings of 5-10 minute naturalistic conversations between native Hanoian Vietnamese speakers of both genders, ages 19-57. Using this data, I focused on the language by looking at its Discourse Markers. I found that Discourse Markers are inextricably bound to metadiscourse, but in Vietnamese that metadiscourse is more overt than in other languages. By dividing the identified markers by intended usage, I clarify the definition of Discourse Markers into two different types: Discourse Linkers and Discourse Particles. Nhi is an example of a Discourse Particle, as in (1).

(1) Conversation 4:C

3 B: Cũng lằng nhằng nhỉ. Also complicated DM That sounds complicated.

Based on Wierzbicka's (1999) universal semantic metalanguage, I created a descriptive template to identify these markers through the amalgamation of contexts in which they can be used. As nhì can also be used in other contexts, it would be defined by my proposed template as possessing the following discourse-contextual features:

Discourse Particle
Intonation Unit-Final
Semi-rhetorical or rhetorical interrogative
Indicative mood
Scope over directly preceding word
Feeling confirmation
Decreased Psychological Distance
Neutral politeness
Turn-holding Opening device

In this paper, I theorize how metalinguistics provides a key to reformulating descriptions of Discourse Markers, and present a case for metadiscourse-based selection hierarchies. Maschler describes this hierarchy when he states: "[u]tterances, lingual or metalingual, are always simultaneously constrained by...contextual realms; but often we find that, for a particular utterance, constraints of one particular realm are more pronounced than others" (Maschler 1994:238). Using the proposed template to look at these metalinguistic attributes of a marker can help further understand this hierarchy.

¹²⁹ veri.disuvero@gmail.com

DAY 3 01 April 2017 SESSION 9

14:45-15:15 Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM B written discourses

DAY 3- SESSION 9- ROOM B-1

A CROSS-CULTURAL INVESTIGATION OF CODE GLOSSES IN ACADEMIC WRITING

HUSEYIN KAFES, AKDENIZ UNIVERSITY, TURKEY¹³⁰
MUSTAFA CANER, AKDENIZ UNIVERSITY, TURKEY¹³¹

Drawing on the interactional and interactive functions of meta-discourse in academic writing, this corpus-based qualitative study aims to investigate how academic writers from different cultural backgrounds elaborate prepositional meanings. It examines the use of code glosses in the research articles, published between 2000-2015 and written by Turkish and American academic writers. The data of the study come from randomly selected corpus of 100 research articles from the field of English Language Teaching, 50 by Turkish academic writers, 50 by American academic writers. The corpus was analyzed and all instances of code glosses were noted and recorded manually by the researcher. The frequency of code gloss use by both groups were counted and analyzed. The results of the analysis have shown that American academic writers use more code glosses than their Turkish counterparts to elaborate prepositional meanings. This study may have pedagogical implications for Turkish academic writers, especially novice writers as well as academic writing instructors.

¹³⁰ hkafes@akdeniz.edu.tr

¹³¹ mcaner@gmail.com

DAY 3 01 April 2017 **SESSION 9**

14:45-15:15

Metadisc@COMress Genres

13.70万世

DAY 3- SESSION 9- ROOM C-1

TO MENTION OR NOT TO MENTION "I": AN INVESTIGATION OF PERSONAL METADISCOURSE IN PAKISTANI RESEARCH DISCOURSES

AKHTAR ABBAS, AIR UNIVERSITY, PAKISTAN¹³²
WASIMA SHEHZAD, AIR UNIVERSITY, PAKISTAN¹³³
SYEDA TEHSEEN ZAHRA, AIR UNIVERSITY, PAKISTAN¹³⁴

Stance and voice has been exploited through the use of personal metadiscourse in general and first person pronoun 'l' in particular by several discourse analysts (Hyland & Guinda, 2012; Adel, 2006 and Shehzad, 2007). These analyses have revealed displaying façade of 'self' grounded into several voices including footing, positioning, personal stamp, signature, observers, critics, participants, recounters, academic arguer and interpreters and several more (Hyland, 2012). Theories of metadiscourse and Systemic Functional Linguistics along with some other dovetailing with broader scope of semantics, pragmatics, and contrastive analysis, have produced robust exegeses in this intellectual enterprise of self-display. However, the larger contextual diversity of a discourse community demands more attention on analyzing discourse of self-mention. After having this realization we explored discourse functions of the first person pronoun 'I' in Pakistani research discoursers of social sciences. Twenty articles each from the disciplines of Education, English Studies (linguists and literature) and History were analyzed by following the Adel's (2006) framework of personal metadiscourse which is based on Jakobsonian functions of metadiscosurse, i.e. code/text, the writer and the reader. 45 instances of self-mention through the use of 'I' was found rendering to different discourse functions. In addition to discourse functions identified by Adel, some more discourse functions were explored by us. These discourse functions are contextualization of the writer/researcher in methodological procedures, Stance I and Focusing on aim/goal of the study.

¹³² akhtar.abbas@mail.au.edu.pk

¹³³ wasima.shehzad@yahoo.com

¹³⁴ tehsin.azhar@vahoo.com

DAY 3 01 April 2017 SESSION 9

14:45-15:15 Metadiscourse Across Genres

Mapping out interact ROOM D written discourse

DAY 3- SESSION 9- ROOM D-1

TOWARDS THE DEVELOPMENT OF A SOCIALLY-INFORMED MODEL OF RESEARCH IN METADISCOURSE

DAVUD KUHI, ISLAMIC AZAD UNIVERSITY, IRAN 135

Since the early development of interest in the interpersonal dimensions of academic communication in the 1980s, the analytic potentials of the concept of metadiscourse have motivated a large number of investigations. Although these analytic potentials have facilitated the study of diverse academic genres, there has always been a risk of detachment of textual analyses from the contextual origins and motivations. In some cases, this detachment has been so observable that the true discoursal nature of the interpersonal dimensions of academic communication has been reduced to classifications of a large number of pure textual properties. As a reaction to this reductionist trend, the present article provides a preliminary framework within which the contextual origins of metadiscourse features can be understood. It is suggested that if the findings of metadiscourse research are meant to be interpreted in meaningful ways, they should be contextualized within such process-oriented frameworks.

146

¹³⁵ davudkuhi@yahoo.com